
NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days 
in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

 

 
Meeting of the 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 

JANUARY 28, 2008 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Submitted By 

      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us


 

 

 -  -  

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are suggested or 
requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your consideration and possible 
amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by department 
directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their efforts to provide insight 
and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the governing 
body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on course with these 
goals. 
 

Goals 

 
I. Enhance the livability and safety of the community  
II. Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City 

government 
III. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment 
IV. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally 
V. Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public needs 
VI. Emphasize regionalism and incorporate creativity into the annual strategic 

planning process 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your deliberations may 
require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

 



NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of 
the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
      

  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  AGENDA 

January 28, 2008 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Reverend Charlotte Sommers – 

Northminster Presbyterian Church 1 

ROLL CALL 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 No Presentations 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Rezoning Application – East Side of John R, North of Big Beaver, Section 24 – 
From P-1 and R-1E to B-1 (File Number: Z-677 B) 1 

C-2 Request for Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – IACNA, 
International Automotive Components Group, North America, 750-800 Chicago 2 

C-3 Request to Consider Granting an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) 
to IACNA, International Automotive Components Group, North America, 750-800 
Chicago 2 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us


 

 

 -  -  

POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

D-1 No Postponed Items 3 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 3 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 3 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Planning 
Commission b) City Council Appointments: Board of Zoning Appeals; and Traffic 
Committee 4 

E-2  Rescind Bid Award/Re-Award Contract – Rough Mow Various Municipal Sites 5 

E-3 2008 Poverty Exemption Guidelines 6 

E-4 Approval of MDOT Loan Agreement – Contract No. 07-7734, Stephenson 
Highway, 14 Mile to I-75 – Project No. 02.201.5 6 

E-5 Approval of MDOT Advance Construction Contract – Contract No. 07-5734, 
Stephenson Highway, 14 Mile to I-75 – Project No. 02.201.5 6 

E-6 Traffic Committee Recommendations – January 16, 2008 7 

E-7 Milano Development v. City of Troy et. al. 7 

E-8 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Brycewood Site Condominium, 9 
Units/Lots Proposed, East Side of Evanswood Road, North of Square Lake Road, 
Section 1 – R-1D 7 

CONSENT AGENDA: 8 

F-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 8 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 8 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 8 



 

 

 -  -  

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Submitted 9 

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 9 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County CLEMIS Cooperative 
Purchasing Contract – Mobile Data Computers (MDC’s) Increase in CLEMIS 
MDC Participation Fees ........................................................................................ 9 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Community 
Center Carpet ....................................................................................................... 9 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: MITN Purchasing Cooperative – Gasoline 
and Diesel Fuel .................................................................................................... 9 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 07-9 – 
Section 4 Weir Control Structure Project Re-Bid ................................................ 10 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Oakland County Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles ............................................................ 10 

F-5 Request for Acceptance of Three Permanent Easements for Water Main, Sanitary 
Sewer and Emergency Ingress/Egress – SAAAM-Troy, LLC, Section 26, Sidwell 
#88-20-26-200-069 10 

F-6 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Sidewalk, Public Utilities 
and Drainage – Rochester Professional Building, LLC, Section 3, Sidwell #88-20-
03-226-104 11 

F-7 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement – John R Road Improvements, 
Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #47 – 
Sidwell #88-20-02-228-037 – John and Nancy Lozenkovski/Milos and Vesa 
Miloshevski 11 

F-8 Contract Extension – Standard and Compound Water Meters 11 

F-9 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main – The 
Elizabeth G. Ford Revocable Living Trust and Barbara J. Sackner, Sidwell #88-20-
20-476-047 12 

F-10 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement for John R Road Improvements, 
Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #67 – 
Sidwell #88-20-01-151-048 – Mark and Elizabeth Abro 12 

F-11 Request from Congregation Shir Tikvah to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions 
– East Side of Northfield Parkway 13 

F-12 Request to Permit Fireworks at Mon Jin Lau 13 



 

 

 -  -  

F-13 Application for Transfer of Class C License – Cameron Mitchell Restaurants, LLC 13 

F-14 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Cathy Killian, 
President – Troy Foundation for Educational Excellence 14 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 14 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 14 

a) Michigan NextEnergy Exemptions – February 18, 2008 .................................... 14 

G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 14 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 14 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 14 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 14 

I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 14 

REPORTS: 15 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 15 

a) Historic District Commission/Final – September 18, 2007 .................................. 15 
b) Historic District Commission/Final – October 16, 2007 ...................................... 15 
c) Cable Advisory Committee/Final – October 18, 2007......................................... 15 

d) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – November 1, 2007 ..................... 15 
e) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – November 13, 2007 ................................. 15 
f) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – November 20, 2007 ........................................ 15 
g) Historic District Commission/Final – November 20, 2007 ................................... 15 

h) Planning Commission/Draft – December 11, 2007 ............................................ 15 
i) Planning Commission/Final – December 11, 2007 ............................................ 15 
j) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – December 12, 

2007 ................................................................................................................... 15 
k) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Final – December 12, 2007 ............. 15 
l) Library Advisory Board Minutes/Final – December 13, 2007 ............................. 15 
m) Historic District Commission/Final – December 18, 2007 ................................... 15 
n) Downtown Development Authority/Final – December 19, 2007 ......................... 15 
o) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – January 2, 2008 .................................. 15 
p) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – January 8, 2008 ...................................... 15 



 

 

 -  -  

q) Planning Commission/Draft – January 8, 2008 .................................................. 15 
r) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – January 14, 2008 ........................................ 15 

s) Cable Advisory Committee/Draft – January 16, 2008......................................... 15 

J-2 Department Reports: 15 

a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of December, 2007 ... 15 
b) Building Department – Permits Issued July through December, 2007 ............... 15 
c) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Year 2007 ............................ 15 
d) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting BidNet On-Line Auction and Mid-

Thumb Auctioneering Services – December, 2007 ............................................ 15 

e) City of Troy Quarterly Financial Report – December 31, 2007 ........................... 15 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 15 

a) Letter of Thanks to Troy Police Department from John Yoho, Arvin Meritor, in 
Appreciation of the Service Received from Officer Stacey and PSA Stark ........ 15 

b) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Sgt. David Smith, Sterling Heights Police 
Department, Regarding the Assistance with Arrest of Robbery Suspect 
Received from Lt. Houghton and Officers Livingston, Haddad, Kelly and 
Brandimore ......................................................................................................... 15 

c) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Macomb County Sheriff Mark Hackel 
Regarding the Assistance Received with an Arrest ............................................ 15 

d) Letter to Sam Lamerato from Senator John Pappageorge Commending the 
City of Troy Fleet Maintenance Department on being named the Second Best 
Fleet in North America ........................................................................................ 15 

e) Letter of Thanks to Director of Building & Zoning Mark Stimac from Joy 
Powell, General Manager of Oakland Mall, Commending the Efforts of Gary 
Bowers and Mitch Grusnick ................................................................................ 15 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 15 

a) City of Madison Heights – Resolution Requesting Preservation of Existing 
Channel Locations for Public, Government and Educational Access Channels . 15 

J-5  Calendar 16 

J-6  Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting Draft Minutes – November 15, 2007 16 

J-7  Communication from Director of Parks and Recreation Carol Anderson Regarding 
Michigan Turfgrass Environmental Stewardship Program – Sanctuary Lake Golf 
Course 16 

J-8  Communication from Planning Director Mark Miller Regarding Election of Planning 
Commission Officers and Appointment of Board of Zoning Appeals 
Representatives - 2008 16 



 

 

 -  -  

J-9  Communication from City Engineer Steve Vandette Regarding Request for 
Federal Aid Funding – FY 2012 – Next Phase Projects 16 

J-10  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding 
Notice of Hearing for the Customers of Consumers Energy Company – Case No. 
U-15454 16 

J-11  Actuarial Valuation – Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 16 

J-12  Communication from City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew Regarding Proposed 
Resolution for No Reason Absentee Voting 16 

STUDY ITEMS: 16 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 16 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 16 

CLOSED SESSION: 17 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 17 

ADJOURNMENT 17 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 17 

Monday, February 18, 2008 ..................................................................................... 17 
1. Michigan NextEnergy Exemptions ...................................................................... 17 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 17 

Monday, February 4, 2008 Regular City Council ................................................... 17 
Wednesday, February 13, 2008 (Liquor Violation Hearing) Regular City Council . 17 

Monday, February 18, 2008 Regular City Council ................................................. 17 
Wednesday, February 20, 2008 (Liquor Violation Hearing) Regular City Council . 17 
Monday, March 3, 2008 Regular City Council ....................................................... 17 
Monday, March 17, 2008 Regular City Council ..................................................... 17 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 28, 2008 

 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Reverend Charlotte Sommers – 

Northminster Presbyterian Church 

ROLL CALL  

(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming 
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

 
(b) Excuse Absent Council Members 
 

 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 No Presentations 
 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Rezoning Application – East Side of John R, North of Big Beaver, Section 24 – 

From P-1 and R-1E to B-1 (File Number: Z-677 B)  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City is in receipt of a rezoning request, from P-1 and R-1E to B-1, File 
Number Z-677 B, as demonstrated by the Ordinance to amend Chapter 39 of the Code of the 
City of Troy;  
 
WHEREAS, The application is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan, and is compatible 
with surrounding zoning districts and land uses; and 
 
WHEREAS, The rezoning is recommended for approval by the Planning Commission; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the proposed 
rezoning from P-1 and R-1E to B-1; and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 28, 2008 

 

- 2 - 

 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Zoning District Map. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

C-2 Request for Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – IACNA, 

International Automotive Components Group, North America, 750-800 Chicago   

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD) for IACNA, for property known as 750 – 800 Chicago, Troy, MI. 48083, Parcels # 88-20-
35-276-003 and 88-20-35-276-004, in accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2006-
06-238; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to 
forward a copy of this resolution to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

C-3 Request to Consider Granting an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) 

to IACNA, International Automotive Components Group, North America, 750-800 

Chicago 

 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the Troy City Council on January 28, 2008, 
established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 750 – 800 Chicago, 
Troy, MI. 48083, Parcels # 88-20-35-276-003 and 88-20-35-276-004;  
 
WHEREAS, An application has been submitted by IACNA (International Automotive 
Components Group North America), for an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for 
personal property at 750 – 800 Chicago, Troy, MI. 48083, for five (5) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on January 28, 
2008, held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the 
possibility that the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for IACNA, at 
750 – 800 Chicago, Troy, MI. 48083 may have the effect of substantially impeding the 
operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 28, 2008 

 

- 3 - 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE GRANTING 
of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for IACNA, at, 750 – 800 Chicago, Troy, 
MI 48083 shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of Troy or the other taxing 

units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING of the Industrial Facilities 
Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City of Troy, or the other 
taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for 
an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for IACNA, at 750 – 800 Chicago, Troy, MI, 
48083, Parcels # 88-20-35-276-003 and 88-20-35-276-004, for personal property for a term of 

five (5) years, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement between the City of 
Troy and IACNA, in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and IACNA, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Clerk to 
complete the application and transmit same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, 
P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 

during the Public Comment section under item 10“E” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 28, 2008 

 

- 4 - 

 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 10 “E”.  

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Planning 

Commission b) City Council Appointments: Board of Zoning Appeals; and Traffic 

Committee   

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceeds the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 

(a) Mayoral Appointments  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 

 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Planning Commission 

 
Appointed by Mayor (9-Regular) –  3-Year Terms 

 

 Unexpired Term 12/31/08 

 

 Term Expires 12/31/10 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

(b) City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 28, 2008 

 

- 5 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following person(s) to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Board of Zoning Appeals  
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 

Planning Commission Rep Term Expires 01/31/09 

 

Planning Commission Alternate Rep Term Expires 01/31/09 

 

Traffic Committee  
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular) – 3 Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/11 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-2  Rescind Bid Award/Re-Award Contract – Rough Mow Various Municipal Sites 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-01- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, On December 18, 2006, a contract to furnish three-year requirements for rough 
mowing of various municipal sites and abandoned properties with an option to renew for two 
additional years was awarded to the low total bidder, Great Lakes Landscaping of Warren, MI 
(Resolution # 2006-12-379-E4a); and 
 
WHEREAS, Great Lakes Landscaping has requested termination of the contract as they found 
it to be economically unfeasible to continue;   
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS with prejudice the 
contract to furnish all labor, tools, equipment and transportation for rough mowing of various 

municipal sites and abandoned properties from Great Lakes Landscaping, and hereby  RE-

AWARDS to the next lowest acceptable bidder, Steele’s Services of Auburn Hills, at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation opened November 21, 2006, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with the contract expiring December 31, 
2009. 
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 28, 2008 

 

- 6 - 

 

E-3 2008 Poverty Exemption Guidelines 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-01- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That pursuant to MCL 211.7u, Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 
proposed “Poverty Exemption Guidelines” for 2008, as presented by the City Assessor in a 

memorandum dated December 18, 2007, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-4 Approval of MDOT Loan Agreement – Contract No. 07-7734, Stephenson Highway, 

14 Mile to I-75 – Project No. 02.201.5 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-01- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the MDOT Loan Agreement, Contract 
No. 07-7734, between the City of Troy and the Michigan Department of Transportation for the 
purpose of assisting the City in financing the reconstruction of Stephenson Highway, from 14 
Mile to I-75 with the use of a short-term loan from MDOT, Project No. 02.201.5 and 

AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-5 Approval of MDOT Advance Construction Contract – Contract No. 07-5734, 

Stephenson Highway, 14 Mile to I-75 – Project No. 02.201.5 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-01- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES MDOT Advance Construction 
Contract No. 07-5734 between the City of Troy and the Michigan Department of Transportation 
for the reconstruction of Stephenson Highway, from 14 Mile to I-75, Project No. 02.201.5 and 

AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 28, 2008 

 

- 7 - 

Yes: 
No: 
 

E-6 Traffic Committee Recommendations – January 16, 2008 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-01- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

(a) Installation of  DO NOT BLOCK INTERSECTION Sign with Flags on Northbound 

Rochester Road, South of Bishop    
 

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. ___________ be ISSUED for the installation of a 
DO NOT BLOCK INTERSECTION sign with flags on it on northbound Rochester Road, south 
of Bishop. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-7 Milano Development v. City of Troy et. al. 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-01- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Consent Judgment in the matter 
of Milano Development Company, Inc. v City of Troy, et. al., (Oakland County Circuit Court 

Case No. 06-079401-CZ), a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Assistant City 
Attorney to sign the Consent Judgment for entry with the Court. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-8 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Brycewood Site Condominium, 9 

Units/Lots Proposed, East Side of Evanswood Road, North of Square Lake Road, 

Section 1 – R-1D 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-01- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 28, 2008 

 

- 8 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the preliminary site condominium 
plan, as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family 
Residential Development) for the development of a One-Family Residential Site Condominium, 
known as Brycewood Site Condominium, located on the east side of Evanswood, north of 
Square Lake Road, in Section 1, including 9 home sites, also including a 28-foot wide paved 
street, terminating in a cul-de-sac, within a 40-foot private easement, within the R-1D zoning 
district, being 3.376 acres in size. 
 
Yes: 
No:     

 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 

motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 12 “F”.  

 

F-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-01-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of January 7, 2008 

be APPROVED as submitted. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 28, 2008 

 

- 9 - 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Submitted 

   
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County CLEMIS Cooperative 

Purchasing Contract – Mobile Data Computers (MDC’s) Increase in CLEMIS MDC 

Participation Fees     
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-01- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase Motorola 
MW810 mobile workstations including WLAN antennae from Motorola through the Oakland 
County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement at an estimated cost of $5,300.00 each, with any 
other options and accessories discounted at 20% off list prices; and   
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES annual usage fees 
to Oakland County Court and Law Enforcement Management Information System (CLEMIS) for 
an estimated quantity of fifty (50) Mobile Data Computers (MDC’s) at an estimated cost of 
$63,150.00 per year.  
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Community Center 

Carpet     
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-01- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to complete the Troy 
Community Center carpeting project to the low bidder, Conventional Carpet, Inc. of Sterling 
Heights, MI, for an estimated total cost of $20,811.00, at prices contained in the bid tabulation 

opened January 7, 2008, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: MITN Purchasing Cooperative – Gasoline and 

Diesel Fuel     
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-01- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES two-year cooperative contracts to 
purchase gasoline and diesel fuel in truck transport and tank wagon deliveries with an option to 
renew for two (2) additional years from the low bidders meeting specifications - Mansfield Oil 
Company of Gainesville, GA and RKA Petroleum Companies of Romulus, MI, through the City 
of Sterling Heights bid process and extended to the MITN Purchasing Cooperative at factors 
and prices contained in the bid tabulation opened December 11, 2007, a copy of which shall be 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 28, 2008 

 

- 10 - 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting with a contract expiration of January 31, 
2010. 

 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 07-9 – Section 

4 Weir Control Structure Project Re-Bid     
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-01- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 07-9, Section 4 weir control 
structure, to DeAngelis Landscape, Inc., 22425 Van Horn Road, Woodhaven, MI  48183 at an 
estimated total cost of $393,725.00; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 

requirements, and if additional work is required, Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES such 
additional work in an amount not to exceed 25% of the total project cost. 

 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Oakland County Cooperative 

Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles     
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-01- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES contracts to purchase fourteen (14) 
2008 vehicles for the Police and Public Works departments from Buff Whelan Chevrolet of 
Sterling Heights, MI, and three (3) vehicles for the Police Department from Red Holman 
Pontiac GMC of Westland, MI through Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreements at 
an estimated total cost of $251,700.00 and $63,855.00 respectively.   
 

F-5 Request for Acceptance of Three Permanent Easements for Water Main, Sanitary 

Sewer and Emergency Ingress/Egress – SAAAM-Troy, LLC, Section 26, Sidwell 

#88-20-26-200-069 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-01- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the three permanent easements for 
water main, sanitary sewer and emergency ingress/egress from property owner SAAAM-Troy, 
LLC, having Sidwell #88-20-26-200-069; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the permanent easements with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall 

be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 28, 2008 

 

- 11 - 

F-6 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Sidewalk, Public Utilities 

and Drainage – Rochester Professional Building, LLC, Section 3, Sidwell #88-20-

03-226-104 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-01- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the permanent easement for sidewalk, 
public utilities and drainage from property owner Rochester Professional Building, LLC, having  
Sidwell #88-20-03-226-104; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the permanent easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-7 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement – John R Road Improvements, 

Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #47 – 

Sidwell #88-20-02-228-037 – John and Nancy Lozenkovski/Milos and Vesa 

Miloshevski 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-01- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between John and Nancy Lozenkovski and Milos and Vesa Miloshevski, 
owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-02-228-037, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition 
of right-of-way for John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard in the 
amount of $172,000.00, plus closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-8 Contract Extension – Standard and Compound Water Meters 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-01- 
 
WHEREAS, On April 12, 2004, Troy City Council approved a two-year contract to provide 
standard and compound water meters with an option to renew for two additional years to the 
low bidder, S.L.C. Meter Service, Inc. of Davisburg, MI (Resolution #2004-04-190-E10);  
 
WHEREAS, The option to renew was exercised and approved by Troy City Council on 
December 19, 2005 (Resolution #2005-12-546-E4e); and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 28, 2008 

 

- 12 - 

WHEREAS, S.L.C. Meter Service, Inc. has agreed to extend a one-year contract under the 
same prices, terms and conditions as the original contract with the exception of an increase in 
the trade-in allowance for 2” meters and compound meters; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXTENDS the current 
contract to purchase standard and compound water meters from S.L.C. Meter Service, Inc. of 

Davisburg, MI, at unit prices as detailed on Appendix A, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting, with the contract expiring December 31, 2008. 
 

F-9 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main – The Elizabeth 

G. Ford Revocable Living Trust and Barbara J. Sackner, Sidwell #88-20-20-476-047 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-01- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the permanent easement for water 
main from The Elizabeth G. Ford Revocable Living Trust and Barbara J. Sackner, owners of 
the property having  Sidwell #88-20-20-476-047; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the permanent easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-10 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement for John R Road Improvements, 

Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #67 – 

Sidwell #88-20-01-151-048 – Mark and Elizabeth Abro 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-01- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the agreement to purchase realty for 
public purposes between Mark and Elizabeth Abro, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-
01-151-048, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for John R Road 
Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard in the amount of $11,700.00, plus 
closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 28, 2008 

 

- 13 - 

 

F-11 Request from Congregation Shir Tikvah to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions 

– East Side of Northfield Parkway 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-01- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES the no parking restrictions on the east 
side of Northfield Parkway from the parking lot entrance to Congregation Shir Tikvah to the 
entrance to Boulan Park, on Saturday, February 9, 2008, 6:00 PM – 12:00 midnight, and 
Friday, April 11, 2008, 7:00 PM – 11:00 PM. 
 

F-12 Request to Permit Fireworks at Mon Jin Lau 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-01- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES City Ordinances Chapter 98, 98.05.16 
Fireworks and Chapter 93, 3301.1.3 Fireworks for the purpose of celebrating Chinese New 
Year at the Mon Jin Lau restaurant, located at 1515 East Maple Road, on Wednesday, 
February 6, 2008; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the Fire Prevention 
Division personnel to inspect the fireworks to be used and the site to assure compliance with 
applicable standards for fireworks display. 
     

F-13 Application for Transfer of Class C License – Cameron Mitchell Restaurants, LLC 
 

(a) New License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-01- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from Cameron 
Mitchell Restaurants, Inc., to transfer ownership of 2007 Class C licensed business from 
Hooters of Troy, in escrow  located at 1686 John R, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 

(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-01- 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in 
the event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 28, 2008 

 

- 14 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Cameron Mitchell Restaurants, Inc., to transfer ownership of 2007 Class C licensed 
business from Hooters of Troy, in escrow located at 1686 John R, Troy, MI 48083, and 

AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-14 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Cathy Killian, 

President – Troy Foundation for Educational Excellence 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-01- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Troy Foundation for 
Educational Excellence, asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in 
the community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license. 
 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  

a)  Michigan NextEnergy Exemptions – February 18, 2008      
    

G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced    

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1  No Council Comments Advanced   
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 28, 2008 

 

- 15 - 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  

a) Historic District Commission/Final – September 18, 2007  

b) Historic District Commission/Final – October 16, 2007  

c) Cable Advisory Committee/Final – October 18, 2007 

d) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – November 1, 2007 

e) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – November 13, 2007  

f) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – November 20, 2007  

g) Historic District Commission/Final – November 20, 2007 

h) Planning Commission/Draft – December 11, 2007  

i) Planning Commission/Final – December 11, 2007  

j) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – December 12, 2007 

k) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Final – December 12, 2007  

l) Library Advisory Board Minutes/Final – December 13, 2007  

m) Historic District Commission/Final – December 18, 2007  

n) Downtown Development Authority/Final – December 19, 2007 

o) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – January 2, 2008  

p) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – January 8, 2008  

q) Planning Commission/Draft – January 8, 2008 

r) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – January 14, 2008  

s) Cable Advisory Committee/Draft – January 16, 2008 
 

J-2 Department Reports:   

a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of December, 2007  

b) Building Department – Permits Issued July through December, 2007  

c) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Year 2007  

d) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting BidNet On-Line Auction and Mid-Thumb 
Auctioneering Services – December, 2007  

e) City of Troy Quarterly Financial Report – December 31, 2007  
 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  

a) Letter of Thanks to Troy Police Department from John Yoho, Arvin Meritor, in 
Appreciation of the Service Received from Officer Stacey and PSA Stark  

b) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Sgt. David Smith, Sterling Heights Police 
Department, Regarding the Assistance with Arrest of Robbery Suspect Received from 
Lt. Houghton and Officers Livingston, Haddad, Kelly and Brandimore  

c) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Macomb County Sheriff Mark Hackel Regarding the 
Assistance Received with an Arrest 

d) Letter to Sam Lamerato from Senator John Pappageorge Commending the City of Troy 
Fleet Maintenance Department on being named the Second Best Fleet in North America  

e) Letter of Thanks to Director of Building & Zoning Mark Stimac from Joy Powell, General 
Manager of Oakland Mall, Commending the Efforts of Gary Bowers and Mitch Grusnick        

 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:   

a) City of Madison Heights – Resolution Requesting Preservation of Existing Channel 
Locations for Public, Government and Educational Access Channels  

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 28, 2008 

 

- 16 - 

J-5  Calendar 
 

J-6  Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting Draft Minutes – November 15, 2007 
 

J-7  Communication from Director of Parks and Recreation Carol Anderson Regarding 

Michigan Turfgrass Environmental Stewardship Program – Sanctuary Lake Golf 

Course 
 

J-8  Communication from Planning Director Mark Miller Regarding Election of Planning 

Commission Officers and Appointment of Board of Zoning Appeals 

Representatives - 2008 
 

J-9  Communication from City Engineer Steve Vandette Regarding Request for Federal 

Aid Funding – FY 2012 – Next Phase Projects 
 

J-10  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding 

Notice of Hearing for the Customers of Consumers Energy Company – Case No. 

U-15454 
 

J-11  Actuarial Valuation – Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)  
 

J-12  Communication from City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew Regarding Proposed 

Resolution for No Reason Absentee Voting 

 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 

have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  January 28, 2008 

 

- 17 - 

 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested   
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

Monday, February 18, 2008 
1.  Michigan NextEnergy Exemptions 

 

 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, February 4, 2008 ........................................................ Regular City Council 

Wednesday, February 13, 2008 (Liquor Violation Hearing) ...... Regular City Council 

Monday, February 18, 2008 ...................................................... Regular City Council 

Wednesday, February 20, 2008 (Liquor Violation Hearing) ...... Regular City Council 

Monday, March 3, 2008 ............................................................ Regular City Council 

Monday, March 17, 2008 .......................................................... Regular City Council 

 



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

January 28, 2008 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 
CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 No Presentations  

campbellld
Text Box
A-01



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

January 28, 2008 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items  

campbellld
Text Box
B-01



 
 
DATE: January 11, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Rezoning Application – East side of John R, North of Big Beaver, 

Section 24 – From P-1 and R-1E to B-1 (File Number: Z 677 B) 
 

 
Background: 
 
 

 The Planning Commission recommended approval of the request to rezone the subject 
parcels to B-1 at the December 11, 2007 Regular meeting.   
 

 The subject parcels are classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Local Service Area.  The 
Local Service Area classification has a primary correlation with the B-1 Local Business Zoning 
District.  The application therefore is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan. 
 

 The applicant is the City of Troy.  The B-1 zoning is more consistent with existing zoning and 
land use in the adjacent area than the underlying zoning.  

 

 The subject property is approximately 1.30 acres in area and is comprised of two separate 
parcels.  The northern property is approximately 0.88 acres in size, is zoned R-1E One Family 
Residential, is owned by Detroit Edison and used as a utility sub-station.  The southern 
property is approximately 0.42 acres in size, is zoned P-1 Vehicular Parking, is owned by 
Grace Christian Learning Center and is used as an off-street parking area for a child daycare 
facility. 

 

 Child care centers and utility buildings are permitted in the B-1 Local Business District.  The 
northern portion of the subject property will continue to be used as a utility sub-station.  The 
southern portion of the subject property will continue to be used as an off-street parking area 
and for a possible expansion of the existing child daycare facility. 
 

 The application is consistent with the general character of the area and compatible with 
adjacent zoning districts and land uses. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



Financial Considerations: 
 

 There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

 City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

 Approval of the rezoning application would be consistent with City Council Goal III (Retain and 
attract investment while encouraging redevelopment). 

 
 
Options: 
 

 City Council can approve or deny the rezoning application. 
 
 
 

 

Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Planning Commission report dated December 3, 2007. 
3. Minutes from the December 11, 2007 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File /Z-677 B 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-677 B Daycare and Utility Substation Sec 24\CC Public Hearing 01 28 08.doc 

 
 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
File Number Z-677 B 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 of the 
Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Zoning District Map 
 
This Ordinance shall amend the Zoning District Map, from P-1 Vehicular Parking and 
R-1E Low Density Residential to B-1 Local Business, for parcels 88-20-24-352-047 
and part of 88-20-24-352-046, located on the east side of John R, north of Big 
Beaver, Section 24, and described in the following legal description and illustrated on 
the attached Certificate of Survey drawing: 
 
 T2N, R11E, SW ¼ of Section 24 
 
 Lots 27 and 28 of Big Beaver Poultry Farms Subdivision (Liber 23, page 14, of 
 Oakland County Plats), excluding the westerly 27 ft. thereof.  Containing 1.30 
 acres, more or less, and subject to easements of record. 
 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 



Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
_______ day of _____________, 2008. 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-677 B Daycare and Utility Substation Sec 24\ZOTA 677 B Ordinance 01 28 08.doc 

 



JO
HN 

R

CO
OL

ID
GE

CR
OO

KS

RO
CH

ES
TE

R

DE
QU

IN
DR

E

LONG LAKE

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75
MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

AD
AM

S



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



JO
HN

R

ORPINGTON

E BIG BEAVER

REZONING REQUEST
EXISTING DAYCARE & UTILITY SUB-STATION
FROM P-1 & R-1E TO B-1
E SIDE OF JOHN R, N OF BIG BEAVER
(2051 E. BIG BEAVER & 3080 JOHN R)
SEC. 24  (Z-677 B)

SUBJECT PARCEL

0 100 200 300 400 50050
Feet ³



JO
HN

R

ORPINGTON

E BIG BEAVER

CJ-31

CJ-22CJ-16 PUD

R-1E

B-1

P-1

B-2

B-3

R-EC

PUD #8

REZONING REQUEST
EXISTING DAYCARE & UTILITY SUB-STATION
FROM P-1 & R-1E TO B-1
E SIDE OF JOHN R, N OF BIG BEAVER
(2051 E. BIG BEAVER & 3080 JOHN R)
SEC. 24  (Z-677 B)

SUBJECT PARCEL

0 100 200 300 400 50050
Feet ³





 1 

DATE: December 3, 2007 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 Ronald Figlan, Planner 
 Paula Preston Bratto, Planner 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION – Proposed Child Care 

Outdoor Play Area, East side of John R, North of Big Beaver, Section 24 – 
From P-1 and R-1E to B-1 (Z 677 B) 

 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owners are Grace Christian Learning Center LLC and Detroit Edison.  The applicant 
is the City of Troy. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the east side of John R and north of Big Beaver, in section 24. 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
The subject property is approximately 1.30 acres in area and is comprised of two 
separate parcels.  The northern property is approximately 0.88 acres in size and is 
owned by Detroit Edison.  The southern property is approximately 0.42 acres in size 
and is owned by Grace Christian Learning Center. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The northern portion of the subject property owned by Detroit Edison is used as a utility 
sub-station.  The southern portion of the subject property owned by Grace Christian 
Learning Center is used as an off-street parking area for a child daycare facility. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
The northern portion of the subject property is zoned R-1E One Family Residential.  
The southern portion of the subject property is zoned P-1 Vehicular Parking.   
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
B-1 Local Business. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
Child care centers and utility buildings are permitted in the B-1 Local Business District.  
The northern portion of the subject property owned by Detroit Edison will continue to be 
used as a utility sub-station.  The southern portion of the subject property owned by 
Grace Christian Learning Center will continue to be used as an off-street parking area 
and for a possible expansion of the existing child daycare facility.   



 2 

Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1E One Family Residential (one parcel controlled by consent judgment). 
South: B-1 Local Business. 
East: R-1E One Family Residential. 
West: B-2 Community Business. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Medical office and single family residential. 
South: Child care center. 
East: Single family residential. 
West: Grocery store. 
 
 

ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in Proposed B-1 Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
 Local retail businesses which supply commodities on the premises, for persons 
 residing in adjacent residential areas, such as but not limited to: groceries, meats, 
 dairy products, baked goods or other foods dispensed for consumption off the site, 
 hardware, drugs and pharmaceuticals. 
 
 Specialty shops such as, but not limited to: antique shops, craft shops, and shops 
 for the sale of gifts and notions. 
 
 Personal service establishments which perform services on the premises, such as, 
 but not limited to: repair shops, beauty parlors and barber shops, and self-service 
 laundries. 
 
 Dry cleaning establishments.  
 
 Business establishments which perform services on the premises such as but not 
 limited to: banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, loan companies, 
 insurance companies, and real estate offices.  
 
 Professional services including the following: medical clinics, (out-patient only) and 
 offices of doctors, dentists, osteopaths and similar or allied professions. 
 
 Post office and similar governmental office buildings, serving persons living in the 
 adjacent residential area.  
 
 Other uses similar to the above uses. 
  
 Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted uses. 



 3 

USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 
 City and school district buildings, public utility buildings, telephone 
 exchange buildings, electric transformer stations and substations, gas 
 regulator stations, and water and sewage pumping stations, without storage 
 yards. 
 Nursery schools, day nurseries and child care centers (not including dormitories). 
 
 Incidental customer seating as an accessory to food sales establishments. 
 
 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on John R Road. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Local Service Area.  The Local 
Service Area classification has a primary correlation with the B-1 Local Business District 
Zoning District.  The application therefore is consistent with the intent of the Future Land 
Use Plan. 
 
Compliance with Location Standards of the B-1 District:  
There are no Location Standards for the B-1 Local Commercial District. 
 
 

CITY MANAGEMENT RECOMMENDATION 
 
The rezoning application is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan and 
compatible with abutting zoning districts and uses.   
 
City Management recommends approval of the rezoning request. 
 
 
cc: Applicant 

File / Z 677 B 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-677 B Daycare and Utility Substation Sec 24\PC Rezoning Report 12 11 07.doc 

 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL DECEMBER 11, 2007 
  

 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (Z 677-B) – Existing Grace Christian 

Child Care and DTE Sub-Station, East side of John R Road (2051 E. Big Beaver and 
3080 John R), North of Big Beaver, Section 24, From P-1 (Vehicular Parking) and R-1E 
(One Family Residential) to B-1 (Local Business) 
 
Mr. Tagle recused himself from discussion and vote on this item.  He said his company 
has had a contractual relationship with an organization associated to the matter.   
 
[Mr. Tagle exited the meeting.] 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed City-
initiated rezoning request, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the rezoning request.   
 
Chair Schultz advised that five (5) affirmative votes are required for a recommendation of 
approval of the rezoning request, and asked Mr. Miller if the City would like to go forward 
with the request at this time. 
 
Mr. Miller, as the City’s representative, requested to go forward with the matter. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
There was brief discussion on: 

 Required wall on small section of property abutting P-1. 

 DTE’s responsibility to put up wall on northern portion of site at the time of future site 
plan revisions. 

 Effects of potential expansion of existing child care facility. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-12-179 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council that 
the R-1E and P-1 to B-1 rezoning request, located on the east side of John R, north of 
Big Beaver, within Section 24, being approximately 1.30 acres in size, be granted. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Schultz, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
Absent: Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

[Mr. Tagle returned to meeting.] 



 

  
December 18, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager - Services 

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing for Establishment of an Industrial Development District 

(IDD) for IACNA, 750 – 800 Chicago, Troy, MI. 48083  
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 IACNA (International Automotive Components Group, North America) is currently located in 

Dearborn.  They will be moving their validation/prototypes center, that does testing and 
development of automotive interior products into two (2) building on Chicago, 750 and 800, in 
Troy.  They have a five (5) year lease, with additional years optional.  They will be moving 
approximately $600,000 in equipment to this location (where only installation costs may be 
abated), and purchasing approximately $2,100,000 in new equipment and leasehold 
improvements.   

 
They are requesting an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to be issued by the City 
of Troy (application attached).  This is according to Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended) and local 
City policy.  As you will recall, this amounts to an approximate 50% reduction in personal property 
taxes that they would pay, over a twelve (12) year period.  This percentage is not inclusive of 
State Education Tax (6.00 Mill) or School Operating Tax (18.00 mills).  These taxes have been 
exempted on Personal Property of Industrial companies by the new Michigan Business Tax of 
2007.  It does now include Supplemental Millage in the calculation.   
 
In order to grant the IFEC, an Industrial Development District (IDD) must first be established.  This 
District sets the boundaries wherein the exemption may exist. 
 
The IDD and the IFEC do require separate Public Hearings, unless the local unit has delineated all 
areas where IDD’s may locate, in advance.  Council’s policy is to set the district as each 
application is received.  For this reason, the bulk of the information for this application is presented 
with the District public hearing. 

 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



 
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The estimated amount of investment in personal property is $2,708,245 for the project.  Over a 

five (5) year life, the estimated total taxes are $110,908.06, of which $35,924.65 would be City 
taxes. 

 
An abatement amounts to a savings of $55,454.03 in total taxes, of which $17,962.32 would be 
saved on City taxes.  This is the financial cost to all taxing authorities.  

 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 

Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The application is in compliance with the amended tax abatement policy of the City Council of the 

City of Troy (Resolution #2006-06-238, attached).  
 

City Council Goal II, “Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment” is met with 
this re-location.  IACNA will be occupying a 51,376 square feet of vacant industrial space. 

 
Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend establishing the 
District. 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council has the option to establish an Industrial Development district, or not.  If Council does 

not establish a District, then no Exemption can be granted.  A public hearing is still necessary to 
deny the exemption. 

 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T.\IACNA\CouncilPakIDD PH 







Michigan Department of Treasury
3222 (Rev. 6-05)

Is this project:

Real Property?

Personal Property?

Both Real and Personal Property - New Facility?

Both Real and Personal Property - Rehabilitation Facility?

Both New and Replacement Facility?

YES NO

YES NO

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

REMARKS

A. Has the proper local authority reviewed the

plan?

B. Is the project located in a certified industrial

park?

C. Is this a renovation or expansion of an existing

building?

Will this project require improvement of your road

service?

Will this project require improvement of your

sanitary sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your storm

sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your water

services?

Will this project require additional police

personnel, police equipment or a need for new

police building expansion?

Will this project require the need for additional fire

personnel, additional or specialized fire equipment

or the need for a new fire building?

Will this project require other costs?

Are costs of infrastructure elements to be provided

through Local Development Finance Authority or

Tax Increment Finance Authority Bonds?

If you answered yes to any of questions 2 through 8, the appropriate sections of the Supplement to Fiscal Statement form 

must be completed and accompany the IFT application. Call (517) 373-3272 to obtain that form.

Estimated Project Investment (not assessed value):

Real Property Personal Property Total

Applicant Name

Signature Name and Title of Local Governmental Unit Official

This is to certify that the following has been provided as accurately as possible.

LOCAL UNIT CERTIFICATION

Fiscal Statement (to be completed by local unit)

$2,708,245.00 $2,708,245.00

Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor

licarila
Text Box
International Automotive Components Group North America







Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source 
information represented should be consulted for verification. 

Page 1 of 1

12/4/2007http://gis/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=TROY&ClientVersion=4.0&Fo...



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source 
information represented should be consulted for verification. 

Page 1 of 1

12/4/2007http://gis/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=TROY&ClientVersion=4.0&Fo...



 
Legal Descriptions For IACNA IDD and IFEC request  12/04/07 
 
88-20-35-276-003   800 Chicago Rd, Troy MI 48083 
T2N, R11E, SEC 35  
SUPERVISOR'S PLAT NO 29  
NLY 199.67 FT OF LOT 13  
05/01/86 TRAN FR 226-082 
 
 
 
88-20-35-276-004   750 Chicago Rd, Troy MI 48083 
T2N, R11E, SEC 35  
SUPERVISOR'S PLAT NO 29  
LOT 13 EXC NLY 199.67 FT, ALSO  
ALL OF LOT 14  
05/01/86 TRAN FR 226-083 



Market Value 2,708,245 2,482,648 2,069,039 1,551,986 1,034,864 603,843 302,042 125,921 42,007 10,514 1,756 147 0
50% of Value 1,354,122 1,241,324 1,034,520 775,993 517,432 301,922 151,021 62,961 21,004 5,257 878 73 0

Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
Depreciation 0.9167 0.8334 0.7501 0.6668 0.5835 0.5002 0.4169 0.3336 0.2503 0.1670 0.0837 0.0004

Taxable Value 1,241,324 1,034,520 775,993 517,432 301,922 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes
100% of 
Millage

Trans 0.59000 $732.38 $610.37 $457.84 $305.28 $178.13 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
County 4.64610 $5,767.32 $4,806.48 $3,605.34 $2,404.04 $1,402.76 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Int Schools 2.94300 $3,653.22 $3,044.59 $2,283.75 $1,522.80 $888.56 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Comm Coll 1.58440 $1,966.75 $1,639.09 $1,229.48 $819.82 $478.36 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

State Ed 0.00000 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
School Op 5.95940 $7,397.55 $6,165.12 $4,624.45 $3,083.59 $1,799.27 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Sch Debt 3.27640 $4,067.07 $3,389.50 $2,542.46 $1,695.31 $989.22 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Admin 0.37030 $459.66 $383.08 $287.35 $191.61 $111.80 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
City 9.28000 $11,519.49 $9,600.34 $7,201.22 $4,801.77 $2,801.83 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Total 28.64960 $35,563.44 $29,638.57 $22,231.89 $14,824.23 $8,649.94 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total 5 Years $110,908.06
Total City 5 Yr $35,924.65

50% Total 12 Yr $55,454.03
50% Total City 12 $17,962.32 Net Total City Taxes Abated

City of Troy - Assessing Department
International Automotive Components Group North America

Estimate of Total Taxes and Tax Savings for IFEC Application

Net Total Taxes Abated



F-5 Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement for Manufacturing and 
Headquarter Companies 

 
Resolution #2006-06-238 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has the economic objective of (a) increasing employment 
opportunities, (b) diversifying and stabilizing the industrial base of the community, (c) reducing 
economic obsolescence of the industrial base, (d) providing homogenous industrial areas, (e) 
encouraging industrial expansion, (f) providing for improved public facilities in industrial areas, 
and (g) encouraging attractive, viable industrial sites, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198), as amended, empowers 
cities to establish Industrial Development Districts (IDD) and to grant tax exemptions for certain 
industrial properties which meet certain criteria established by the Act; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that the following 
criteria are to be met, applied or measured by the City Manager or his designees in the review 
of areas and locations to be considered for designation as Industrial Development Districts 
(IDD) by the City Council: 
 

1) That the tax exemption shall not apply to real property except those building 
improvements which are uniquely required to support the personal property to be 
abated; and 

 
2) That the tax exemption shall not apply to leasehold improvements or building 

improvements except those uniquely required to support personal property to be 
abated; and  

 
3) That said abatement of taxes shall cease at such time as applicant fails to prove 

by factual evidence that such personal property is being used in compliance with 
the basic guidelines established above. 

 
4) The applicant would document that they are Michigan Economic Growth Authority 

(MEGA) eligible, would be filling vacant Troy space, or will retain or expand the 
number of jobs in Troy. 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the term of abatement for any and all property meeting the 
aforementioned criteria SHALL NOT exceed 12 years, it being the INTENT OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL TO APPROVE various lengths of abatements to the extent provided by laws of the 
State of Michigan. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Lambert, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 



December 18, 2007 
 
 
To: State Tax Commission 
 P.O. Box 30471 
 Lansing, MI 48909-7971 
 
From: Leger (Nino) Licari, Assessor 
 
Re: Affidavit of Application Fees For IFEC 
 
 
 
 
  This affidavit attests that no payment of any kind has been made or 
promised in exchange for favorable consideration of an exemption 
certificate application by the City of Troy, in regards to the application of                     
IACNA, 750 – 800 Chicago, Troy, Michigan 48083. 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________               ______________ 
Signed, Leger (Nino) Licari, City Assessor                                           Dated 
 
 
____________________________________________                     __________________ 
Signed,                                                                                                 Dated 
 
 
 
 
 









licarila
Text Box
Confidential

licarila
Text Box
Note:  To insure the confidentiality of the Landlord/Tenant relationship, only pertinent sections of the leases are attached.



licarila
Text Box
Confidential





licarila
Text Box
Confidential



licarila
Text Box
Confidential





CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, January 28, 2008 at 7:30 P.M. to 
consider the request from IACNA., for the establishment of an Industrial Development 
District (IDD) at the following location: 
 
88-20-35-276-003  800 Chicago Rd, Troy,  MI.  48083 
T2N, R11E, Section 35 
 
And  
88-20-35-276-004   750 Chicago Rd, Troy, MI. 48083 
T2N, R11E, Section 35 
 
You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
WARREN CONSOLIDATED 
SCHOOLS 
31300 ANITA 
WARREN MI 48093-1697 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
MACOMB INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS 
44001 GARFIELD 
CLINTON TWSHP MI 48038-1100 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
PATRICK DOHANY 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
SECO TOOLS, INC 
MICHAEL L NEEL 
11177 E 8 MILE RD 
WARREN  MI 48089 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



 

  
December 18, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager - Services 

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing to consider granting an Industrial Facilities Exemption 

Certificate (IFEC) to IACNA, 750 – 800 Chicago, Troy, MI. 48083 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 IACNA (International Automotive Components North America) is currently located in Dearborn.  

They are seeking an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to facilitate their ability to 
move to  Troy. 

 
This is according to Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended) and local City policy.   
 

Financial Considerations: 
 
 The estimated amount of investment in personal property is $2,708,245 for the project.  Over a 

five (5) year life, the estimated total taxes are $110,908.06, of which $35,924.65 would be City 
taxes. 

 
A 50% abatement amounts to a savings of $55,454.03 in total taxes, of which $17,962.32 would 
be saved on City taxes.  This is the financial cost to all taxing authorities.  

 
 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 

Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-03



 
 The application is in compliance with the recently amended tax abatement policy of the City 

Council of the City of Troy (Resolution #2006-06-238, attached).  
 

City Council Goal II, “Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment” is met with 
this expansion.   

 
Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend establishing the 
District. 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council has the option of granting the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate for any period 

of one (1) to twelve (12) years, or not at all.   
 

This is company currently holds a 5 (five) year lease on the properties, with five (5) year options.  
Staff recommends that the Exemption be granted for a five (5) year period, with options to extend 
being executable by application from the company, and Council approval. 

 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T.\IACNA\CouncilPakIFEC PH 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, January 28, 2008 at 7:30 P.M. to 
consider the request from IACNA for the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate (IFEC) for a period not to exceed 5 years, beginning December 31, 2008, for 
personal property located at: 
 
88-20-35-276-003  800 Chicago Rd, Troy, MI.  48083 
T2N, R11E, Section 35 
 
And 
88-20-35-276-004  750 Chicago Rd, Troy, MI.  48083 
T2N, R11E, Section 35 
 
You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
WARREN CONSOLIDATED 
SCHOOLS 
31300 ANITA 
WARREN MI 48093-1697 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
MACOMB INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS 
44001 GARFIELD 
CLINTON TWSHP MI 48038-1100 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
PATRICK DOHANY 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
SECO TOOLS, INC 
MICHAEL L NEEL 
11177 E 8 MILE RD 
WARREN  MI 48089 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

January 28, 2008 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 No Postponed Items  

campbellld
Text Box
D-01



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

January 28, 2008 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 
Appointments to Boards and Committees:  

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: 

Planning Commission b) City Council Appointments: Board of 
Zoning Appeals; and Traffic Committee   

  

campbellld
Text Box
E-01



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
January 8, 2008 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Rescind Bid Award/Re-award Contract – Rough Mow Various Municipal Sites 
 
Background 
 
The City of Troy - Parks & Recreation Department manages mowing operations for various sites in 
the City.  A contract for rough mowing of various municipal sites was approved by City Council on 
December 18, 2006, with Great Lakes Landscaping of Warren, MI (Resolution #2006-12-379-E4a).  
 
� Great Lakes started mowing operations on April 18, 2007. 
� At first services provided were in the acceptable range for a new contractor.  Improvements were 

communicated via e-mail and Great Lakes addressed these concerns.   
� However, on June 25, 2007, City crews were notified to weed the medians of John R /14 Mile 

Roads, due to a lack of performance by Great Lakes.  $585.00 was deducted from Great Lakes 
invoices for that month.    

� On June 26, 2007, Great Lakes requested an increase in their contracted amounts.  Request was 
denied. 

� A major component of the contract was the mulching of all beds and trees in the contracted 
areas.  According to the specifications, all mulching was to be completed by July 31, 2007.  

� Mulching operations started the second week of June and 1/3 of the operation was completed by 
August 6, 2007. 

� Despite a good faith extension by the City, mulching was not completed as of August 13, 2007.  
As per specifications, another City contractor, who is performing similar work on civic center 
property, W. H. Canon, was called to complete the operation.  All costs associated with this 
operation were deducted from Great Lakes invoices. ($11,767.50) 

� Great Lakes again asked for an increase in their contract prices.  Request could not be honored. 
� With the exception of the weeding and mulching incidents, Great Lakes continued working at 

acceptable levels. 
� December 13, 2007, Great Lakes requested termination of their contract as it proved to be 

“economically unfeasible to continue without filing claims for additional compensation.” 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-02



Page 2 of 2 

January 8, 2008 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Rescind Bid Award/Re-award Contract – Rough Mow Various Municipal Sites 
 
 
Financial Considerations 
 
� The next low bidder for this contract was Rasin’s Landscape.  However, due to a default situation 

for the Streets Rough Mowing contract on August 6, 2007, they could not be considered for an 
award. 

� Steele’s Services is the next lowest acceptable bidder and the City’s cost under the new contract 
when compared with 2007 will increase an estimated $25,800 each year (2008/2009). 

� The rates the City paid in 2006 and 2007 are shown below and compared with those for the 
upcoming years (2008/2009).  

     Parks Landscaping   Great Lakes   Steele Services 
      (2006)        (2007)         (2008/2009)  
     Group #1 Weekly mowing     –               Cost per Acre 
          $36.00        $22.00   $33.50 
     Group #2 Split mowing           -  
      $31.00        $20.00   $29.50 
     Group #3 Bi-weekly mowing –  
      $25.00        $20.00   $25.50 
     Group #4 Abandon Properties - varies annually 
      N/A         $ 5.00             $    .90 
Legal Considerations 
 
� Great Lakes Landscaping will receive a written notification of default and remedies for 

reinstatement as a potential vendor after three (3) years. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
� Enhance the livability and safety of the community (Goal I)  
� Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment (Goal III) 
� Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public needs (Goal V) 
 
Options 
 
� City management recommends the Troy City Council rescind with prejudice the contract approved 

on December 18, 2006, to Great Lakes Landscaping, for Rough Mowing of Various Municipal 
Sites  (Resolution #2006-12-379-E4a).  Staff also recommends re-awarding the contract to the 
next lowest acceptable bidder, Steele’s Services of Auburn Hills, at unit prices contained in the 
bid tabulation opened November 21, 2006.  

 
 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Rescind-Re-Award Mowing / Landscape Maintenance Services.doc 









  
  December 6, 2006 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award To Low Bidder – Rough Mow – Various Municipal 

Sites 
  
Background 

• On November 21, 2006, sixteen (16) bids were received and opened for ITB-COT 06-41, to provide all 
labor, tools, equipment, and landscape maintenance services including mowing for municipal grounds 
and abandon properties for three years with an option to renew for two additional years. 

• 193 Vendors were notified via the MITN system with 4 vendor walk-ins.   
• Sixteen bidders responded, five statements of no bid received, and one vendor did not meet 

specifications for failure to provide the $500.00 bid surety check. 
 

Financial Considerations 
• Funds are available in the various contractual service accounts: 

780.7802.070  Street Island Maintenance - Major 
782.7802.070  Street Island Maintenance - Northfield Hills 
344.7802.050  Fire Halls 
276.7802.050  Cemetery Maintenance 
807.7802.070  Museum Grounds   

Legal Considerations  
• ITB-COT 06-41 was competitively bid and vendors were given the opportunity to respond with their 

level of interest in supplying landscape maintenance services including mowing for the City of Troy 
municipal grounds.  

• The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder’s submission of proper contract and bid 
documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.  

 
Policy Considerations 

• Bidding services of this type help minimize cost and increase efficiently of City government. (Goal #1) 
• Property maintenance helps retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment (Goal #2) 
• Maintenance of these properties reduces visual barriers blockages and reduces the incident of 

mosquitoes in the neighborhoods. (Goal #6) 
 

Options 
• City management and the Park and Recreation department recommend awarding the three-year 

contract for landscape maintenance services including mowing with an option to renew for two (2) 
additional years to low total bidder, Great Lakes Landscaping of Warren, for an estimated total cost of 
$57,010.00 for 2007, 2008, and 2009, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 11/21/06.  

 
Rwh  S:\John’s Review/Agenda 12.18.06 – SR1 – MowingRough Memo.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 16
Date Prepared --  11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME: **

$500.00 Check # - 477165190 314172145
PROPOSAL: Mowing Services - Landscape Maintenance
Furnish all necessarey material, labor, and equipment to provide mowing & lawn maintenance for municipal grounds

COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST
GROUP #1 - WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 42.07 Acres - 28 times per year 

YEAR ACRES
2007 42.07 22.00$            25,915.1$       33.00$            38,872.7$           
2008 42.07 22.00$            25,915.1$       33.00$            38,872.7$           
2009 42.07 22.00$            25,915.1$       33.00$            38,872.7$           

77,745.36$    116,618.04$       
GROUP #2 - SPLIT MOWING SCHEDULE - 41.45 ACRES - 24 times per year

YEAR ACRES
2007 41.45 20.00$            19,896.00$     28.00$            27,854.40$         
2008 41.45 20.00$            19,896.00$     28.00$            27,854.40$         
2009 41.45 20.00$            19,896.00$     28.00$            27,854.40$         

59,688.00$    83,563.20$         
GROUP #3 - BI-WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 39.12 ACRES - 14 times per year

YEAR ACRES
2007 39.12 20.00$            10,953.60$     22.95$            12,569.26$         
2008 39.12 20.00$            10,953.60$     22.95$            12,569.26$         
2009 39.12 20.00$            10,953.60$     22.95$            12,569.26$         

32,860.80$    37,707.77$         
GROUP #4 - ABANDON PROPERTIES - Various Locations

YEAR PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST
2007 49,000 SF 5.00$              245.00$         0.70$              34.30$                
2008 49,000 SF 5.00$              245.00$         0.70$              34.30$                
2009 49,000 SF 5.00$              245.00$         0.70$              34.30$                

735.00$         102.90$              

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 2007 57,009.72$     79,330.64$     
2008 57,009.72$     79,330.64$     
2009 57,009.72$     79,330.64$     

ESTIMATED CONTRACT TOTAL: 171,029.16$  237,991.91$      

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes Yes
DATE 11/15 &11/17 11/19 &11/20

BIDDER'S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Y/N Yes Yes

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hrs of Operation 6am-5pm 8am-6pm
Contact Phone # 810-523-8066 248.830.9288
Pager

LICENSE #: 174747 179375

INSURANCE:
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed Yes Yes

TERMS: 30 Days Net 30

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41

Rasins Landscape & Assoc IncGreat Lakes Landscaping



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 2 of 16
Date Prepared -- 11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME: **

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMEMT Y or N Yes Yes
DMS:
  Trybuski's Landscaping & Lawn Service - Reason:  No $500.00 bid deposit check as specified

NO BIDS:
  J.Q. Inc
  Kingspointe Services ** DENOTES LOW BIDDER
  Lazoen Hay & Feed
  Troy Clogg Landscape
  Williams Weed Mowing

ATTEST:
  Cheryl Stewart
  Ron Hynd
  Linda Bockstanz ____________________________________

Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G:/ITB-COT 06-41 Mowing & LandscapeMaintenace for Municipal Grounds

Great Lakes Landscaping Rasins Landscape & Assoc Inc



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 3 of 16
Date Prepared --  11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:

$500.00 Check # - 002592 681957299-8
PROPOSAL: Mowing Services - Landscape Maintenance
Furnish all necessarey material, labor, and equipment to provide mowing & lawn maintenance for municipal grounds

COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST
GROUP #1 - WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 42.07 Acres

YEAR ACRES
2007 42.07 33.50$            39,461.7$       34.92$           41,134.4$           
2008 42.07 33.50$            39,461.7$       34.92$           41,134.4$           
2009 42.07 33.50$            39,461.7$       34.92$           41,134.4$           

118,384.98$   123,403.09$       
GROUP #2 - SPLIT MOWING SCHEDULE - 41.45 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 41.45 29.50$            29,346.60$     30.07$           29,913.64$         
2008 41.45 29.50$            29,346.60$     30.07$           29,913.64$         
2009 41.45 29.50$            29,346.60$     30.07$           29,913.64$         

88,039.80$     89,740.91$         
GROUP #3 - BI-WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 39.12 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 39.12 25.50$            13,965.84$     24.25$           13,281.24$         
2008 39.12 25.50$            13,965.84$     24.25$           13,281.24$         
2009 39.12 25.50$            13,965.84$     24.25$           13,281.24$         

41,897.52$     39,843.72$         
GROUP #4 - ABANDON PROPERTIES - Various Locations

YEAR PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST
2007 49,000 SF 0.90$              44.10$            5.00$             245.00$              
2008 49,000 SF 0.90$              44.10$            5.00$             245.00$              
2009 49,000 SF 0.90$              44.10$            5.00$             245.00$              

132.30$          735.00$              

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 2007 82,818.20$     84,574.24$     
2008 82,818.20$     84,574.24$     
2009 82,818.20$    84,574.24$     

ESTIMATED CONTRACT TOTAL: 248,454.60$  253,722.72$      

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes Yes
DATE 11/3 &11/20 11/11/2006

BIDDER'S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Y/N Yes Yes

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hrs of Operation 8am-5pm 24/7
Contact Phone # 810.265.5610 248.765.7844
Pager

LICENSE #: 179713 Available Upon Request

INSURANCE:
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed Yes Yes

TERMS: Blank Net 30 Days

Parks Landscaping &
Snow Service

Steel's Services LLC



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 4 of 16
Date Prepared -- 11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:

EXCEPTIONS: Blank None

ACKNOWLEDGEMEMT Y or N Yes Yes

G:/ITB-COT 06-41 Mowing & LandscapeMaintenace for Municipal Grounds

Steele's Services LLC Parks Landscaping &
Snow Service



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 5 of 16
Date Prepared --  11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:

$500.00 Check # - 4974468592 324103
PROPOSAL: Mowing Services - Landscape Maintenance
Furnish all necessarey material, labor, and equipment to provide mowing & lawn maintenance for municipal grounds

COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST
GROUP #1 - WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 42.07 Acres

YEAR ACRES
2007 42.07 34.99$            41,216.8$       33.15$           39,049.4$           
2008 42.07 34.99$            41,216.8$       33.15$           39,049.4$           
2009 42.07 34.99$            41,216.8$       33.15$           39,049.4$           

123,650.46$   117,148.12$       
GROUP #2 - SPLIT MOWING SCHEDULE - 41.45 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 41.45 30.49$            30,331.45$     33.15$           32,977.62$         
2008 41.45 30.49$            30,331.45$     33.15$           32,977.62$         
2009 41.45 30.49$            30,331.45$     33.15$           32,977.62$         

90,994.36$     98,932.86$         
GROUP #3 - BI-WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 39.12 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 39.12 25.00$            13,692.00$     26.00$           14,239.68$         
2008 39.12 25.00$            13,692.00$     26.00$           14,239.68$         
2009 39.12 25.00$            13,692.00$     26.00$           14,239.68$         

41,076.00$     42,719.04$         
GROUP #4 - ABANDON PROPERTIES - Various Locations

YEAR PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST
2007 49,000 SF 11.43$            560.07$          0.77$             37.73$                
2008 49,000 SF 11.43$            560.07$          0.77$             37.73$                
2009 49,000 SF 11.43$            560.07$          0.77$             37.73$                

1,680.21$       113.19$              

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 2007 85,800.34$     86,304.40$     
2008 85,800.34$     86,304.40$     
2009 85,800.34$    86,304.40$     

ESTIMATED CONTRACT TOTAL: 257,401.03$  258,913.21$      

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes Yes
DATE 11/8/2006 11/14,15,16,20

BIDDER'S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Y/N Yes Yes

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hrs of Operation 8am-4pm 24/7
Contact Phone # 810.343.3884 586.531.1927
Pager

LICENSE #: Blank C007950381

INSURANCE:
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed Yes Yes

TERMS: Net 30 30 Days

Precision Landscaping
Services Inc

B&B Lawn Service Inc



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 6 of 16
Date Prepared -- 11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:

EXCEPTIONS: N/A Does not include mulching
Does not include tree & shrub
  pruning.

ACKNOWLEDGEMEMT Y or N Yes Yes

G:/ITB-COT 06-41 Mowing & LandscapeMaintenace for Municipal Grounds

B&B Lawn Service Inc Precision Landscaping
Services Inc



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 7 of 16
Date Prepared --  11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:
Tree Service Inc

$500.00 Check # - 424450457 477742834
PROPOSAL: Mowing Services - Landscape Maintenance
Furnish all necessarey material, labor, and equipment to provide mowing & lawn maintenance for municipal grounds

COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST
GROUP #1 - WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 42.07 Acres

YEAR ACRES
2007 42.07 38.00$            44,762.5$       35.95$           42,347.7$           
2008 42.07 37.24$            43,867.2$       35.95$           42,347.7$           
2009 42.07 36.50$            42,995.5$       35.95$           42,347.7$           

131,625.25$   127,042.99$       
GROUP #2 - SPLIT MOWING SCHEDULE - 41.45 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 41.45 32.00$            31,833.60$     33.95$           33,773.46$         
2008 41.45 31.36$            31,196.93$     33.95$           33,773.46$         
2009 41.45 30.74$            30,580.15$     33.95$           33,773.46$         

93,610.68$     101,320.38$       
GROUP #3 - BI-WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 39.12 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 39.12 27.00$            14,787.36$     29.50$           16,156.56$         
2008 39.12 26.46$            14,491.61$     29.50$           16,156.56$         
2009 39.12 24.94$            13,659.14$     29.50$           16,156.56$         

42,938.11$     48,469.68$         
GROUP #4 - ABANDON PROPERTIES - Various Locations

YEAR PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST
2007 49,000 SF 9.00$              441.00$          1.25$             61.25$                
2008 49,000 SF 9.00$              441.00$          1.25$             61.25$                
2009 49,000 SF 9.00$              441.00$          1.25$             61.25$                

1,323.00$       183.75$              

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 2007 91,824.44$     92,338.93$     
2008 89,996.77$     92,338.93$     
2009 87,675.83$    92,338.93$     

ESTIMATED CONTRACT TOTAL: 269,497.04$  277,016.80$      

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes Yes
DATE 1/16/2006 11/15 &11/16

BIDDER'S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Y/N Yes Yes

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hrs of Operation 8am-5pm 6am-8pm
Contact Phone # 586.823.5971 248.379.9630
Pager

LICENSE #: 179384 C002890001

INSURANCE:
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed Yes Yes

TERMS: Net 30 Days Net 30 Days

Quality LandscapeCal Fleming Landscaping &



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 8 of 16
Date Prepared -- 11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:
Tree Service Inc

EXCEPTIONS: Blank N/A

ACKNOWLEDGEMEMT Y or N Yes Yes

G:/ITB-COT 06-41 Mowing & LandscapeMaintenace for Municipal Grounds

Cal Fleming Landscaping & Quality Landscape



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 9 of 16
Date Prepared --  11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:

$500.00 Check # - 624112731 808846500-3
PROPOSAL: Mowing Services - Landscape Maintenance
Furnish all necessarey material, labor, and equipment to provide mowing & lawn maintenance for municipal grounds

COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST
GROUP #1 - WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 42.07 Acres

YEAR ACRES
2007 42.07 38.50$            45,351.5$       39.00$           45,940.4$           
2008 42.07 38.50$            45,351.5$       40.00$           47,118.4$           
2009 42.07 38.50$            45,351.5$       41.00$           48,296.4$           

136,054.38$   141,355.20$       
GROUP #2 - SPLIT MOWING SCHEDULE - 41.45 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 41.45 33.50$            33,325.80$     40.00$           39,792.00$         
2008 41.45 33.50$            33,325.80$     41.00$           40,786.80$         
2009 41.45 33.50$            33,325.80$     42.00$           41,781.60$         

99,977.40$     122,360.40$       
GROUP #3 - BI-WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 39.12 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 39.12 27.50$            15,061.20$     42.00$           23,002.56$         
2008 39.12 27.50$            15,061.20$     43.00$           23,550.24$         
2009 39.12 27.50$            15,061.20$     44.00$           24,097.92$         

45,183.60$     70,650.72$         
GROUP #4 - ABANDON PROPERTIES - Various Locations

YEAR PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST
2007 49,000 SF 9.00$              441.00$          0.98$             48.02$                
2008 49,000 SF 9.00$              441.00$          1.00$             49.00$                
2009 49,000 SF 9.00$              441.00$          1.02$             49.98$                

1,323.00$       147.00$              

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 2007 94,179.46$     108,783.02$   
2008 94,179.46$     111,504.44$   
2009 94,179.46$    114,225.86$   

ESTIMATED CONTRACT TOTAL: 282,538.38$  334,513.32$      

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes Yes
DATE 11/15/2006 11/18/2006

BIDDER'S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Y/N Yes Yes

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hrs of Operation 6am-7pm 7am-6pm
Contact Phone # 313.549.5500 586.876.1665
Pager 248.610.5078

LICENSE #: NDS013511 Blank

INSURANCE:
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed Yes Yes

TERMS: Net 15  2% discount Net 30 

Naturalistic LandscapesTiede Landscaping



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 10 of 16
Date Prepared -- 11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:

EXCEPTIONS: Blank None

ACKNOWLEDGEMEMT Y or N Yes Yes

G:/ITB-COT 06-41 Mowing & LandscapeMaintenace for Municipal Grounds

Tiede Landscaping Naturalistic Landscapes LLC



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 11 of 16
Date Prepared --  11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:

$500.00 Check # - 2116187 083461853-7
PROPOSAL: Mowing Services - Landscape Maintenance
Furnish all necessarey material, labor, and equipment to provide mowing & lawn maintenance for municipal grounds

COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST
GROUP #1 - WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 42.07 Acres

YEAR ACRES
2007 42.07 54.60$            64,316.6$       94.40$           111,199.4$         
2008 42.07 54.60$            64,316.6$       94.40$           111,199.4$         
2009 42.07 56.65$            66,731.4$       94.40$           111,199.4$         

195,364.67$   333,598.27$       
GROUP #2 - SPLIT MOWING SCHEDULE - 41.45 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 41.45 48.84$            48,586.03$     79.40$           78,987.12$         
2008 41.45 48.84$            48,586.03$     79.40$           78,987.12$         
2009 41.45 50.67$            50,406.52$     79.40$           78,987.12$         

147,578.58$   236,961.36$       
GROUP #3 - BI-WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 39.12 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 39.12 41.41$            22,679.43$     34.40$           18,840.19$         
2008 39.12 41.41$            22,679.43$     34.40$           18,840.19$         
2009 39.12 42.96$            23,528.33$     34.40$           18,840.19$         

68,887.19$     56,520.58$         
GROUP #4 - ABANDON PROPERTIES - Various Locations

YEAR PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST
2007 49,000 SF 12.57$            615.93$          2.00$             98.00$                
2008 49,000 SF 12.57$            615.93$          2.00$             98.00$                
2009 49,000 SF 13.04$            638.96$          2.00$             98.00$                

1,870.82$       294.00$              

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 2007 136,198.01$   209,124.74$   
2008 136,198.01$   209,124.74$   
2009 141,305.24$  209,124.74$   

ESTIMATED CONTRACT TOTAL: 413,701.26$  627,374.21$      

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes Yes
DATE 11/20/2006 11/15/2006

BIDDER'S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Y/N Yes Yes

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hrs of Operation 7am-7pm 9am-5pm
Contact Phone # 248.240.0447 586.615.7566
Pager 586.615.3376

LICENSE #: 179226 179716

INSURANCE:
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed Yes Yes

TERMS: 30 Net Net 30 Days

United Lawnscape IncCommercial Mowing Services Inc



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 12 of 16
Date Prepared -- 11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:

EXCEPTIONS: None N/A

ACKNOWLEDGEMEMT Y or N Yes Yes

G:/ITB-COT 06-41 Mowing & LandscapeMaintenace for Municipal Grounds

Commercial Mowing Services Inc United Lawnscape Inc



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 13 of 16
Date Prepared --  11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:

$500.00 Check # - 163299 473350145
PROPOSAL: Mowing Services - Landscape Maintenance
Furnish all necessarey material, labor, and equipment to provide mowing & lawn maintenance for municipal grounds

COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST
GROUP #1 - WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 42.07 Acres

YEAR ACRES
2007 42.07 86.34$            101,705.1$     95.00$           111,906.2$         
2008 42.07 88.07$            103,742.9$     95.00$           111,906.2$         
2009 42.07 89.83$            105,816.1$     95.00$           111,906.2$         

311,264.15$   335,718.60$       
GROUP #2 - SPLIT MOWING SCHEDULE - 41.45 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 41.45 93.66$            93,172.97$     90.00$           89,532.00$         
2008 41.45 95.53$            95,033.24$     90.00$           89,532.00$         
2009 41.45 97.44$            96,933.31$     90.00$           89,532.00$         

285,139.52$   268,596.00$       
GROUP #3 - BI-WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 39.12 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 39.12 76.65$            41,979.67$     95.00$           52,029.60$         
2008 39.12 78.18$            42,817.62$     95.00$           52,029.60$         
2009 39.12 79.74$            43,672.00$     100.00$          54,768.00$         

128,469.30$   158,827.20$       
GROUP #4 - ABANDON PROPERTIES - Various Locations

YEAR PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST
2007 49,000 SF 6.00$              294.00$          2.00$             98.00$                
2008 49,000 SF 6.12$              299.88$          2.00$             98.00$                
2009 49,000 SF 6.24$              305.76$          2.00$             98.00$                

899.64$          294.00$              

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 2007 237,151.71$   253,565.80$   
2008 241,893.68$   253,565.80$   
2009 246,727.22$  256,304.20$   

ESTIMATED CONTRACT TOTAL: 725,772.61$  763,435.80$      

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes Yes
DATE week of 11/12/06 11/19/2006

BIDDER'S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Y/N Yes Yes

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hrs of Operation 8am-6pm 8am-6pm
Contact Phone # 248.866.8444 313.363.7293
Pager 313.291.5502

LICENSE #: 179803 C007000171  3A 3B

INSURANCE:
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed Yes Yes

TERMS: Net 30 Days 30 Days

Michigan Turf IncLawncrafters LLC



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 14 of 16
Date Prepared -- 11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:

EXCEPTIONS: Bid prices are contingent Blank
upon being awarded all 4 groups

ACKNOWLEDGEMEMT Y or N Yes Yes

G:/ITB-COT 06-41 Mowing & LandscapeMaintenace for Municipal Grounds

Lawncrafters LLC United Lawnscape Inc



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 15 of 16
Date Prepared --  11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:
Services LLC

$500.00 Check # - 375098631 20723486
PROPOSAL: Mowing Services - Landscape Maintenance
Furnish all necessarey material, labor, and equipment to provide mowing & lawn maintenance for municipal grounds

COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST
GROUP #1 - WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 42.07 Acres

YEAR ACRES
2007 42.07 118.00$           138,999.3$     3,750.00$         4,417,350.0$      
2008 42.07 118.00$           138,999.3$     3,750.00$         4,417,350.0$      
2009 42.07 118.00$           138,999.3$     3,750.00$         4,417,350.0$      

416,997.84$   13,252,050.00$  
GROUP #2 - SPLIT MOWING SCHEDULE - 41.45 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 41.45 118.00$           117,386.40$   2,022.00$         2,011,485.60$    
2008 41.45 118.00$           117,386.40$   2,022.00$         2,011,485.60$    
2009 41.45 118.00$           117,386.40$   2,022.00$         2,011,485.60$    

352,159.20$   6,034,456.80$    
GROUP #3 - BI-WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 39.12 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2007 39.12 118.00$           64,626.24$     1,099.18$         601,998.90$       
2008 39.12 118.00$           64,626.24$     1,099.18$         601,998.90$       
2009 39.12 118.00$           64,626.24$     1,099.18$         601,998.90$       

193,878.72$   1,805,996.71$    
GROUP #4 - ABANDON PROPERTIES - Various Locations

YEAR PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST PER 1000 SQ FT TOTAL COST
2007 49,000 SF 21.42$             1,049.58$       0.16$                7.84$                  
2008 49,000 SF 21.42$             1,049.58$       0.16$                7.84$                  
2009 49,000 SF 21.42$             1,049.58$       0.16$                7.84$                  

3,148.74$       23.52$                

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 2007 322,061.50$    7,030,842.34$  
2008 322,061.50$    7,030,842.34$  
2009 322,061.50$   7,030,842.34$  

ESTIMATED CONTRACT TOTAL: 966,184.50$  21,092,527.03$ 

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes Yes
DATE 11/13/2006 11/13/2006

BIDDER'S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Y/N Yes Yes

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hrs of Operation 7am-7pm 7am-7pm
Contact Phone # 586.436.0206 248.672.8634
Pager N/A

LICENSE #: None 180024

INSURANCE:
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed Yes Yes

TERMS: Blank Net 30

Torre & Bruglio IncDo-It-All Lawnscaping



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-41
Opening Date -- 11-21-06 BID TABULATION Pg. 16 of 16
Date Prepared -- 11/22/06 MOWING SERVICES - LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:
Services LLC

EXCEPTIONS: Blank N/A

ACKNOWLEDGEMEMT Y or N Yes Yes

G:/ITB-COT 06-41 Mowing & LandscapeMaintenace for Municipal Grounds

Do-It-All Lawnscaping Torre & Bruglio Inc



 

  
December 18, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT:   Agenda Item – 2008 Poverty Exemption Guidelines 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 MCL 211.7u states: “The real property of persons who in the opinion of the Supervisor (read 

Assessor for Cities) and Board of Review by reason of poverty are unable to contribute toward the 
public charges is exempt from taxation under this act.” 

 
In order to grant a Poverty Exemption, the Michigan Tax Tribunal (MTT) has ordered that each 
community develop a set of guidelines to determine whether the applicant qualifies for a one (1) 
year exemption from property taxes. (The exemption may be re-applied for each year) 
 
The State Tax Commission (STC) has ruled that the Income Guidelines that are used as a portion 
of the guidelines may not be less than the Federal Poverty Guidelines established each year. 
 
As the guidelines include an Assessed Value limit, a Total Asset limit, and possible changes to the 
Income Guidelines, Council is presented with updated guidelines each year for approval. 
 
You may recall that in 2001, and prior to the STC order to use the Federal Poverty Guidelines, 
management had increased the income guidelines previously established by the City Assessor.  
The STC order to use the Federal guidelines starting in 2002, placed our guidelines approximately 
$5,000 higher than the Federal guidelines, in each category. 
 
In 2002, Management then recommended, and Council approved, leaving our guidelines the 
same, until the Federal guidelines ‘catch up’.  We are still averaging more than $3,000 higher in 
each category.  Council has not changed the Income guidelines to this point. 
 
The Assessed Value limit has increased each year by the average level of increase of the 
Residential Class for that year.  This year the Residential Class will show an average reduction in 
value of 4.45%.  This will lower the Assessed Value limit from $112,380 to $107,320. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03



2008 POVERTY EXEMPTION GUDIELINES MEMO PAGE 2 
 
The total asset limit, which includes the home (but not an automobile), would decrease from 
$273,120 to $271,760.  This calculation includes the reduction in the average Assessed Value, 
and an increase in the remaining asset level of 2.3% (the established State Consumer Price Index 
for 2007). 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There were 22 exemptions applied for in 2007 at the March Board of Review.  Of these, fifteen 

(15) were granted exemptions totaling $838,240 in Taxable Value (T/V).  This amounts to 
$7,778.87 in exempted City taxes (in 2006, 17 exemptions accounted for $1,067,990 in T/V and 
$10,017.15 in City taxes).  

 
In the past 5 years, residents have been allowed to apply for Poverty Exemptions at the July and 
December Boards of Review.  Generally a couple would come in July, and none in December. 
 
This year, there was one (1) exemptions granted at the July Board (72,490 T/V), and two (2) at the 
December Board (152,690 T/V).  These three (3) additional exemptions accounted for exempted 
Taxable Value of $225,180, and exempted City taxes of $2,089.67. 
  
The total loss of City taxes for Poverty Exemptions in 2007 was $9,868.54.  This is average for 
most recent years. 

  
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The guidelines are required by the MTT and STC.  The attached guidelines meet the requirements 

of these rulings. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The guidelines are a State mandated requirement.  They do not conform to current Council goals. 

 
Options: 
 
 Council must adopt Poverty Guidelines.  Council may adopt the guidelines as presented, or 

modify them 
 
 
NL/nl G:\Poverty Exemptions\2008\PovertyMemo2008.doc 



 
POVERTY EXEMPTION GUIDELINES 

INCOME STANDARDS 2008  
 
 
The following are the Poverty thresholds as of 12-31-07 for use in setting poverty  
exemption guidelines for 2008 assessments: 
 
 
Number of Persons Poverty  
Residing in Homestead Threshold 
 
1 person                                                                  13,959 
2 persons     16,531 
3 persons 18,470 
4 persons    22,761 
5 persons    26,419 
6 persons    29,636 
7 persons    33,347 
8 persons    36,704  
9 persons (or more) add 3,480 for each additional person     

 



 
CITY OF TROY 

POVERTY EXEMPTION GUIDELINES – 2008  
 

MCL 211.7u The real property of persons who in the judgment of the 
Supervisor and Board of Review by reason of poverty are unable to 
contribute toward the public charges is exempt from taxation under this 
Act. 

 
   The City of Troy’s standard for approving an exemption under the statute is 
based on an individual determination of hardship. 
 
   This is an exemption from taxes.  If you claim poverty under the statute, you 
must file your claim with a Poverty Exemption Affidavit.  This exemption is good 
for one year. 
 
STANDARD #1 Applicants must file a Poverty Exemption Affidavit in order to    

be considered for any exemption.  Documentation such as, 
Income Tax Forms, W-2 Forms, Deeds or Land Contracts 
and personal identification is mandatory, and must be 
attached to the Affidavit. 

 
STANDARD #2 A Poverty Exemption will not be granted if the household 

income is greater than the Income Standards Guideline. 
 

STANDARD #3 A Poverty Exemption will not be granted if the Assessed 
Value of the home exceeds $107,320. 

 
STANDARD #4 Applicants total assets cannot exceed $271,760.  This 

includes the value of your home. 
 
 
 
*The Board of Review may require a home audit and inspection, done by the 
Assessing Department, as part of the exemption process. 
 
* The income of every person residing at the home must be reported. 
 
 



 
POVERTY EXEMPTION AFFIDAVIT (for 2008 A/V Year) 

 
_________________________  ___________________ 
(Address)                        (Sidwell #) 

 
1. Household Income:  List all prior year income from: 

a)Wages/Tips                                 ________________ 
b) Social Security                            ________________ 
c) Soc. Sec. for resident minors       ________________ 
d) Pensions                                      ________________ 
e) Interest/Dividends                       ________________ 
f) Unemployment Compensation   ________________ 
g) Sub-Pay                                      ________________ 
h) Workman's Compensation         ________________ 
i) Aid to Dependent Children          ________________ 
j) Medical Disability Benefits         ________________ 
k) Lottery/Contest/Raffle               ________________ 
l) Annuities                                    ________________ 
m) Governmental Assistance          ________________ 
n) Insurance/Lawsuit Payouts        ________________ 
o) Alimony/Child Support              ________________ 
p) Rental Income                            ________________ 

 
2. Supplemental Assistance:   List monthly amount of: 

a) Food Stamps                              ________________ 
b) Surplus Food                              ________________ 
c) Transportation                            ________________ 

 
3. Residence Information: 

Is your home paid for?         Yes____    No____ 
  If No: 
  What is your mortgage/land contract balance? ___________ 
  What is your monthly payment?                        ___________ 
  Who holds your mortgage/land contract?          ___________ 
  Do you own any other property?             Yes______  No____ 
  If Yes: Attach a copy of your last tax bill. 

 
4. Employment information: 

Are you or your spouse currently employed? 
Self:  Yes____  No____    Spouse:  Yes____   No____ 
Are your or your spouse unable to work (disability, etc.) ? 
Self:  Yes____  No____    Spouse:  Yes____   No____ 
If Yes: Is this condition permanent? 
Self:  Yes____  No____    Spouse:  Yes____   No____ 
Provide medical documentation of the disability. 



 
 
5. Children/Relatives/Boarders: 

How many children, relatives, or non-related boarders share 
your home?                                              _____________________ 
Do any of the above, or anyone outside of your home, contribute 
Financially to your living expenses?           Yes ___   No___ 
If Yes:  How much:   per month __________  year_____________ 
 

6. Transportation: 
Do you own any automobiles?                           Yes____    No____ 
If Yes:  Please provide the following information: 

 
Year & Make  Price to you    Balance          Monthly payment 
____________        __________    ___________   _____________ 
____________        __________    ___________   _____________ 

 
 
7. Additional Assets: 

Please provide information about any additional assets listed. 
Checking Account:       Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Savings Account:       Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
I.R.A.         Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Keogh         Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Deferred Comp        Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Annuities        Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Stocks/Bonds/Funds      Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Money Market       Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Treasury Bills       Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Savings Bonds       Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 

 
 
8. Attach copies of the following: 

a) Federal Income Form 
b) State Income Tax Form 
c) Property Tax Credit Form 
d) W-2 Forms 
e) Copy of Deed or Land Contract 
f) Identification: Driver's License 
g) A listing of your household living expenses for the prior year.   
(examples: heat, electric, insurance, etc.) 

 
You must provide proof of income and other records of all residents 
of the dwelling to be considered for an exemption. 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
I (We), __________________________________________[print name(s)] 

the undersigned, do hereby affirm that the above information is, 
to the best of my (our) knowledge, true. 
______________________________    ____________________ 
(Signed)                                                      Phone Number 
______________________________    ____________________ 
(Signed)                                                      Phone Number 
 

Subscribed and sworn to me this _____ day of _________,   _______. 
My commission expires________________ 
Notary Public   ___________________________ 

 
APPROVED:     NOT APPROVED: 
Assessor:  _______________ Assessor:              ___________ 
Board Chairperson __________ Board Chairperson___________ 
Board Member_______________ Board Member      ___________ 
Board Member_______________ Board Member      ___________ 

 
Year______ Assessment________  Board of Review A/V________ 

 
For a March Board of Review Appeal, please submit by March 13 
For a July Board of Review Appeal, please submit by July 13 
For a December Board of Review Appeal, please submit by 
December 7.  

 



campbellld
Text Box
E-04





























campbellld
Text Box
E-05































































campbellld
Text Box
E-06











  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm , City Attorney  

Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: January 21, 2008 
SUBJECT: Milano Development v. City of Troy et. al.  

 

 

Milano Development Company, Inc. has filed a lawsuit against the City of Troy, and all other 
necessary public entities, as well as all neighboring property owners within 300 feet, in order 
to vacate a 43 foot wide private easement that was recorded on Lot 17 of the Supervisor’s 
Plat of Square Acres Subdivision plat.  The vacation is required in order to proceed with the 
approved condominium development on the property located on Rockfield (west of John R. 
Road, north of Wattles). The approved condominium development is overlaid on top of the 
platted land, but the private easement would preclude the development of some of the 
proposed condominium units on Lot 17.  Although the 43 foot private easement reserves the 
right to locate a private roadway in that area, the easement has not been used for such 
purposes and is not intended to be used for the proposed development.   

Under state law, any amendments to a plat must be accomplished through a lawsuit that 
provides notification to those persons who may be impacted.   The lawsuit must be served on 
the municipality, as well as the School District, State of Michigan, Oakland County, and the 
Oakland County Road Commission, as well as all neighboring property owners within 300 
feet.  If all of the necessary parties consent to amend the plat through a consent judgment, 
the parties are then authorized to amend the plat and record it with Oakland County.    

The attorney for Milano Development Company, Inc., has indicated that all necessary parties 
have been served with the Complaint, as required by the statute.  The Court has already 
entered Default Judgments for those defendants who chose not to participate in the lawsuit, 
since there were no answers filed or other communication with Plaintiff’s attorney.  There are 
no formal objections to the requested vacation of the private easement.   

City Administration recommends approval of the proposed attached Consent Judgment, 
which has been negotiated by the attorneys for the parties who have participated in the 
lawsuit.  The Consent Judgment would also need to be approved by the State of Michigan, 
Oakland County, and all other public entities, as well as the neighbors who have continued to 
participate.   The Consent Judgment terminates the 43-foot easement  for private roadway 
purposes on the current plat.  The Consent Judgment also reserves the right for the City 
Administration to review and approve the amended plat prior to submission to the Michigan 
Department of Consumer and Industry Services, Office of Land Survey and 
Remonumentation.  Once City Administration is satisfied that the proposed amended plat 
accurately incorporates the approved Consent Judgment and is compliant with the City’s 
laws and regulations, then the City Clerk can send a letter to Milano Development Company, 
Inc. indicating that the City has no objections to the proposed amended plat.   

A proposed resolution is attached for your review, which approves the proposed Consent 
Judgment, and authorizes the Assistant City Attorney to sign the Consent Judgment on 
behalf of the City of Troy.  If you have any questions, please let us know. 

campbellld
Text Box
E-07



 
 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 STATE OF MICHIGAN 
 
 IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
 
MILANO DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, INC.,  
a Michigan corporation, 

Case No. 06-079401-CZ 
Plaintiff.   HON. MICHAEL WARREN 

 
-vs- 

 
SCOTT AURAND and PATRICIA AURAND, 
 husband and wife; JAMES P. MARTIN, 
CHI HO KWONG and SUK FONG LI, 
husband and wife; THERESA FOUNDERS and  
JAMES FOUNDERS , husband and wife; 
CHARLES SLATE and RUTH SLATE, 
husband and wife; ARTENIO A. DELCARMEN  
and EVANGELINE M. DELCARMEN, husband and wife; 
RODNEY A. LEAKE and ELAINE M. LEAKE, husband and wife;  
JAMES BERAR; HANAA S. NICKOLA, a married woman;  
BRIAN WIGNER, a single man; ANGELLA DIAMANTIS, 
a single woman; JACK HAY and SUSAN M. HAY, 
husband and wife; JEFFREY G. HARPER, a single man; 
KENNETH CRUM and AMANDA CRUM, husband and wife; 
MICHAEL L. AMES and LINDA S. AMES, husband and wife; 
SHARON A. VALENTE; LEONIDAS NICK TSANGANOS and  
LABRENE MARIE TSANGANOS, husband and wife;  
ERNIE C. RACKLEY and TINA M. RACKLEY, husband 
and wife; CLIFFORD CRIST; DAVID R. PURVIS and 
LINDA M. PURVIS, husband and wife;  
GREGORY PERONIS and HELEN PERONIS, husband and wife; 
PETER MELARANGI and FRANCIS MELARANGI, husband and wife; 
PETER JOSEPH NAGY and RUTH ANN NAGY, husband and wife; 
DIANA L. NOFZINGER; ELIZABETH R. HARRINGTON; 
VICTOR A. TSOKUR and MARINA V. TSOKUR, husband and wife; 



 
 2 

CHRISTOPHER J. OSELETT and SUZANNE M. OSELETT, 
husband and wife; TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT, 
HAMMAN SOUTH SIXTY, INC., a non-profit Michigan corporation;  
EDMUND C. SZOKA, Roman Catholic Archbishop of the Archdiocese of Detroit; 
CITY OF TROY, a Michigan municipal corporation; JAY B. RISING,  
State Treasurer of the State of Michigan; JOHN MCCULLOCH, 
Drain Commissioner of the County of Oakland; BRENT BAIR,  
Chairperson of the County Road Commissioners for the  
County of Oakland,  
 

Defendant. 
____________________________________________________________________________/ 
KALAS KADIAN, P.L.C.     OAKLAND COUNTY CORPORATION COUNSEL 
By: MARK H. KADIAN (P46169)   By: AHMAD M. ROBY (P58665) 
Attorney for Plaintiff     Attorneys for Defendant McCulloch, only 
43928 Mound Road, Suite 100    1200 N. Telegraph Road 
Sterling Heights, MI  48314    Pontiac, MI  48341-0419 

(586) 726-0760     (248) 858-8640 
 
LORI GRIGG BLUHM (P46908)    EUGENE F. NOWAK, P.C. 
SUSAN M. LANCASTER (P33168)   By: DAVID A. NOWAK (P69637) 
Attorneys for City of Troy    Attorney for Kenneth and Amanda Crum 
500 W. Big Beaver Road    2711 Product Dr., #C 
Troy, MI  48084      Rochester Hills, MI  48309 

(248) 524-3320     (248) 852-4086 
 
JAMES E. RILEY (P23992)    KEITH J. NORMAN (P26579) 
Assistant Attorney General    Attorney for Brent Bair 
Environmental Natural Resources &   Oakland County Road Commission 
Agricultural Division     31001 Lahser Rd. 
525 W. Ottawa St., Fl. 6     Beverly Hills, MI  48025 

P.O. Box 30755      (248) 645-2000, x 2247 
Lansing, MI  48909 

(517) 373-7540 
 
CLARK HILL, PLC 
By: NEIL H. GOODMAN (P30751) 
Attorney for Troy School District 
255 S. Old Woodward Ave., Third Floor 
Birmingham, MI  48909 

(248) 988-5880 

_________________________________________________________________________/ 

CONSENT JUDGMENT 
 

At a session of said Court held 
in the City of Pontiac, 

County of Oakland, State of Michigan 
 

on _____________________, 2008. 
 

Present:  Hon._________________________ 
      Circuit Court Judge 



 
 3 

 
  A. That Plaintiff, Milano Development Company, Inc. (“Milano”) is the owner of 

record of property commonly known as 1703 Rockfield, Troy, MI, which property is legally described 

as: 

“Lot 17 of Supervisor’s Plat of Square Acres Sub, as recorded in Liber 14 of Plats, 
Page 49, Oakland County Records, being a part of the south half of Section 14, 
Town 2 North, Range 11 East, City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan” (“Milano’s 
Property”). 

 

  B. That Milano’s Property is part of the Supervisor’s Plat of Square Acres Sub 

(“Plat for Square Acres Subdivision”), as recorded in Liber 14 of Plat, Page 49, Oakland County 

Records. 

  C. That the Plat for Square Acres Subdivision includes a 43 foot easement for 

roadway purposes (private) (the “43’ Easement for Roadway Purposes (Private)”), as depicted on a 

portion of the recorded Plat for Square Acres Subdivision, as set forth on attached Exhibit “A”. 

  D. That Milano filed an action to partially vacate the Plat for Square Acres 

Subdivision, so as to terminate the 43’ Easement for Roadway Purposes (Private) in the area legally 

described on attached Exhibit “B”, so as to permit the development of Milano’s Property, in 

accordance with an approved site plan. 

  E. That the above-captioned Defendants were joined as party defendants to the 

action, in accordance with MCL 560.224A.  (Milano and the party defendants shall be collectively 

referred to as the “Parties”). 

  F. That the Parties acknowledge that there exists an opportunity to resolve the 

action, without further cost or expense, and the Parties are desirous of entering into this Consent 

Judgment to resolve this matter in accordance with terms contained herein. 

 NOW THEREFORE, pursuant to stipulation of the Parties, and the Court having determined 

that this Consent Judgment is reasonable and just, and being otherwise fully advised in the 

premises,  



 
 4 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED AND ADJUDGED as follows: 

  1. Partial Vacation of Plat.  The 43’ Easement for Roadway Purposes (Private), 

in the area which is legally described on attached Exhibit “B”, is hereby vacated and all rights, 

benefits, burdens and restrictions related thereto shall accordingly terminate and be of no further 

force or effect.   

  2. Recordation of Judgment.  Within thirty (30) days after entry of this Consent 

Judgment, Milano shall record the Consent Judgment in the office of the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds in accordance with MCLA 560.228.   

  3. Preparation of New Plat.  In accordance with MCLA 560.229(1), Milano shall 

prepare an amended plat (the “New Plat”) of Lot 17 of the Plat of Square Acres Subdivision affected 

by this Consent Judgment, which New Plat shall reflect the termination of the 43’ Easement for 

Roadway Purposes (Private) in the area legally described on attached Exhibit “B”.   

  4. Filing New Plat with State Treasurer.  Plaintiff shall prepare and file, within 

one hundred twenty (120) days of entry of this Judgment by the Court, the New Plat on the material 

specified in R560.104, in recordable form in accordance with MCL 560.101, et seq., and this 

Judgment, for the review and approval of the Office of Land Survey and Remonumentation Michigan 

Department of Labor and Economic Growth.  The one hundred twenty (120) day period pursuant to 

this paragraph, may be extended by agreement of the City of Troy, the Michigan Department of 

Labor and Economic Growth, and Milano and/or its successors-in-interest, or by order of the Court. 

  5. Approval by the City of Troy.  Prior to submittal of the New Plat to the Office 

of Land Survey and Remonumentation Michigan Department of Labor and Economic Growth in 

accordance with paragraph 4, above, the New Plat shall be submitted for approval by the City of 

Troy.  Approval by the City of Troy shall mean that the City of Troy’s Clerk has presented a letter to 

Milano acknowledging that he or she has reviewed the New Plat and the City is satisfied with the 

changes, additions or amendments to the New Plat.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City of Troy 



 
 5 

shall provide approval for the New Plat within ten (10) days of submittal of the New Plat to the City of 

Troy, provided that the New Plat is in conformity with the terms of this Consent Judgment. 

  6. Fees for Recording and Filing Documents.  All fees for the recording and 

filing of the documents as required by this Consent Judgment in accordance with MCLA 560.229, 

shall be the responsibility of Milano.   

  7. Good Faith.  The parties and their respective successors, heirs, grantees and 

assigns shall treat each other  in good faith and shall neither take any action which is contrary to or 

interferes with the spirit of this Consent Judgment, nor omit any action which is necessary or 

convenient to or consistent with the spirit and intent of this Consent Judgment 

  8. Authority.  By their execution of this Consent Judgment, the Parties warrant 

that they have the authority to execute this Consent Judgment and bind their respective entities, 

successors, heirs and assigns to its terms and conditions 

  9. Amendment.  The terms of this Consent Judgment may be amended, 

changed or modified but only by separate order of the Court or by written agreement executed by 

the Parties to this Consent Judgment, or their respective successors or assigns, and later approved 

and ordered by this Court. 

  10. Clerical Errors.  Any clerical errors or mistakes in this document or exhibit 

descriptions contained in this Consent Judgment may be corrected by written agreement of the 

Parties to this Consent Judgment and later approved and ordered by this Court, and the Parties to 

this Consent Judgment agree to cooperate in making such corrections in order to effectuate the 

spirit and intent of the parties in entering into this Consent Judgment.   

  11. Consent Judgment and Exhibits.  This Consent Judgment is hereby 

deemed to include all exhibits attached here, said exhibits being incorporated herein and made a 

part hereof as fully and to the same extent as if the contents of the exhibits were set out in their 

entirety in the body of this Consent Judgment.  All references to this Consent Judgment are deemed 



 
 6 

to be a reference to the body of this Consent Judgment and to the exhibit. 

12. Continuing Jurisdiction.  This Court retains continuing jurisdiction to assure 

enforcement and compliance with the terms of this Consent Judgment. 

  13. Easements.  Only recorded easements located within the boundary of the 

New Plat are hereby preserved, and the New Plat shall show only recorded easements and shall be 

accompanied by a statement of the surveyor that he or she, in determining the type, width and 

location of any recorded easements shown has reviewed any existing title search and/or policy of 

title insurance and had searched, or caused to be searched, the records of the Register of Deeds 

for any recorded easements burdening the subject lands which were created between the date of a 

title search or issuance of a title policy, and the  most recent submittal date of the amended plat and 

shall provide a copy of those records to the Office of Land Survey and Remonumentation Michigan 

Department of Labor and Economic Growth, upon submission of the amended plat.  

  14. Notice.  Upon notice and hearing, and upon it appearing to the Court that the 

New Plat will not be submitted within a reasonable time after the period set forth in paragraph 4 

above, and unless good cause is shown for failure to file the New Plat within the time prescribed by 

paragraph 4 above, this Judgment will be declared null and void nunc pro tunc should the New Plat 

not be prepared and filed as required by this Judgment and by the requirements of the Land Division 

Act.  In the event that this Judgment is declared null and void nunc pro tunc in accordance with this 

paragraph, nothing herein shall be deemed to prevent Milano or its successors-in-interest from re-

filing any claim or cause of action to vacate or partially vacate the Plat for Square Acres Subdivision 

in accordance with MCLA 560.101 et seq., any such consequent dismissal being without prejudice. 



 
 7 

THIS JUDGMENT RESOLVES THE LAST PENDING CLAIM AND CLOSES THIS CASE 

 
                                                                              
          Circuit Court Judge 
 
Approved as to form, substance and entry: 
 
 
________________________________  _______________________________ 
MARK H. KADIAN (P46169)    AHMAD M. ROBY (P58665) 
Attorney for Plaintiff     Attorney for John McCulloch, only 
 
 
_______________________________  ___________________________________ 
SUSAN M. LANCASTER (P33168)   DAVID A. NOWAK (P69637)  
Attorney for City of Troy    Attorney for Kenneth and Amanda Crum 
 
 
_______________________________  ________________________________ 
KEITH J. NORMAN (P26579)    James E. Riley (P23992) 
Attorney for Bent Bair     Assistant Attorney General 
       Environmental Natural Resources & 
       Agricultural Division 
_______________________________ 
NEIL H. GOODMAN (P30751) 
Attorney for Troy School District 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
z:\kalas\milano dev\consent jdg clean.doc 



 
 
January 17, 2008 
 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Brycewood Site Condominium, 9 units/lots 

proposed, east side of Evanswood Road, North of Square Lake Road, Section 1 – R-1D  
 
 
Background: 
 

 The Planning Commission recommended approval of Brycewood Preliminary Site 
Condominium Plan at the January 8, 2008 Regular meeting.   
 

 The applicant is proposing a 9-unit site condominium on a 3.376-acre parcel.  The 
development will utilize the Lot Averaging Option which provides for reduced lot widths.  The 
applicant proposes a 28-foot wide paved street, terminating in a cul-de-sac, within a 40-foot 
private easement.     
 

 For parcels 5 acres or less in area, access may be provided by way of 28 foot wide streets 
constructed to City Public Street Standards, within 40 foot private easements for Public Access, 
when in the opinion of the City Council the property configuration is such that the provision of 60 
foot public rights-of-way would be overly restrictive and would make the provision of conforming 
dwelling unit parcels impractical (Section 34.30.04). 

 

 At the request of the Planning Department the applicant provided an alternate layout with a 
stub road terminating at the southern property line.  This layout also yields 9 units. 

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 

 There are no financial considerations for this item. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-08



Legal Considerations: 
 

 City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

 Approval of the site condominium would be consistent with City Council Goal I (Enhance the 
livability and safety of the community) and Goal III (Retain and attract investment while 
encouraging redevelopment). 

 
 
Options: 
 

 City Council can approve the Preliminary Site Condominium Plan as submitted or with 
conditions. 

 

 City Council can deny the Preliminary Site Condominium Plan. 
 

 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Report prepared for January 8, 2008 Planning Commission Regular meeting.  
3. Minutes from January 8, 2008 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
4. Public comment. 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File/Brycewood Site Condominium 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Brycewood Site Condo Sec 1\CC Prelim Approval Brycewood Site Condo 01 28 08.doc 

 



ROCHESTER

DEQUINDRE

LONG LAKE
JOHN

R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPHENSON

COOLIDGE

CROOKS

MAIN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ADAMS



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



RONALD

SE
MI

NO
LE

MO
HI

CA
N

ROBART

SONGBIRD

DE
QU

IN
DR

E

FL
OR

A

CHIPPEWA

DINA

RANIERI

CHIPPEWA
CT

MARILYN

ME
AD

OW
LA

RK

MANORWOOD

EV
AN

SW
OO

D

SITE PLAN REVIEW
PROPOSED BRYCEWOOD SITE CONDOMINIUM
E SIDE OF EVANSWOOD, N OF SQUARE LAKE
(6308 EVANSWOOD)
SEC. 1  (9 UNITS/LOTS  ZONED R-1D)

SUBJECT PARCEL

0 200 400100
Feet ³

TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPERTY

SANCTUARY LAKE GOLF COURSE

TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPERTY



RONALD

SE
MI

NO
LE

MO
HI

CA
N

ROBART

SONGBIRD

DE
QU

IN
DR

E

FL
OR

A

CHIPPEWA

DINA

RANIERI

CHIPPEWA
CT

MARILYN

ME
AD

OW
LA

RK

MANORWOOD

EV
AN

SW
OO

D

C-F

R-1D

E-P

SITE PLAN REVIEW
PROPOSED BRYCEWOOD SITE CONDOMINIUM
E SIDE OF EVANSWOOD, N OF SQUARE LAKE
(6308 EVANSWOOD)
SEC. 1  (9 UNITS/LOTS  ZONED R-1D)

SUBJECT PARCEL

0 200 400100
Feet ³

TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPERTY

SANCTUARY LAKE GOLF COURSE

TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPERTY



 1 

DATE: January 3, 2008 
 
TO: The Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 Ronald Figlan, Planner 
 Paula Preston Bratto, Planner 
 
SUBJECT: SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW – Brycewood Site 

Condominium, 9 units/lots proposed, east side of Evanswood Road, North 
of Square Lake Road, Section 1, Zoned R-1D 

 

 
This item was considered by the Planning Commission at the November 13, 2007 
Regular meeting.  At this meeting, the Planning Commission passed the following 
resolution: 

 
RESOLVED, That this item be postponed until the petitioner submits a plan that 
incorporates some of the comments made at tonight’s meeting.   
 

The applicant submitted revised plans for the Planning Commission’s consideration. 
 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Petitioner: 
The application indicates that the owner and applicant is Mike Cappuso, Brycewood LLC.  
 
Location of subject property: 
The property is located on the east side of Evanswood, north of Square Lake Road, in 
section 1. 
 
Size of subject parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 3.376 acres in area. 
 
Description of proposed development, including number and density of units: 
The applicant is proposing to develop a 9-unit site condominium  The proposed 
development will have a 28-foot wide paved private road located within a 40 foot 
easement off of Evanswood.  The road will terminate in a cul-de-sac. 
 
Note that for parcels that are 5 acres or less in area, access may be provided by way of 
28 foot wide streets constructed to City Public Street Standards, within 40 foot private 
easements for Public Access, when in the opinion of the City Council the property 
configuration is such that the provision of 60 foot public rights-of-way would be overly 



 2 

restrictive and would make the provision of conforming dwelling unit parcels impractical 
(Section 34.30.04). 
 
At the request of the Planning Department, the applicant submitted an alternative layout 
that stubs at the southern property line.  In this layout, the road is located within a 60 
foot public right-of-way.  The paved street is 28 feet wide.  This layout also yields 9 
units.   
 
City Management prefers the alternative layout, with potential interconnectivity to the 
south.   
 
Current use of subject property: 
A single family home presently sits on the property. 
 
Current use of adjacent parcels: 
North: Single family residential. 
South: Vacant. 
East: Single family residential. 
West: Single family residential and Troy School District Nature Area. 
 
Current zoning classification: 
R-1D One Family Residential  
 
Zoning classification of adjacent parcels:  
North: R-1D One Family Residential 
South: R-1D One Family Residential 
East: R-1D One Family Residential 
West: R-1D One Family Residential 
 
Future Land Use Designation: 
The parcel is designated as Low Density Residential on the Future Land Use Plan. 
 
 

ANALYSIS 
 
Compliance with area and bulk requirements: 
 
Lot Area: The minimum lot area in the R-1D district is 8,500 square feet.  The smallest 
proposed lot is 9,348 square feet. 
 
Lot Width: The minimum required lot width in the R-1D district is 75 feet in width.  The 
applicant is utilizing the Lot Averaging Option which permits a 10% reduction in lot 
sizes, to 67.5 feet.   
  
Height: The maximum height is 2 stories and 25 feet. 



 3 

Minimum Yard Setbacks:  Front:  25 feet.  25 feet provided. 
Rear:  40 feet.  40 feet provided. 
Side (at least one):  8 feet.  10 feet provided. 
Side (total two):  20 feet.  20 feet provided. 

 
Minimum Floor Area: The minimum floor area per unit is 1,000 square feet.   
 
Maximum Lot Coverage:  30%. 
 
Off-street parking and loading requirements:  
The development will be required to provide two (2) off-street parking spaces per unit. 
 
Environmental provisions, including Tree Preservation Plan: 
A Tree Preservation Plan was submitted as part of the application. 
 
A Preliminary Wetland Evaluation prepared by King & MacGregor Environmental Inc. 
on October 3, 2007 indicates that no wetlands were identified on the subject property. 
 
Storm Water detention: 
The applicant is proposing to provide storm water detention on the south side of the 
proposed street, abutting Evanswood Road. 
 
Natural features and floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property.   
 
Subdivision Control Ordinance, Article IV Design Standards  
 

Lots: All units meet the minimum area and bulk requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance. 

 
Streets: The street is proposed to be 28-feet wide and is located within a 40-foot 
wide private street easement.  A 5-foot wide sidewalk easement will be provided 
on both sides of the street.  
 
Sidewalks: The applicant is proposing to construct 5-foot wide sidewalks on both 
sides of the proposed street and on the east side of Evanswood Road.  The site 
plan indicates that they intend to seek a sidewalk waiver from the Traffic 
Committee. 

 
Utilities: The development will served by public water and sewer. 

 



 4 

CITY MANAGEMENT RECOMMENDATION 
 
City Management recommends approval of the preliminary site plan application, 
alternative version with 9 units and 60-foot wide right-of-way, terminating at the 
southern property line. 
 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/Brycewood Site Condominium 
 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Brycewood Site Condo Sec 1\Brycewood Site Condo  PC Report 01 08 08.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 8, 2008 
  

 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN 
 

7. SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW – Brycewood Site Condominium, 9 
units/lots proposed, East side of Evanswood, North of Square Lake, Section 1, Zoned 
R-1D (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
site condominium revised submittal, and summarized the differences between the two 
proposed alternative plans.  Mr. Miller reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the preliminary site plan application version with a 60-foot 
wide right of way terminating at the southern property line to allow future connectivity.  
He noted it is the preference of the petitioner to go forward with the cul-de-sac version. 
 
Mr. Strat disclosed a business relationship with the civil engineer for this project, but 
indicated there is no financial interest in the project.  
 
Mr. Forsyth stated that would not constitute a true conflict of interest.  
 
Mr. Savidant announced that written communication and photographs received from 
Cathy Carolan of 6322 Evanswood, Troy, were distributed to Planning Commission 
members prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting.   
 
Mr. Miller indicated that all property owners adjacent to the subject site were notified of 
the Public Hearing.  Mr. Miller also noted that City Council has final authority to permit 
the private road. 
 
Carol Thurber of Fazal Khan & Associates, 43279 Schoenherr Road, Sterling Heights, 
was present to represent the petitioner.  Ms. Thurber said there was a meeting with 
residents and specifically the homeowner to the north to discuss the potential to 
moving the road to the south end of the property.  Mr. Carolan, the homeowner to the 
north, agreed to run the road on the north side of the property because it offers him the 
opportunity to divide his parcel in the future.  Ms. Thurber indicated that is why no 
alternate plan showing the road to the south was submitted, as requested.  She noted 
the plan indicates their intent to apply for a sidewalk waiver.  Ms. Thurber asked for a 
favorable recommendation on the layout with the cul-de-sac.   
 
There was discussion on: 

 Private road rights.  

 Communication from Cathy Carolan, homeowner to the north. 

 Dialogue/communication between developer and residents. 

 Stormwater control / impact. 

 Submittal plans showing alternate road layouts. 
 
Ms. Thurber addressed in detail the proposed retention pond.  She indicated that the 
site plans were provided to the developer with the understanding they would be given 
to the Carolan’s. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 8, 2008 
  

 
 

Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Mike Carolan of 6322 Evanswood, Troy, was present.  Mr. Carolan, the homeowner to 
the north of the proposed site condominium project, indicated he did not receive the 
plans from the developer, but visited City Hall to view the recent submittal.  He brought 
attention to the photographs of existing standing water.  Mr. Carolan addressed the 
potential to provide sewer leads, the utilization of the retention pond in the future, a 
change in the proposed landscaping, his desire to not have a sidewalk and the type of 
fencing. 
 
Discussion followed on: 

 Potential for sewer leads and receptiveness of developer to provide them. 

 Retention pond and its accommodation of future water. 

 Landscape revisions to replace arborvitae with junipers. 

 Creativity and/or enhancement of the retention pond.  
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-01-     [motion withdrawn] 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council, that the 
Preliminary Site Condominium Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development), as requested for Brycewood Site Condominium, including 9 units, 
including a 28-foot wide road located within a 60-foot wide public right-of-way, 
terminating into a stub at the southern property line, located on the east side of 
Evanswood, north of Square Lake Road, Section 1, within the R-1D zoning district, be 
granted. 
 
FURTHERMORE, the following design recommendations are provided to City 
Management:  
 
1. Sewer leads and retention access shall be given to potential developable lots to the 

north. 
2. A sidewalk waiver be granted abutting the property to the north. 
3. Negotiate with the property owner to the north for alternative screening with the 

possibility of including a screen fence. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Hutson said he is not in favor of the motion because (1) a cul-de-sac provides for a 
water feature and (2) a stub street would prohibit creativity for future development of 
the acreage to the south. 
 
Mr. Vleck requested to revise the motion on the floor to recommend the cul-de-sac 
version.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 8, 2008 
  

 
 

Mr. Wright withdrew his second.   
 
Mr. Vleck withdrew the resolution on the floor. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-01-006 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council, that the 
Preliminary Site Condominium Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development), as requested for Brycewood Site Condominium, including 9 units, 
including a 28-foot wide road within a 40-foot wide private street easement, terminating in 
a cul-de-sac, located on the east side of Evanswood, north of Square Lake Road, 
Section 1, within the R-1D zoning district, be granted.   
 
FURTHERMORE, the following design recommendations are provided to City 
Management:  
 
1. Sewer leads and retention access shall be given to potential developable lots to the 

north. 
2. A sidewalk waiver be granted abutting the property to the north. 
3. The petitioner shall negotiate with the property owner to the north for alternative 

screening with the possibility of including a screen fence. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Vleck 
No: Wright 
Absent: Littman, Troshynski 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 











 
 
 
 
 

Brycewood Site Condominium  
Preliminary Plans 

are included with Council’s agenda packets 
and available for public viewing at the 

City Clerk’s Office and the Troy Public Library 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 7, 2008 

 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, January 7, 2008, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
 
David Huffstutler of First Baptist Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to 
the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL  

 Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming (absent) 
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

(a) Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Fleming  

 
Resolution #2008-01-001 
Moved by Broomfield 
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member 
Fleming at the Regular City Council meeting of January 7, 2008 due to being out of the county.  
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 

 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 

a) On behalf of the City of Troy Employee’s Casual for a Cause Program, Carol Anderson, 
Parks & Recreation Director, presented a check in the amount of $557.67 to Dave 
Taylor of Senior Home Assistance Repair Program (SHARP).   

 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 No Public Hearings 

 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
F-02

pallottaba
Text Box



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 7, 2008 

 

- 2 - 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Board of 

Review; Brownfield Redevelopment Authority; and Planning Commission b) City 

Council Appointments: Board of Zoning Appeals; Election Commission; Liquor 

Advisory Committee; Municipal Building Authority; and Traffic Committee   

 

(a)  Mayoral Appointments   
 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following persons to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Board of Review 
Appointed by  Mayor (3-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Eileen (Nora) Turner Term Expires 01/31/11 

 

Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
Appointed by  Mayor (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Philip Sanzica Unexpired Term 04/30/08 

 

  Planning Commission 

  Appointed by Mayor (9-Regular) –  3-Year Terms 

 
Donald Edmunds Term Expires 12/31/10 

 

Vote on Resolution to Separate the Vote on Mayoral Appointment – Planning 

Commission 

 
Resolution #2008-01-002 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SEPARATES the vote for Mayoral Appointment to 
vote separately on the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 7, 2008 

 

- 3 - 

Vote on Mayoral Appointment to Board of Review and Brownfield Redevelopment 

Authority 
 
Resolution #2008-01-003 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following persons to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Board of Review 
Appointed by  Mayor (3-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Eileen (Nora) Turner Term Expires 01/31/11 

 

Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
Appointed by  Mayor (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Philip Sanzica Unexpired Term 04/30/08 

 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

Vote on Mayoral Appointment to the Planning Commission 
 
Resolution #2008-01-004 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following person to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

  Planning Commission 
  Appointed by Mayor (9-Regular) –  3-Year Terms 

 
Donald Edmunds Term Expires 12/31/10 

 
Yes: Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini 
No: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak 
Absent: Fleming  
 

MOTION FAILED 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 7, 2008 

 

- 4 - 

(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2008-01-005 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Election Commission  
Appointed by Council  (2-Regular) – 1 Year Term 
 
David C. Anderson Term Expires 01/31/09 

 
Timothy Dewan Term Expires 01/31/09 

 

Liquor Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
W.S. Godlewski Term Expires 01/31/11 

 
Bohdan L. Ukrainec Term Expires 01/31/11 

 

Municipal Building Authority  
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Victor P. Freliga Term Expires 01/31/11 

 
Frank Shier Term Expires 01/31/11 

 

Traffic Committee  
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular) – 3 Year Term 
 
Richard A. Kilmer Term Expires 01/31/11 

 
Peter F. Ziegenfelder Term Expires 01/31/11 

 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 

E-2  Amendment to City of Troy Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters 

 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 7, 2008 

 

- 5 - 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Section 4.3 of the City of Troy 
Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters to provide for a four percent (4%) increase in the 
annual payment amount, equating to an annual incentive of $582.00 per year for volunteer 
firefighters retiring on or after January 1, 2008 and $605.00 per year for volunteer firefighters 
retiring on or after January 1, 2009, with an additional payment of $10.00 per month for current 
retirees for the next two years. 
 

Vote on Resolution to Postpone   
 
Resolution #2008-01-006 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES Amendment to City of Troy Incentive 

Plan for Volunteer Firefighters and DIRECTS Staff to reenter negotiations and return to City 
Council with an amended resolution. 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Howrylak 
No: Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield 
Absent: Fleming  
 

MOTION FAILED 

 

Vote on Resolution to Amend  
 
Resolution #2008-01-007 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the resolution Amendment to City of Troy 

Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters by INSERTING “of service” AFTER “per year” in the 
two locations. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 

Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2008-01-008 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Section 4.3 of the City of Troy 
Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters to provide for a four percent (4%) increase in the 
annual payment amount, equating to an annual incentive of $582.00 per year of service for 
volunteer firefighters retiring on or after January 1, 2008 and $605.00 per year of service for 
volunteer firefighters retiring on or after January 1, 2009, with an additional payment of $10.00 
per month for current retirees for the next two years. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 7, 2008 

 

- 6 - 

Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  

 

E-3 Cable Resolution 

 
Resolution #2008-01-009  
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
WHEREAS, Comcast Cablevision, is among the companies that furnish or will be furnishing 
cable television subscriptions to residential customers;  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy and other governmental entities have committed substantial 
resources to deliver programming on governmental and educational access channels, also 
known as PEG and has participated with other governmental entities in the Community Media 
Network (CMN) and the Intergovernmental Cable Communication Authority (ICCA);  
 
WHEREAS, Comcast Cablevision has indicated that it intends to change the channel lineup 
and location of the public, educational and government access channels (PEG) from present 
locations, where they have been situated for many years, to the channel lineup in the 900’s, 
which will require customers to have a digital converter set-top box, a cable card or a QAM* 
capable television;  
 
WHEREAS, The result is added costs, inconvenience, and confusion with respect to citizens 
who intend to view educational and governmental access channels; and 
 
WHEREAS, Since Comcast’s announcement, many citizens have voiced their opposition to the 
news that Comcast intends to change the location of PEG channels and require customers to 
have a digital converter box to receive the channels; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, it is resolved that: 
 
1.  Comcast Cablevision is requested to preserve the channel locations for public, educational 
and governmental access channels (PEG) and agree that they will not be changed in the future 
without the written consent of the City or governmental entity or entities which provide 
programming on such channels;  
 
2.  The City of Troy requests that Comcast respond to the questions posed by the Michigan 
Chapter of the National Association of Telecommunications Officers and Advisors in its letter 
dated  November 2007 addressing operational and legal issues related to Comcast’s actions; 
and 
 
3.  The City of Troy requests that Public Act 480 of 2006 be immediately amended to require 
that public, educational and governmental access channels remain at the current locations and 
that the same not be subject to change unless the written consent of the affected governmental 
entity providing the programming is obtained; 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 7, 2008 

 

- 7 - 

4.  The City of Troy requests that ICCA legal counsel explore sections of Michigan’s Public Act 
480 of 2006, for provisions that already exist to potentially assist the City in maintaining the 
best delivery of its programming to Troy residents via the cable TV and video systems.  In 
addition, that ICCA continue talks with local providers, as well as investigate appropriate 
measures, to protect the City’s investment in providing programming for local access channels, 
as these channels are important means of communicating with residents. 
 
5.  Consumers should be informed that they have the option in Troy to change to Wide Open 
West if they have a problem with Comcast’s channel lineup.  Comcast is risking the loss of 
many customers who enjoy the local Public, Educational and Governmental Channels. 
 
6.  Digital broadcast TV will be mandatory starting in February 2009 and many consumers will 
already be purchasing new TVs with digital reception and QAM or converter boxes for digital 
TV and QAM reception during the next year. This will effectively be a one year problem if 
Comcast changes the channel list early instead of waiting until February 2009. 
 
* QAM tuners in televisions enable direct reception of digital cable channels without the use of 
a set-top box. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 

E-4 City of Troy Precinct Boundary Alterations and Relocations 

 
Resolution #2008-01-010 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Broomfield  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the City of Troy alterations of precinct 
boundaries and relocation polling locations as follows: 
 

PCT 

# 

BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION POLLING LOCATION 

1 Section 1  A 
Evanswood Church of God 
2601 E. Square Lake  

2 Section 2 in the Troy School District B 
Kensington Community Church 
1825 E. Square Lake 

3 
Sections 2, 3 and 4 in the Avondale School 
District 

C 
Woodside Bible Church 
6600 Rochester  

4 Sections 3, 4 and 5 in the Troy School District H 
St. Elizabeth Ann Seton Catholic 
Church 
280 E. Square Lake 

5 
Sections 5 and 6 in the Avondale School 
District  

D 
Faith Apostolic Church 
6710 Crooks 

6 Section 6 in the Troy School District E 
Nature Center 
6685 Coolidge Hwy. 

7 
Section 7 in the Troy School District and 
Section 8 west of Coolidge Highway 

F 
St. Stephen Episcopal Church 
5500 Adams 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 7, 2008 

 

- 8 - 

PCT 

# 

BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION POLLING LOCATION 

8 Section 8 east of Coolidge Highway G 
Northfield Hills Baptist Church 
1800 W. Long Lake 
 

9 Sections 9 & 10 H 
St. Elizabeth Ann Seton Catholic 
Church 
280 E. Square Lake 

10 Section 11 B 
Kensington Community Church 
1825 E. Square Lake 

11 
Section 12 north of Highbury, east of Harbor, 
north of Willard, north and east of English  

A 
Evanswood Church of God 
2601 E. Square Lake  

12 
Section 12 south of Highbury, west of Harbor, 
south of Willard, south and west of English 

C 
Woodside Bible Church 
6660 Rochester Road 

13 Section 13 I 
Bethesda Romanian Pentecostal 
Church 
2075 E. Long Lake 

14 Section 14 J 
St. Anastasia Catholic Church 
4571 John R 

15 Section 15 O 
St. Lucy Catholic Croatian Church 
200 E. Wattles 

16 
Section 16 east of I-75 and Section 21 east of 
I-75 

K 
First Presbyterian Church 
4328 Livernois 

17 Section 16 west of I-75 and Section 17  L 
St. Nicholas Greek Orthodox Church 
760 W. Wattles 

18 Section 18 in the Troy School District  F 
St. Stephen Episcopal Church 
5500 Adams 

19 Sections 19 and 30 in the Troy School District  Q 
St. Alan Catholic Church 
3077 Glouchester 

20 Section 20 and Section 21 west of I-75  L 
St. Nicholas Greek Orthodox Church 
760 W. Wattles 

21 Section 22 O 
St. Lucy Catholic Croatian Church 
200 E. Wattles 

22 Section 23 J 
St. Anastasia Catholic Church 
4571 John R 

23 Section 24 P 
St. Joseph Chaldean Catholic 
Church 
2442 E. Big Beaver 

24 
Sections 25 and 26 in the Warren 
Consolidated School District 

R 
St. George Antiochian Orthodox 
Church 
2160 E. Maple 

25 
Sections 35 and 36 in the Warren 
Consolidated School District 

R 
St. George Antiochian Orthodox 
Church 
2160 E. Maple 

26 
Sections 26, 27, 34 and 35 south of I-75 in the 
Troy School District 

N 
Troy Community Center 
3179 Livernois 

27 
Section 28 and Sections 25, 26, and 27 north 
of I-75 and south of E. Big Beaver in Sections 

N 
Troy Community Center 
3179 Livernois 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 7, 2008 

 

- 9 - 

PCT 

# 

BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION POLLING LOCATION 

in the Troy School District  

28 Sections 29 and 32 in the Troy School District Q 
St. Alan Catholic Church 
3077 Glouchester 
 

29 
Sections 18, 19, 30, and 31 in the Birmingham 
School District 

M 
North Hills Christian Reformed 
Church 
3150 N. Adams 

30 
Section 35 in the Royal Oak School District 
and the Section 36 in the Lamphere School 
District 

N 
Troy Community Center 
3179 Livernois 

31 
Sections 6, 7, and 18 in the Bloomfield Hills 
School District 

E 
Nature Center 
6685 Coolidge Hwy. 

 
Yes:       Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield  
No:       Kerwin 
Absent:    Fleming 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

F-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2008-01-011 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Resolution #2008-01-011-F-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of December 17, 

2007 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 7, 2008 

 

- 10 - 

F-3 City of Troy Proclamations for School Board Recognition Month – January, 2008 
 
Resolution #2008-01-011-F-3 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamations for School Board Recognition Month – January, 2008: 

a) Troy School Board Members 
b) Avondale School Board Members 
c) Birmingham School Board Members  
d) Bloomfield Hills School Board Members  
e) Lamphere School Board Members  
f) Royal Oak School Board Members  
g) Warren Consolidated School Board Members 

   
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: None Submitted 
 

F-5 Approval of Purchase Agreement for John R Road Improvements, Square Lake 

Road to South Boulevard, Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #52 – Sidwell #88-20-02-

228-038 – Byung Ho Kim and Soon Hee Kim 
 
Resolution #2008-01-011-F-5 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Byung Ho Kim and Soon Hee Kim, owners of property having Sidwell 
#88-20-02-228-038, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for John R Road 
Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard in the amount of $21,450.00, plus 
closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-6 Traffic Signal Maintenance Agreement – Crooks and Bridge Park 
 
Resolution #2008-01-011-F-6 
 
WHEREAS, The Crooks Road Project created a 4-lane boulevard and the existing traffic signal 
at Crooks Road and Bridge Park became two separate signals, one for northbound and one for 
southbound; and 
 
WHEREAS, Bridge Park is a city road and Crooks Road is under the jurisdiction of the Road 
Commission for Oakland County;  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 7, 2008 

 

- 11 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the cost 
agreement with the Road Commission for Oakland County and the City for the maintenance of 
the traffic signals at Crooks Road and Bridge Park for sharing costs at 50% City and 50% Road 

Commission for Oakland County, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the 

agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-7 Parks and Recreation Department Grant Approval and Authorization to Expend 

City Funds for Access to Recreation Initiative Matching Grant 
 
Resolution #2008-01-011-F-7 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Troy Parks and Recreation 
Department to receive a Michigan Parks and Recreation Foundation Access to Recreation 
Initiative Matching Grant and expend $4,081.00 for the purchase of equipment in accordance 
with the award; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Parks and 
Recreation Department budget to receive the grant funding of $12,243.00. 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Rezoning Application – East Side of John R, North of Big Beaver, Section 24 – From P-1 

and R-1E to B-1 (File Number: Z 677 B) – January 28, 2008  
b) IACNA, International Automotive Components Group, North America, 750-800 Chicago 

– Request for Industrial Development District (IDD) and the Issuance of an Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) – January 28, 2008       

Noted and Filed 
 

G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced  

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 7, 2008 

 

- 12 - 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Final – September 12, 2007 
b) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – November 7, 2007  
c) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – November 12, 2007  
d) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – November 14, 2007  
e) Library Advisory Board/Final – November 15, 2007  
f) Downtown Development Authority/Draft – November 21, 2007  
g) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – November 27, 2007  
h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – December 4, 2007  
i) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – December 10, 2007 
j) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – December 12, 2007  
k) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – December 12, 2007 
l) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Draft – December 12, 2007 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:   
a) City Attorney’s Office – 2007 Fourth Quarter Litigation Report  
b) City Clerk’s Office – Board and Committee Members Serving on Multiple 

Boards/Committees 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: None Submitted 
 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:   
a) City of Oak Park – Resolution Requesting Preservation of Existing Channel Locations for 

Public, Governmental and Educational Access Channels, also known as PEG  
Noted and Filed 

 

J-5  Calendar 

 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 7, 2008 

 

- 13 - 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 
 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 8:51PM. 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
January 14, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
   

SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County CLEMIS Cooperative 
Purchasing Contract- Mobile Data Computers (MDC’s)  
Increase in CLEMIS MDC Participation Fees   

 

Background Mobile Data Computers   
 On August 4

th
, 1997 the City Council approved by Resolution #97-675 for the City of Troy Police 

Department to expend funds to purchase new Mobile Data Computers (MDC’s). 
 The mobile data computers use CLEMIS to access the Law Enforcement Information Network 

(LEIN), Michigan Secretary of State (SOS), National Crime Information Network (NCIC), CLEMIS 
Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) and CLEMIS Record Management System (RMS). 

 Since 1997, officers are now doing more work in their vehicles such as writing reports, receiving 
their runs over CAD and soon they will be able to access driver license photos, arrests photos and 
fingerprints through CLEMIS. These enhancements will allow officers to spend less time at the 
station and more time in the field.     

 After 10 years of service, the current mobile data computers are obsolete and Motorola is not 
providing support or parts for them.     

 CLEMIS conducted an evaluation of many mobile workstations in which the Troy Police 
Department participated. CLEMIS has mandated any new purchases of Mobile Data Computers 
be the Motorola MW810.   

 The replacement of all the MDCS would be accomplished over the next 2 years.  
 Oakland County CLEMIS Cooperative Contract #1877 would be used.  
 Motorola would be the vendor.   
 

 Background CLEMIS Mobile Data Computer Participation Fees 
 On June 21, 2004, City Council Resolution #2004-06-329-E-14 authorized the Police Department 

to pay participation fees to Oakland County for mobile data computers (MDC’s).  The resolution 
stipulated payments at an estimated cost of $728 per unit per year.  The time period was open 
ended.    

 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04a



Page 2 of 2 

 
January 14, 2008 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Oakland County Cooperative Contract- Mobile Data Computers (MDC’s) 
 
 

Background - continued 
 Oakland County is increasing the MDC usage fee to $977 per unit on 10/1/2007; $1,065 on 

10/1/2008; and $1,109 on 10/1/2009.     
 The maximum number of MDC’s the department expects to have in operation is 50.  With an 

anticipated 4% increase per year, the estimated cost in 2012 is $1,248 per unit bringing the 
participation fees paid to the County to $62,400.   

 Additionally, the department must pay $15 per unit per year to the wireless provider who may 
recover a regulatory fee—a total of $750 per year.    

 

Financial Considerations 
 Funds for purchasing (28) of the (50) mobile data computers needed is available in the Police 

Department capital account #401325.7980.055. The purchase of the remaining mobile data 
computers would be budgeted in future years.  

 Funds for the participation fees will be available in the Police department research and technology 
contractual services account for uniform patrol #334.7802.080. 

 

Legal Considerations 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item.  
 

Policy Considerations 
 Officers are able to communicate wirelessly with dispatch and each other while on the road via 

CLEMIS MDC’s, keeping our community and officers safe. (Goal I) 
 

Options 
 City management and the Troy Police department recommend the purchase of Motorola MW 810 

mobile workstations at an estimated cost of $5,300.00 each including a WLAN antenna, with any 
other options and accessories discounted at 20% off list prices from Motorola through the 
Oakland County CLEMIS contract #1877.    

 In addition, staff recommends the increase in CLEMIS MDC participation fees for approximately 
50 MDC’s through the year 2012 at an estimated cost of $63,150 per year which includes the $15 
regulatory fee.   

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
DO  Bid Award 08-09 New Format\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 4 –MDCS 01.08.doc 

 











Page 1 of 2 
 

 

  
 January 9, 2008 
 
 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance & Administration 
  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award To Low Bidder – Community Center Carpet 
 
Background 
 
 On January 7, 2008, bid proposals were opened to purchase and install carpet in Rooms 303, 304 

and 305 of the Troy Community Center. 
 The carpet to be replaced is approximately five years old and is fraying at the seams.  The 

condition of the carpet negatively affects the appearance of these rooms which are used for 
events such as business meetings, wedding receptions, social parties and expo’s. 

 The new carpet would consist of 24” carpet tile pieces which are easier to maintain and replace 
than the rolled carpet that currently exists. 

 146 Vendors were notified via the MITN system with three (3) bidders responding. 
 

Financial Considerations 
 
 Funds are budgeted and available in the Community Center Capital account for renovation -  

#401755.7975.125. 
 
Legal Considerations 
 
 ITB-COT 07-40, Carpeting - Community Center was competitively bid as required by Chapter 7 of 

the City Code. 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in the purchase and 

installation of carpet in the designated rooms within the Community Center. 
 The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder’s submission of proper contract and bid 

documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 Bidding services of this type help minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government (Goal 

II) 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04b



Page 2 of 2 
 

January 9, 2008 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Bid Award – Community Center Carpet 
 
 
Policy Considerations - continued 
 
 Provides the public with clean, well maintained carpeting in rooms that are reserved for a variety 

of functions which is a reflection of the City (Goal V). 
 
Options 
 
 City management and the Parks and Recreation Department recommend awarding the contract 

for the Troy Community Center carpeting project to the lowest bidder, Conventional Carpet, Inc. of 
Sterling Heights, MI, for an estimated total cost of $20,811.00 to purchase and install carpet in 
Rooms 303, 304 and 305 at prices contained in the bid tabulation opened January 7, 2008. 

 



Opening Date -- 1/07/08 CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-40
Date Prepared -- 1/9/08 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 1

CARPETING - COMMUNITY CENTER
VENDOR NAME: * Conventional Oakland Commerical Turner - Brooks, Inc.

Carpet, Inc. Interiors
CHECK #: 547436070-0 835584114-2 742883282
CHECK AMOUNT: $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00

PROPOSAL:  FURNISH ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, AND EQUIPMENT TO REMOVE AND PROPERLY DISPOSE OF
          EXISTING CARPET AND INSTALL NEW SHAW TWIST CARPET TILES AND REDUCERS IN BANQUET ROOMS
PROPOSAL: A
Remove/Purchase, and Install Shaw Carpet Tiles in Two Rooms at the Community Center
Est. 3,456 Sq.Ft. TOTAL COST FOR AREA 12,878.00$             13,512.96$               15,900.00$             

Shaw Twist Carpet Tiles (Six Boxes) for Future Repairs/replacements
Est. 288 Sq.Ft TOTAL COST FOR AREA 761.60$                  950.40$                    840.00$                  

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 13,639.60$             14,463.36$               16,740.00$             
PROPOSAL: B
Remove/Purchase, and Install Shaw Carpet Tiles in One Additional Room at the Community Center
Est. 1,910 Sq.Ft. TOTAL COST FOR AREA 7,170.85$               7,468.10$                 8,700.00$               

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 7,170.85$               7,468.10$                 8,700.00$               
GRAND TOTAL: * 20,810.45$            21,931.46$               25,440.00$            

SCHEDULE OF VALUES: Y/N Yes Yes Yes

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes Yes Yes
Date 12/21/2007 1/3/2008 1/4/2008

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hours of Operation M-F  7:00 to 5:00 8 am to 6 pm 6:30 am to 5:00 pm
24 Hr Phone No. 586-739-6090 248-875-3531 248-548-3400

COMPLETION DATE: Can Meet XX XX
  W/I 45 BUSINESS DAYS Cannot Meet XX

But Offers 4-8 Weeks - Lead Time
3 days to install

QUESTIONNAIRE: Completed XX XX XX
No Completed

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

TERMS: Net 30 Days Blank Blank
WARRANTY: 1 yr -Labor 2 yr - Workmanship Blank

Carpet - Manufacturers Multiple yrs - Manufacturer
EXCEPTIONS: None Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y/N Yes Yes Yes

NO BIDS: 
Karen Advance Floors * DENOTES LOW BIDDER
Artistic Installations
ATTEST: _______________________________
Kraig Schmottlach Susan Leirstein CPPB
Diane Fisher Purchasing Director
Linda Bockstanz
G:ITB-COT 07-40 Carpeting - Community Center



Page 1 of 2 

 

  
January 17, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   

SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: MITN Purchasing Cooperative – 
Gasoline and Diesel Fuel   

 
Background    
 On December 11, 2007, the City of Sterling Heights obtained bids for two-year requirements of 

gasoline and diesel fuel commencing February 1, 2008, on behalf of the MITN Cooperative Cities 
of Birmingham, Eastpointe, Farmington Hills, Livonia, Madison Heights, Novi, Oakland County, 
Rochester Hills, Royal Oak, St Clair Shores, Southfield, Sterling Heights, Troy, Warren, Waterford, 
West Bloomfield and Westland. 

 Bids received from Atlas Oil and Spencer Oil were considered non-responsive, as both vendors 
failed to include all applicable taxes with their bid factors as specified. 

 The City of Sterling Heights based the award on the lowest factor quoted per type of fuel delivery 
plus the OPIS daily average for Detroit, Michigan. 

 The Sterling Heights City Council approved the split award to the low bidders meeting 
specifications on January 16, 2008. 

 Troy forecasts usage for unleaded at 200,000 gallons and diesel fuel at 75,000 gallons per year.  
 It should be noted that bid specifications included pricing for biodiesel and ethanol alternative fuel.  

Although municipal demand for these alternative fuels is presently low, it is anticipated that market 
conditions may result in a greater demand in the future. 

 
Financial Considerations 
 Pricing is established by taking the OPIS average, which is a benchmark price used to fix the price 

of a gallon of gas on the day of delivery, and then adding the factor bid. 
Example: OPIS average for regular gas on December 4th  $2.3098 

Bid factor           .0236 
       $2.3334 per gallon 

 
 Prices charged to municipalities through the bid will fluctuate based on market conditions, but are 

considerably lower than the consumer pump prices. 
 Since gasoline prices cannot be held firm, this method allows both parties to enter into an 

adjustable contract for a lengthy period of time. 
 Funds for this contract are available in the Motor Pool Operating Budget. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04c



Page 2 of 2 

 
January 17, 2008 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: MITN Cooperative Award – Gasoline and Diesel Fuel 
 
 
Legal Considerations 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item.  

 
Policy Considerations 
 By aggregating our gasoline consumption with neighboring communities, Troy utilizes economies 

of scale to add value and reduce costs to the City. (Goal II and VI) 
 
Options 
 City management recommends the award of the lowest factors to the following acceptable 

bidders: 
Mansfield Oil Company for Truck Transport Delivery (minimum 8,000 gals) 

TYPE FACTOR  (per gal) OPTIONAL FACTOR  (per gal) 
Unleaded Regular +.0236 Biodiesel B-5 +.0554 
Unleaded Mid-Grade +.0040 Biodiesel B-10 +.0554 
Unleaded Premium (.0090) Biodiesel B-20 +.0554 
ULS Diesel #1 +.0079 E85 Ethanol N/B 
ULS Premium Diesel #2 +.0396   
ULS Diesel #2 +.0196   
Short Load Charges between 5,000 – 8,000 gallons        $30.00 
Split Order Charge                                                            $30.00 
 
  RKA Petroleum Companies for Tank Wagon (no minimum) 
TYPE FACTOR  (per gal) OPTIONAL FACTOR  (per gal) 
Unleaded Regular +.11045 Biodiesel B-5 +.11045 
Unleaded Mid-Grade +.11045 Biodiesel B-10 +.11045 
ULS Premium Diesel #2 +.11045 Biodiesel B-20 +.11045 
ULS Diesel #2 +.11045 E85 Ethanol +.11045 
ULS Dyed Diesel #2 +.11045   
Short Load Charges     None 
Split Order Charge       None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DO  Bid Award 08-09 New Format\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 4 –Gasoline SH 01.08.doc 
 



 

 

 
Business of the City Council
Sterling Heights, Michigan 

 
 
  City Clerk's Use 
  Item No: 
  Meeting: 01/16/08 
   

AGENDA STATEMENT 
OMB AS03 Rev. 11/04 

 
 
Item Title: To award the bid for truck transport and tank wagon deliveries of gasoline, diesel and 

alternative fuels (estimated annual cost of $755,500.00) 
 
Submitted By:  Office of Purchasing 
 
Contact Person/Telephone:  Janice Sierzenga, Purchasing Manager, 446-2741 
 
Administration (initial as applicable) Attachments
 
       City Clerk       Resolution       Minutes 
 
       Finance & Budget Director       Ordinance       Plan/Map 
 
       City Attorney (as to legal form)       Contract       Other 
 
       City Manager 
 
  Check box if this agenda item requires billing/revenue collection (fees, etc.) by Treasury Office  
 
 
Executive Summary: 
 

• This item appeared on the agenda for the January 2, 2008 regular meeting, but was deleted due 
to the Office of Purchasing learning that one of the recommended bidders failed to include all 
taxes within their bid.  After adjusting this vendor's bid amount to include all applicable taxes, the 
Office of Purchasing is recommending a new vendor, Mansfield Oil Company, as the low bidder 
for truck transport deliveries of the specified fuels. 

 
• The City of Sterling Heights is the host municipality for a MITN cooperative gasoline, diesel, and 

alternative fuels bid that currently includes over 17 communities in the tri-county area. Among 
the governmental entities participating in the bid process through the submission of their 
respective fuel requirements are the cities of Birmingham, Eastpointe, Farmington Hills, Livonia, 
Madison Heights, Novi, Rochester Hills, Royal Oak, St. Clair Shores, Southfield, Sterling 
Heights, Troy, Warren, Westland, the Townships of Waterford and West Bloomfield, and County 
of Oakland. In addition, a number of other tri-county municipalities are expected to make fuel 
purchases using the pricing available through this MITN cooperative bid, including Clinton 
Township, Brownstown Township, Berkley, and Grosse Pointe. 

 
• On December 11, 2007, bids were received from five vendors. A vendor's bid average was 

calculated based on the OPIS Daily Average for Detroit, Michigan on December 4, 2007 plus 
the vendor's bid factor as shown in the example below: 

 
 

O:\Krista\Agenda\Gasoline 2007  ITB-SH07-040.doc 



 
 

O:\Krista\Agenda\Gasoline 2007  ITB-SH07-040.doc 

 
Average on Dec. 4th for regular gas $2.3098 
Bid Factor    .0236 
 $2.3334 per gallon 

 
Average on Dec. 4th for mid-grade gas $2.3535 
Bid Factor    .0040 

$2.3575 per gallon 
  
• Prices charged to the municipalities through the bid will fluctuate based on market conditions, 

but are considerably lower than the consumer pump prices as evidenced in the above example. 
 

• Mansfield Oil Company (Mansfield) is the low bidder meeting specifications for truck transport 
deliveries of over 5,000 gallons. RKA Petroleum Companies, Inc. (RKA) is the low bidder 
meeting specifications for tank wagon deliveries of fewer than 5,000 gallons. Although Atlas Oil 
Company appears to be the low bidder for truck transport deliveries and Spencer Oil Company 
appears to be low bidder for tank wagon deliveries, both vendors failed to include all applicable 
taxes in their bid and Spencer Oil Company did not complete required information in a number 
of areas in the bid format. 

 
• Recommendation is being made to split the award of the bid to Mansfield for truck transport 

deliveries and RKA for tank wagon deliveries. Mansfield has been the City's vendor for truck 
transport deliveries for the past four years and RKA is the current vendor for both Macomb 
County and the State of Michigan. 

  
• It should be noted that the bid specifications included pricing for supply of biodiesel and ethanol 

alternative fuels. Although municipal demand for these alternative fuels is presently low, it is 
anticipated that market conditions may result in a greater demand in the near future. 

 
 
Suggested Action: 
 
MOVED BY: SECONDED BY: 
 
RESOLVED, to split the award of the bid for gasoline, diesel and alternative fuels to Mansfield Oil 
Company, 1025 Airport Parkway S.W., Gainesville, GA 30501 for truck transport deliveries and RKA 
Petroleum Companies, Inc., 28340 Wick Road, Romulus, MI 48174, for tank wagon deliveries at the 
respective bid factors bid.  
 



 

O:\Krista\Agenda\Gasoline 2007  ITB-SH07-040.doc 

CITY OF STERLING HEIGHTS 
STAFF REPORT 
January 16, 2008 

 
Prepared By:  Janice Sierzenga, Purchasing Manager Ext. No.  2741  
 
GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
On December 11, 2007, bids were received in response to a MITN cooperative bid 
solicitation for the delivery of gasoline and diesel fuel. Invitations to bid were sent to the 
Chamber of Commerce, advertised on Cable Channel 5, posted on the MITN website, 
and published in the Advisor/Source newspaper. Five vendors responded with bids as 
outlined on the attached bid tabulation. Funds for the purchase of gasoline and diesel 
fuels are budgeted in Account #11717553-750000 (Fleet Maintenance - Fuels and 
Lubricants). It is estimated that the City of Sterling Heights will expend approximately 
$733,500 for truck transport deliveries and $22,000 for tank wagon deliveries annually. 
 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS AND FINDINGS: 
 
Recommendation is being made to split the award of the bid to Mansfield Oil Company 
(Mansfield) for truck transport deliveries and RKA Petroleum Companies, Inc. (RKA) for 
tank wagon deliveries of gasoline, diesel and alternative fuels. Mansfield has been the 
City's vendor for truck transport deliveries for the past four years and has proven to be a 
reliable and responsive vendor. 
 
RKA currently holds the fuel contract for the Road Commission of Macomb County and 
State of Michigan.  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
To split the award of the bid for gasoline, diesel and alternative fuels to: 
 
(A) Mansfield Oil Company, 1025 Airport Parkway S.W., Gainesville, GA 30501, for 

truck transport deliveries at bid factors of: 
 
Unleaded Regular $0.0236/gal OPTIONAL: 
Unleaded Mid-Grade $0.0040/gal Biodiesel B-5 $0.0554/gal 
Unleaded Premium -$0.0090/gal Biodiesel B-10 $0.0554/gal 
ULS Diesel #1 $0.0079/gal Biodiesel B-20 $0.0554/gal 
ULS Premium Diesel #2 $0.0396/gal E85 Ethanol no bid 
ULS Diesel #2 $0.0196/gal 
 
 
 

 



 

O:\Krista\Agenda\Gasoline 2007  ITB-SH07-040.doc 

(B) RKA Petroleum Companies, Inc., 28340 Wick Road, Romulus, MI 48174, for tank 
wagon deliveries at bid factors of: 

 
Unleaded Regular $0.11045/gal OPTIONAL: 
Unleaded Mid-Grade $0.11045/gal Biodiesel B-5 $0.11045/gal 
ULS Premium Diesel #2 $0.11045/gal Biodiesel B-10 $0.11045/gal 
ULS Diesel #2 $0.11045/gal Biodiesel B-20 $0.11045/gal 
ULS Dyed Diesel #2 $0.11045/gal E85 Ethanol $0.11045/gal 
 











campbellld
Text Box
F-04d







Page 1 of 2 
 

   January 21, 2008 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Charles T. Craft, Police Chief 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – Fleet Vehicles 
  
Background 

• Buff Whelan Chevrolet and Red Holman Pontiac GMC are the low total bidders in the Oakland 
County cooperative bid. 

• The vehicles being purchased are replacement vehicles for those sold at auction. 
 
Financial Considerations 

• Funds are available in the Public Works Fleet Division capital account # 565.7981. 
 

                                                                                                                                             ESTIMATED 
     BUDGET           UNIT COST    TOTAL 

 BUFF WHELAN CHEVROLET  
    (1) Chevrolet Malibu Sedan    $  14,500.00  $ 15,692.00  $  15,692.00 
    (1) Chevrolet Passenger Van   $  17,500.00  $ 18,505.40  $  18,505.40 
    (1) Chevrolet Cargo Van  (155 WB)  $  17,500.00  $ 18,459.00  $  18,459.00 
    (1) Chevrolet Cargo Vans (135 WB)  $  17,500.00  $ 17,649.00  $  17,649.00 
    (1) Chevrolet Crew Cab Pickup   $  23,000.00  $ 22,240.33  $  22,240.33 
    (2) Chevrolet ¾ Ton Pickups 4X4  $  50,000.00  $ 20,005.00  $  40,010.00 
    (3) Chevrolet Ext. Cab Pickups   $  52,500.00  $ 18,037.60  $  54,112.80 
    (3) Chevrolet Mid-Size Pickups   $  52,500.00  $ 13,962.00  $  41,886.00 
    (1) Chevrolet Ext. Cab Pickup 4X4  $  22,000.00   $ 23,145.18  $  23,145.18    
       $267,000.00     $251,699.71  
    
    Red Holman Pontiac GMC 

(1) Pontiac G-6 Sedan    $ 22,000.00  $ 16,428.00  $  16,428.00 
(1) Pontiac Torrent AWD   $ 22,000.00  $ 21,922.00  $  21,922.00 
(1) GMC Acadia AWD    $ 22,000.00  $ 25,505.00  $  25,505.00 

       $ 66,000.00     $  63,855.00 
 
   ESTIMATED  TOTAL $333,000.00     $315,554.71 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04e



Page 2 of 2 
 

January 21, 2008 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Cooperative Award – Fleet Vehicles 
 
 
Legal Considerations  

• There are no legal considerations associated with this item.  
 
Policy Considerations 

• The vehicles are used on a daily basis to assure proper and proactive Police protection and 
service (Goals I & V). 

• The purchase of the Police and Public Works vehicles would assure the safety and welfare of 
citizens and businesses and also reduce the liability for the City. (Goal I). 

 
Options 
City management and the Public Works Fleet Division recommend awarding contracts to provide 
fourteen (14) 2008 vehicles for the Police and Public Works departments from Buff Whelan Chevrolet 
of Sterling Heights, MI, and three (3) 2008 vehicles for the Police department from Red Holman 
Pontiac GMC of Westland, MI, through Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreements at an 
estimated total cost of $251,700.00 and $63,855.00 respectively.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SPL\S:\Murphy’s Review/Agenda 1.28.08 – SR4- Vehicles Oakland County Letter 
 



campbellld
Text Box
F-05



















campbellld
Text Box
F-06







campbellld
Text Box
F-07













 

  
January 11, 2008 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services  

           Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
           Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director  

  
SUBJECT:            Contract Extension - Standard and Compound Water Meters  
  
Background 
 On April 12, 2004, City Council approved a two-year contract to provide standard and compound 

water meters with an option to renew for two additional years with S.L.C. Meter Service Inc of 
Davisburg, MI (Resolution #2004-04-190-E10).  The option was exercised on December 19, 2005 
with a contract expiration of December 31, 2007 (Resolution #2005-12-546-E4e). 

 S.L.C Meter Service Inc is offering a contract extension of one year, under the original contract 
pricing, terms and conditions to expire on December 31, 2008, with the exception of an increase in 
the trade-in allowance for 2” meters and compound meters.  

 Purchasing has conducted a market survey and determined the City would not benefit from 
soliciting new bids for the standard and compound water meters. 

 
Financial Considerations  
 Funds are available in the Water Department Operating Budget. 

 
Legal Considerations 
 Formal bidding procedures are waived, as no benefit would be derived from soliciting 

formal bids. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 By renewing this contract, the City minimizes cost increases and benefits from efficient strategic 

planning. (Goal II). 
 
Options 
 City management recommends that the current contract be extended to purchase Standard and 

Compound Water Meters from S.L.C Meter Service, Inc of Davisburg, MI, under the same prices, 
terms, and conditions as the original contract, with exceptions to trade-in allowances as detailed in 
Appendix A. 

 
S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda 01.28.08 – RB - Extension – Water MetersLetter 01.08.doc  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-08



Appendix A

Est Qty Description Model #
Trade‐in 
Allowance Unit Price

Standard Meters

600 5/8" x 3/4"  T‐10 Arb‐V ($2.25) $80.21

1200 3/4"  T‐10 Arb‐V ($3.25) $104.82

40 1"  T‐10 Arb‐V ($4.25) $136.23

10 1 1/2" w/Connections T‐10 Arb‐V ($10.00) $295.82

10 2" w/Connections  T‐10 Arb‐V ($30.00) $319.96

Additional Cable, per unit, per foot $0.08

Compound Meters

24 2" w/Connections  Tru‐Flow ($60.00) $1,019.04

30 3" w/Connections Tru‐Flow ($80.00) $1,275.46

24 4" w/Connections Tru‐Flow ($100.00) $1,906.46

4 6" w/Connections Tru‐Flow ($120.00) $,2992.08



 
 

January 11, 2008 
 

TO:      Susan Leirstein CPPB 
      Purchasing Director 
 
FROM:     Julie Hamilton 
      Buyer 
 
RE:      MARKET SURVEY – STANDARD AND COMPOUND WATER METERS  
 
NATIONAL WATER WORKS (AMCO METERS) – Rich Gardner                      (630) 661-9111 
Spoke to Len Fleishman of National Water Works in order to determine if Amco meters were 
compatible with the City’s existing Neptune metering system.  Mr. Fleishman directed me to 
Rich Gardner of Amco Meters to discuss the issue.  Mr. Gardner provided a series of questions 
regarding our current system that was passed along to DPW for answers.  Upon receiving the 
information from DPW, Mr. Gardner felt confident that Amco would be able to meet the City’s 
requirements but wanted to verify compatibility with his technical department.  After that 
conversation in mid December, Mr. Gardner never called back to state whether or not the 
systems were compatible with each other.   
 
 
Additionally, calculations were performed using the Consumer Price Index and Producer Price 
Index for the period from January 2006 to October of 2007.  During this time frame, the 
Consumer Price Index for the Detroit-Ann Arbor-Flint area experienced a 4% increase.  In 
addition, the Producer Price Index for copper and brass products, for the same time period, 
increased by 55%.   
 
 
Based upon the above information, I see no benefit from soliciting new bids and respectfully 
recommend that the City accept the offer to renew the contract for standard and compound 
water meters to the current vendor based on the fact that the CPI and PPI has shown significant 
increases in the past year and that other company products appear to be incompatible with the 
City’s current metering system.  
 
CC: File  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Purchasing\Bid Award 08-09 New Format\Regular Business - Contract Extension - Water Meters - MARKET SURVEY 01-08.doc 











December 2, 2005 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise 

Renewal Option –Standard and Compound Water Meters 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On April 12, 2004, City Council approved a two-year contract to provide standard and compound 
water meters with an option to renew for two additional years to the low bidder, SLC Meter 
Service Inc. of Davisburg, MI (Council Resolution #2004-04-190-E10).  Staff recommends the 
City exercise the option to renew for two additional years under the same prices, terms and 
conditions, expiring December 31, 2007. 
 
PROPOSAL I:  STANDARD METERS 
Est. Qty Description  Model #  Trade-in Unit Price 
        Allowance 
300  5/8” x ¾” Meter  T-10 ARB-V    (2.25)  $  80.21 
600  ¾” Meter  T-10 ARB-V       (3.25)   $104.82 
  20  1” Meter  T-10 ARB-V     (4.25)  $136.23 
   5  1-1/2” Meter  T-10 ARB-V  (10.00)  $295.82 
   5  2” Meter  T-10 ARB-V   (14.00)  $319.96 
  Additional Cable per Unit, per Foot    $      .08 

 Discount on Parts           10% 
 
PROPOSAL II:  COMPOUND METERS 
Est. Qty Description  Model #  Trade-in Unit Price 
        Allowance 
12  2” Compound   Tru-Flo     (30.00)  $1,019.04 
15  3” Compound  Tru-Flo     (40.00)  $1,275.46 
12  4” Compound  Tru-Flo     (50.00)  $1,906.46 
  2  6” Compound  Tru-Flo   (100.00) $2,992.08 
  Discount on Parts           10% 
 
MARKET SURVEY 
A market survey was not deemed necessary, as the City has standardized on the Neptune Water 
Meter System and SLC Meter Service is the authorized distributor for the State of Michigan.  In 
addition, on November 14, 2005, City Council approved to expand the meter read process to the 
remaining 26,000 residential meters with the Neptune Automatic Meter Read System and 
ongoing equipment installations as needed for ten (10) years.  The radio read equipment 
connects directly to the water meter and works in unison to meter water usage. Transition to the 
AMR system was determined to be seamless because of its adaptability to the Neptune and 
Schlumberger water meters and the most economical to implement. It utilizes the city’s current 3-
wire system, accommodates a mixed environment of manual and radio read, and interfaces to the 
Hansen Water Billing System without any additional costs or software bridges.  
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available in the Water Department Operating Budget.  
 
Prepared by: Emily Frontera, Administrative Aide        
               

campbellld
Text Box
E-04e









March 24, 2004 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Gary A. Shripka, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 1- Award To Low 

Bidder – Standard And Compound Water Meters 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On January 28, 2004, bid proposals were opened to furnish two-year 
requirements of Standard and Compound Water Meters with an option to renew 
for two additional years.  After reviewing these proposals, City management 
recommends awarding the contract to the low bidder, SLC Meter Service Inc. of 
Davisburg, MI, at an estimated cost of $148,390.00 per year at unit prices 
contained in the attached bid tabulation.  The City has been very satisfied with 
their product and service over the years.  Water meters are purchased on an as 
needed basis throughout the year. 
 
SUMMARY 
PROPOSAL I:  STANDARD METERS 
Est. Qty Description  Model #  Trade-in Unit Price 
        Allowance 
300  5/8” x ¾” Meter T-10 ARB-V       (2.25)  $  80.21 
600  ¾” Meter  T-10 ARB-V       (3.25)  $104.82 
  20  1” Meter  T-10 ARB-V     (4.25)  $136.23 
   5  1-1/2” Meter  T-10 ARB-V  (10.00)  $295.82 
   5  2” Meter  T-10 ARB-V   (14.00)  $319.96 
  Additional Cable per Unit, per Foot    $      .08 

 Discount on Parts           10% 
 
PROPOSAL II:  COMPOUND METERS 
Est. Qty Description  Model #  Trade-in Unit Price 
        Allowance 
12  2” Compound  Tru-Flo    (30.00) $1,019.04 
15  3” Compound Tru-Flo    (40.00) $1,275.46 
12  4” Compound Tru-Flo    (50.00) $1,906.46 
  2  6” Compound Tru-Flo  (100.00) $2,992.08 
  Discount on Parts           10% 
 

1 of 2 
 
 



March 24, 2004 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Bid Award - Standard and Compound Meters 
 
  
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
National Waterworks, Inc. withdrew their bid because AMCO, the meter 
manufacturer, was unable to modify their current reading system to comply with 
the City’s 6-digit billing software constraint. (See Attachment I) 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available in the Water Department Operating Budget, as monies clear 
through the balance sheet Inventory Account for Meters. 
 
 
 
32 Vendors Notified on MITN System 
  1 Vendor Walk-In 
  2 Bid Responses Rec’d 
  1 Bid Withdrawn 
  3 No Bids: (2) Companies do not handle the type of product specified. 
  (1) Company cannot meet specifications nor provide an approved alternate. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Emily Frontera, Administrative Aide 
 
 

2 of 2 



CITY OF TROY

Opening Date:  1-28-04 BID TABULATION ITB-COT 03-47

Date Prepared: 3/24/04 STANDARD AND COMPOUND METERS Pg 1 of 2

VENDOR NAME:

EST TRADE UNIT TRADE UNIT

ITEM # QTY DESCRIPTION MODEL # IN PRICE MODEL # IN PRICE

PROPOSAL I:  STANDARD METERS

1. 300 5/8" X 3/4" Meter T-10 ARB V (2.25)$           80.21$         C-700 (2.00)$         68.55$         

 

2. 600 3/4" Meter T-10 ARB V (3.25)$           104.82$       C-700 (2.00)$         77.44$         

 

3. 20 1" Meter T-10 ARB V (4.25)$           136.23$       C-700 (3.00)$         111.89$       

4. 5 1 1/2" Meter w/connection T-10 ARB V (10.00)$         295.82$       C-700 (4.00)$         245.10$       

 

5. 5 2" Meter w/connection T-10 ARB V (14.00)$         319.96$       C-700 (4.00)$         280.67$       

Meters manufactured by: NEPTUNE AMCO, INC Formerly ABB

6. Additional cable, per unit, per foot 0.08$           0.17$           

7.a. Discount on parts 10% 10%

7.b. Parts Listed to be used - dated: JAN "04" 1/26/04

Attached & Marked as: U676-9 "A"

PROPOSAL II:  COMPOUND METERS TRADE UNIT TRADE UNIT

MODEL # IN PRICE MODEL # IN PRICE

1. 12 2" Compound w/connections TRU-FLO (30.00)$         1,019.04$     C-3000 (8.00)$         1,053.00$    

 

2. 15 3" Compound w/connections TRU-FLO (40.00)$         1,275.46$     C-3000 (10.00)$       1,338.00$    

3. 12 4" Compound w/connections TRU-FLO (50.00)$         1,906.46$     C-3000 (12.00)$       2,182.00$    

 

4. 2 6" Compound w/connections TRU-FLO (100.00)$       2,992.08$     C-3000 (16.00)$       4,215.00$    

Meters manufactured by: NEPTUNE AMCO, INC Formerly ABB

5.a. Discount on parts 10% 10%

5.b. Parts Listed to be used - dated: Jan-2004 1/26/04

Attached & Marked as: U676-9 A-1

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL PER YEAR: *  148,390.56$ WITHDREW

CONTACT INFORMATION: HRS 8-5pm Mon-Fri 7am-5pm

PHONE # (248)670-6283 (866)833-0067

TERMS NET 30 DAYS NET 30 DAYS

DELIVERY DATE AS REQUIRED 3-4 WEEKS

WARRANTY STANDARD MFG 10 YEARS

EXCEPTIONS BLANK NONE

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT - SIGN:

Y or N YES YES

NATIONAL WATERWORKS INC

- WITHDREW BID -

*  SLC METER SERVICE INC



CITY OF TROY

Opening Date:  1-28-04 BID TABULATION ITB-COT 03-47

Date Prepared: 3/24/04 STANDARD AND COMPOUND METERS Pg 2 of 2

PROPOSAL-- Two-Year Requirements of Standard and Compound Water Meters with an Option to Renew for

Two Additional Years

* DENOTES LOW BIDDER

NO BIDS:

  Etna Supply Company

  Core Electric Mich Pump

  Underground Pipe-AMR Division

ATTEST:

  Emily Frontera

  MaryAnn Hays

  Jeanette Bennett _____________________________

Jeanette Bennett

Purchasing Director

G: ITB-COT 03-47 Water Meters











campbellld
Text Box
F-09











campbellld
Text Box
F-10













campbellld
Text Box
F-11





 

 
 
January 22, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
    William Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
 
SUBJECT:   Request to permit Fireworks at Mon Jin Lau 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 The Mon Jin Lau Restaurant is requesting permission to discharge fireworks for the purpose of 

celebrating Chinese New Year.   
 The Mon Jin Lau celebration is scheduled for February 6, 2008. 
 The Police and Fire Departments do not object to the request. 
 In the past, City Council has routinely approved this request 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 N/A 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 City Ordinance prohibits the discharge of fireworks (Chapter 98.05.16 and Chapter 93, 3301.1.3); 

therefore, City Council action is required to grant a variance.    
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 City of Troy Goal # 1 – Enhance the livability and safety of the community. 
 
Options: 
 
 Approve or deny the request. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-12



campbellld
Text Box
F-13























 
 
Date January 16, 2008 

 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

 
FROM: Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 
SUBJECT: Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Cathy Killian, 

President – Troy Foundation for Educational Excellence 
  
Background: 
 
  Attached is a request from Cathy Killian, President – Troy Foundation for Educational 

Excellence, seeking recognition as a nonprofit organization status for the purpose of obtaining a 
charitable gaming license for fundraising purposes. It has been City Management’s practice to 
support the approval of such requests. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
  There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
  There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
  There are no policy considerations associated with this item. 
 
Options: 
 
  It is recommended that Troy City Council approve the proposed resolution to approve the 

request from Cathy Killian, President – Troy Foundation for Educational Excellence asking that 
they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the community for the purpose of 
obtaining a charitable gaming license. 

 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-14















































 

  
January 21, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT:   Announcement of Public Hearing – Michigan Next Energy Exemptions 
  
 
 
Background: 
 
 The Michigan Next Energy Authority (MNEA) has certified the three (3) subject companies as 

Alternative Energy Technology Businesses.  MNEA has approved Personal Property Exemptions 
for these companies, subject to verification of the personal Property by the local Assessor, and 
subject to City Council approval.  Staff requests this Public Hearing be held on February 18, 2008. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations at this time. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 A Public Hearing must occur within sixty (60) days of receipt of the MNEA resolution(s).  Receipt 

occurred on January 11, 2008. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy considerations at this time. 

 
Options: 
 
 A Public Hearing must occur within sixty (60) days of receipt of the MNEA resolution(s).   

 
 
NL/nl H:\NextEnergy\2008\MemoSetPH02.18.08 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a



OVONIC MEDIA LLC 
2956 WATERVIEW DR 
ROCHESTER HILLS MI 48309 

 
UNITED SOLAR OVONIC CORP 
1100 W MAPLE 
TROY MI 48084-5352 

COMPACT POWER INC 
1857 TECHNOLOGY DRIVE 
TROY MI  48083 

DAVE HEIBER 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE #1000W 
PONTIAC MI 48231 

 
PATRICK DOHANY 
OAKLAND CO PUBL TRANSPORT’N 
1200 N TELEGRAPH 49W 
PONTIAC MI 48231-0049 

OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE RD 
WATERFORD MI 48328 

OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
GEORGE A BEE ADMIN CNTR 
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266 

 
MICHAEL ADAMCZYK 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 

WARREN CONSOLIDATED SCHOOLS 
31300 ANITA 
WARREN MI 48093-1697 

MACOMB INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS 
44001 GARFIELD 
CLINTON TWP MI 48038-1100 

   

Formatted for Avery 5160 Labels    

    

    

    

    

    



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, February 18, 2008 at 7:30 P.M. to 
consider Alternative Energy Personal Property Exemptions approved by the Michigan 
NextEnergy Authority for the following three (3) locations in the City of Troy: 
  
T2N, R11E, of Section 28    United Solar Ovonic Corp. 
1100 W Maple, Troy, Michigan 
 
T2N, R11E, of Section 34    Ovonic Battery Company 
1414 Combermere, Troy, Michigan 
 
 
T2N, R11E, of Section 35    Compact Power, Inc. 
1857 Technology, Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

January 28, 2008 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 
MEMORANDUMS:  

G-2 No Memorandums Submitted  

campbellld
Text Box
G-02



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

January 28, 2008 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 
COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced  

campbellld
Text Box
H-01



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

January 28, 2008 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 
COUNCIL COMMENTS:  

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced  

campbellld
Text Box
I-01



1 

 TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL September 18, 2007 
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Historic District Commission was held Tuesday, 
September 18, 2007 at the City Hall. Barbara Chambers called the meeting to order at 
7:35 P.M.   
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT Barbara Chambers 
   Paul Lin 
   Ann Partlan 
   Gary Castile 
   Muriel Rounds 
                        Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager   
           
  ABSENT        Sabah Jihad  
 
  GUESTS William Martin, 138 E. Square Lake Rd.  
        Mike Nimmo, Father and Son Construction 
        Charlene and Carl Freeman, 2955 Quail Run  
 

Resolution #HDC-2007-09-001 
Moved by Rounds  
Seconded by Partlan 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Jihad be approved. 

Yes: 5  Chambers, Lin, Partlan, Castile and Rounds 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

Resolution #HDC-2007-09-002 
Moved by Partlan  
Seconded by Castile 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the August 21, 2007 meeting be approved. 

Yes: 5  Chambers, Lin, Partlan, Castile and Rounds 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. 138 E. Square Lake Road 
The Commission reviewed the revised blueprints to add a rear addition to the 
historic resource. The following points were discussed; 

1. The rear addition will expand the existing back porch into a bath and 
laundry room. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



2 

2. The flat roof was retained to preserve the original second story window. 
The “shed roof” suggested by Mr. Lin was not presented because 
prevailing west winds might cause snow to accumulate in the pocket area 
in this design. The design was also much more costly. 

3. Mr. Nimmo said all the recommendations provided by the Commission 
were incorporated into the design except for the “shed roof.” 

4. Mr. Linn stated that the trench footing as show in the prints is improperly 
structured. The new footing should be taken down to a level equal with the 
existing footing on undisturbed soil. 

 

 
Resolution #HDC-2007-09-003 
Moved by Partlan  
Seconded by Chambers 
 
RESOLVED, That the Commission approve the plan as submitted but that they 
recognize and approve a possible change mandated by the Building Department 
regarding the bearing on the trench footing as depicted in FS#270159 
 

Yes: 5  Chambers, Lin, Partlan, Castile and Rounds 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. 4320 John R (Hill House) 
Ann Partlan reported that this historic resource is for sale. 
 

B. Museum Plaques 
Ann Partlan reported that the museum is planning on new interpretive signage for 
the historic structures in the village as part of the Museum expansion project. 
 

C. Move location of Historic District Commission meetings 
Ann Partlan suggested that future meetings be held at the Museum rather than at 
City Hall and that the meetings begin at 7:00 PM rather than at 7:30 PM. Loraine 
Campbell suggested that it would be better to change the meeting location and 
time in January when the new schedule of meetings is posted. 

 
Resolution #HDC-2007-09-004 
Moved by Partlan  
Seconded by Rounds 
 
RESOLVED, That beginning in January 2008, the Historic District Commission 
meet on the third Tuesday of the month at 7:00 PM at the Troy Museum. 
 



3 

Yes: 5  Chambers, Lin, Partlan, Castile and Rounds 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The Troy Historic District Commission Meeting was adjourned at 8:47 PM. The next 
meeting will be held Tuesday, October 16, 2007 at 7:30 p.m. at City Hall. 
 
 

 
                  

Barbara Chambers 
Chairperson 

 
 

Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

 



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL OCTOBER 16, 2007 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Historic District Commission was not held Tuesday, 
October 16, 2007 at City Hall due to lack of quorum. 
 
 
The next regular meeting will be held Tuesday, November 20, 2007 at 7:30 p.m. at City 
Hall. 
 

 
 
 
 
                  

Barbara Chambers 
Chairman 
 
 
 

Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



TROY CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – FINAL OCTOBER 18, 2007 

 

. 
CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Thursday, October 18, 2007 – 7 p.m. 
Conference Room C – Troy City Hall 

  
Call to Order  7:05 pm 

 
Roll Call 

 
Present:  
Kent Voigt   Nancy Chen, Student 

 Bryan Wehrung  Tom Belian     
 Lisa Martinico  Penny Marinos 

Brian Wattles   Cindy Stewart, City Liaison  
   Chi Song, Student Rep 
   Absent:  Alan Manzon 
 
III. Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting of April 19, 2007 
 Change under old Business  – Sysco should be CISCO  
 
 Motion by Kent Voigt 
 Seconded by Lisa Martinico 
 APPROVED with changes 
 
 
IV.  Correspondence:  None 
 
 
V.   A. Comcast – Channel Addition & Repositions – July 19, 2007 

Channel additions: Food Network HD, HGTV HD, CSTV (College Sports), 
Sportsman Channel. 
 
Complaint from Brian Wattles – he never gets notices as a Comcast 
customer.  Penny agreed – she never gets notices re: changes from 
WOW either.   
 
Observation – the Music Channel on WOW, the audio is very low.  When 
you turn it up you get static and hissing noises.  Needs better modulation.   

 
Channel repositions:  IFC (Ind. Film Channel), Music Choice and Gospel 

Music Channel 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



TROY CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – FINAL OCTOBER 18, 2007 

 

B. WOW – Earns top carrier position in 2006 J.D. Power & Associates 
Residential Telephone Satisfaction Survey for North Central Region – July 
11, 2007 
2005 & 2000 they got top honors for cable and internet.  WOW is 
dedicated to living “Modern Life Made Easy.”  WOW enters into their 
second decade of offering competitive performance, reliability, cost of 
service, offerings and promotions, image and billing.   
 
C. Comcast – Real Facts about the Big Ten Network – July 9, 2007 
 
The best and fairest way to protect all consumers is for the cable company 
to offer Fox Cable networks Big 10 network on a digital sports station or as 
a subscription package.  Big 10 network wants people to pay $12/year.  
This info was Comcast’s  defense to charging for Big 10 network.   
 
D.  Comcast – Complimentary Municipal Video Accounts Dropped – July 
2, 2007 
Comcast did an extensive review of their complimentary service accounts 
and determined that they would be realigning these accounts from 
complimentary status to commercial status.  All municipal drops will not be 
free except for schools and library, plus one drop at Fire and Police.   
 
WOW communicated with the City – they will be happy to offer 
complimentary service to our municipal facilities.   
 
E.  Comcast – Price Changes effective August 1, 2007 – June 5, 2007 
Comcast sent pricing changes for installation and service charges for 
residential effective August 1, 2007.   
 
F.  Comcast – Offers NFL Network on Digital Sports Tier – May 15, 2007 
Effective June 20, 2007, the NFL network will move from channel 180 on 
the Digital Plus tier to channel 275 on the Sports Entertainment Pack.  In 
order to receive the NFL network, customers will need to subscribe to the 
Sports Entertainment Pack.   
 
G.  Comcast – Payment Options – May 8, 2007 
Multiple options to pay Comcast bill - mail a check, recurring charge on a 
credit card, automatic withdrawal from bank account, pay online or pay in 
person at one of the service centers.  There is a charge of $1.99 to have 
payments processed by a live agent at one of the payment centers.  If 
customer elects to have Comcast services reactivated after deactivation 
there will be charges effective July 1, 2007.   
 
H.  Comcast – Commitment to Michigan – April 24, 2007 
Their 4,400 employee workforce will be expanded by 500 new jobs in 
2007.  Combined with their $2 billion investment in broadband fiber 



TROY CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – FINAL OCTOBER 18, 2007 

 

technology over the past decade, Comcast prides itself on being a major 
contributor to Michigan’s economic growth.  Comcast will continue to 
invest in the schools by offering and maintaining existing free video drops; 
offer and maintain independent internet connections.   
 
 

VI. Articles 
 

A. Comcast Unveils New Broadband Technology called “Wideband” – 
Media Week – May 8, 2007 

“Wideband” can download vast amounts of data and video in a matter of 
seconds and potentially supercharge cable’s triple-play offering.  
Wideband can download 4 gigabytes of data (the entire Encyclopedia 
Britannica – 55 million words) in less than 4 minutes.  Traditional cable 
modem would take 3 hours and a dial-up connection would take 2 weeks 
to download.  Comcast CEO Brian Roberts said, “Consumers want more, 
faster.  We just have to keep investing.” Kent said, “Watch for news from 
Sprint offering new technology in the near future.”   
 
 

VII.  New Business 
 

A. CMN Comcast 
 
ICCA approved at their September meeting a 5 year contract with 
Community Media Network (CMN).  We are very happy with CMN’s 
service led by Exec Director Jay Wiencko.  We hope the communities who 
do not contribute part of their 1% PEG fees to Public Access will 
reconsider (Clawson, Huntington Woods, and Pleasant Ridge).   
 
CMN Contract 
Jay sent correspondence related to CMN Contract approval.  Last fiscal 
year Troy led all cities with 34 CMN members and 12 nonprofit 
memberships.  There were 23 Troy graduates of their production training 
services, and 13 advanced training participants.  CMN also facilitated 12 
remote (van) productions for Troy schools as well as “Courage First” and 
“League of Women Voters.”   
 
Jay Wiencko is very proud of the partnership CMN enjoys with Troy, its 
very active resident members and nonprofits.   
 
 

VII.  Old Business 
 

A. Report on Web Publications from members 
 



TROY CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – FINAL OCTOBER 18, 2007 

 

Wireless Oakland Residential Service (Michtel Communications)  
 
Free   128 k   
Silver package 512 k down/up    –   $19.95/month 
Gold package .54 m down & 768 k up   –   $26.95/month 
 
Wireless Business Service 
Silver  $19.95 512K 
Gold  $39.95 1.54 mg down/7.68 k up 
Platinum $99.00 1.54 down/1.54 up 
 
Said they are 100% up and running for their Phase I installation in portions 
of 7 communities (Birmingham, Troy, Oak Park, Royal Oak, Madison 
Heights, Pontiac, Wixom).  7,000 users signed up since July & 100 users 
have paid to upgrade. 
 
In 1st 24 hours of service, they saw 10% of households in area begin to 
use the free internet service.   
 
 

VIII. Staff Report 
Introduction of new student rep 
Chi Song - He is a junior at Troy High who is working towards a career in 
medicine.  He has an interest in technology and also enjoys obtaining 
information via the internet and YouTube.  He has no time to watch TV.   
 
Cable Guide – September/October/November showing a lot of Troy Daze 
programming.  We also taped the League of Women Voters Candidates 
Forum.   

 
  
IX. Committee Member Comment 
 

Bryan said his 3rd tern is up in January 2008.  He said he would not ask to 
be reappointed.  January 2008 agenda we will select a new chair.   

 
X.   Adjournment  
 
 Motion to adjourn by Penny Marinos seconded by Lisa Martinico  

at 8:35 p.m. 
 
 

________________________________ 
Bryan Wehrung, Chairman 
 
________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, City Liaison 



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board – FINAL                                             November 1, 2007 
 

PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 
 
A special meeting of the Troy Parks and Recreation Advisory Board was held Thursday, 
November 1, 2007 at the Lloyd Stage Nature Center.  Chairman, Tom Krent called the 
meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Present: Pauline Noce, member  Kathleen Fejes, member 
  Rusty Kaltsounis, member  Divya Subramanian, student representative 
  Tom Krent, member   Stuart Redpath, member 
  Janice Zikakis, member  Jeff Biegler staff 
  Carol Anderson, staff 
 
Absent:  Gary Hauff, Tod Gazetti, Meaghan Kovacs, Jeff Stewart 
 
Resolution #PR-2007-11-15 
Moved by    Fejes 
Seconded by  Zikakis 
 
RESOLVED, that absent members are excused.   
 
Yes: All 
No: None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #PR-2007-11-16 
Moved by:  Fejes 
Seconded by: Kaltsounis 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes from September 20, 2007 are approved as submitted.   
 
Yes: All 
No: None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

A.  Remnant Parcel Review – Two parcels were reviewed for their value as parks.  Both 
parcels are small and surrounded by industrial buildings.   

 
Resolution #PR-2007-11-17 
Moved by:  Fejes 
Seconded by: Zikakis 
 
RESOLVED, That whereas the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board has reviewed 1930 
Woodslee and found little value as a possible park site, therefore be it resolved that the Parks 
and Recreation Advisory Board recommends sale of the parcel.   
 
Yes: All 
No: None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board – FINAL                                             November 1, 2007 
 
Resolution #PR-2007-11-18 
Moved by:  Fejes 
Seconded by: Zikakis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board has reviewed vacant parcel  
88-20-26-429-045 and found little value as a possible park site, therefore be it resolved that 
the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board recommends sale of the parcel.   
 
Yes: Fejes, Redpath, Zikakis, Krent, and Noce. 
No: Kaltsounis 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

A.  Zoning Ordinance 230 Text Amendment – The proposed amendment would allow 
wireless communication towers in parks.   

 
Resolution #PR-2007-11-19 
Moved by:  Kaltsounis 
Seconded by: Fejes 
 
RESOLVED, That the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board recommends that the City 
Council reject ZOTA 230 article XVII permitting cell towers in parks at this time but reconsider 
the possibility when the zoning ordinance is rewritten in its entirety.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board be allowed to 
offer input, review and make recommendations regarding this matter at the time the zoning 
ordinance is rewritten.   
 
Yes: All 
No: None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Member Comments:   Tom Krent had two newspaper articles.  One was from the Eccentric 
dated July 29, 2007 about the Milverton Park development.  The second article was about the 
golf courses and was in the Tribune.   
 
Rusty Kaltsounis mentioned that there are two lots for sale on Livernois next to the park site 
that will be developed.  Ms. Anderson will have Real Estate and Development look into these 
parcels.   
 
Jan Zikakis said that family and friends have commented to her about how beautiful the 
municipal grounds and medians are maintained by the City however, she thought that vibrant 
colors work best and the Cleomes don’t show well.   
 
Staff Reports 
Directors Report – A contract is being drawn up to allow employees of Troy Beaumont 
hospital use of Flynn Park parking lot with a financial return to the City.   
 
 
 



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board – FINAL                                             November 1, 2007 
 
Section 11 parksite (on Square Lake Road near the Heron Rookery) surrounded a parcel that 
was previously unavailable.  A Purchase Agreement has been drafted to buy that parcel and 
include it as part of the park.  The City Council will make a decision on the purchase in the 
near future.   
 
Resolution #PR-2007-11-20 
Moved by:  Redpath 
Seconded by: Fejes 
 
RESOLVED, That there will be no December meeting unless there is an issue needing 
immediate resolution.   
 
Yes: All 
No: None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Alcohol At Golf Courses – The caterer will close for the year on November 15 at Sanctuary 
Lake Golf Course.  The vendor at Sanctuary, Kosch Special Events, LLC. has formally 
requested approval to allow alcohol sales on the golf course.  It is frequently requested by 
patrons and beer can be purchased at the club house and taken on the golf course.  
Discussion regarding alcohol sales on the course followed.   
 
Resolution #PR-2007-11-21 
Moved by:  Fejes 
Seconded by: Redpath 
 
RESOLVED, That the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board recommends that the City 
Council direct staff to pursue options which would allow alcohol sales on the golf courses and 
further that the City Council direct staff to prepare addendums to the existing food service 
agreements at both courses allowing alcohol sales on the golf course proper.   
 
Yes:  3    Krent, Fejes, Redpath 
No:  None 
Abstained: 3    Zikakis, Kaltsounis, Noce 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Park Report – The solar house has been delivered to the Community Center.  The footings 
have been poured and two courses of cinder block will need to be built followed by assembly 
of the house.   
 
The summer laborers are done for the season and the restrooms were closed in the parks as 
of October 31st.   
 
The department is applying for a grant from the Kellogg Foundation to build a boundless 
playground or a barrier free playground.  This type of playground goes beyond the ADA 
requirements for play elements and makes it more accessible.  If awarded, the playground 
will be built on the Livernois park site.   
 
 
 



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board – FINAL                                             November 1, 2007 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at  8:25 p.m. 
 
_________________________________ 
Tom Krent, Chairman 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Mary Williams, Recording Secretary 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD FINAL MINUTES November 13, 2007  

 

 
TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD 

TUESDAY NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
TROY CITY HALL - CONFERENCE ROOM C 

 
I. Call to Order 7:02 p.m. 
 
II. Roll Call: 
 

Present:  
Michelle Haight 
Kelly Jones 
Gladson Remos 
Reuben Ellis 
Tony Haddad  
Grigore Buia  
Lulu Guo, student rep  
Cindy Stewart, City Liaison 
Helen Yang, student rep 
Karen Yelder  
 
Absent: 
Mayada Fakhouri 
 
Guests: 
Cathy Francois 
Sushma Shrestha 
 

III. Approval of Minutes – October 2, 2007 
Motion by Kelly Jones to approve the October 2, 2007 minutes, seconded by 
Michelle Haight.    
 Yes: Kelly, Michelle 
 No: Tony, Reuben, Gregore, Gladson 
 Motion Failed 
 
Additions to Minutes: 
Gladson said he would like on record Reuben and Tony opposed to any board 
action. He takes offense with his integrity being questioned. 
 
Tony suggests closing this case. It is too much pressure on everyone. 
 
Reuben added that the entire issue about Gladson was blown out of proportion 
and this board should not be forced to handle it, especially since we are a group 
to bring people together. 
 

IV. Correspondence / Articles  
•  “Troy Celebrates Diversity with Kid Programs” from The Oakland Press,  

Oct. 15, 2007 
• “Immigrants Seek Clout in Push to be Citizens” from The Detroit Free Press, 

Nov. 12, 2007 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD FINAL MINUTES November 13, 2007  

 

 
• “Community Leader Inducted into Women’s Hall of Fame (Dr. Haifa Fakhouri” 

from The Oakland Press, Oct. 23, 2007 
• “Workplace Diversity is Focus of Presentation” from The Detroit Free Press, 

Nov. 13, 2007 – www.ocedc.net 
 

V. Old Business 
a. Institute for the Healing of Racism of SE Michigan recap. 

 
What can the EIA Board do to promote this? Should we market it within the community? 
Perhaps the EIA Board should commit to going through the training.  It is a 20 hour 
commitment.  Board directs Michelle to contact IHR about available dates in winter 
2008.  We might consider adding school leaders/administration to also participate.  
 

b. Troy Daze EthniCity  
Kelly has four new groups interested in 2008 EthniCity. 
 
Suggestions discussed again. Coordinate student volunteer hours better. Need more 
Friday evening, Saturday & Sunday morning through mid afternoon and Saturday 
evening.  Rules and Guidelines sent with contract. Booth fee non-refundable. 
Encourage Troy Daze Board to work with EIA Board about booth fee. Bring back 
passports. 
 

c. Bridging the Racial Divide - No Scheduled Date 
 

d. Grant Info - postponed 
 

VI. New Business  
a. Troy School District Update 

Michelle and Karen met on Nov. 1, 2007 with new Athens principal Lara Dixon and 
Assistant Principal Joe Duda to give them info on EIA Board. They shared their 
concerns about the lack of ethnic teachers. Lara and Joe shared they are recruiting at 
Wayne State and EMU for ethnic teachers. 
 
Professional Development Series, “Educating Every Child.” Working with students who 
are different than we are. Troy Athens had their largest turnout at the Oct. 25th session. 
There are four sessions, 4-7 pm.  Oct 25 – Demographics. Who are the students? Jan 8 
– Understanding Ourselves. March 13 – Realizing our Perceptions.  May 15 – Clarifying 
our Next Steps. Where do we go from here to build a district that maximizes the social, 
emotional and academic growth of each student?  Teachers volunteer to attend these 
professional development series.  

 
Are the Arab Chaldeans included in the demographics listed? (White, Asian, African-
American) Karen will check with Tim McAvoy. 

 
Cultural Newsletter - Michelle sends out to the schools. It is on the Athens Web site. 
Also sent with Troy School District e-mail newsletter to parents.  Most of our schools 
have it linked to their individual home page.  Detroit Country Day teacher asked 
Michelle if she’d do it for their school. 
 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD FINAL MINUTES November 13, 2007  

 

 
Parent Advisory Group - Karen suggested to principals to form a Parent Advisory Group 
to help with student issues. Lara would rather not have this layer – she feels they have 
a good relationship with admin, teachers and students.  
 
Other Issues - Karen and Michelle left the meeting feeling very good about our Troy 
Administration.  Inclusion is very important to our schools. They would like to get 
involved with LINC again or other programs encouraging student leadership. They 
appreciate this board as a resource for the Troy School District. Parent and community 
involvement are important and our school district is receptive to this involvement. 
 
Helen said she hasn’t heard about racial problems. Last year there were fights between 
Chaldean kids but nothing like that this year. Board asks Lulu and Helen’s input for 
diversity issues.  Lulu – There are different groups but kids do come together outside of 
those groups. Students in AP classes might hang out together regardless of race.   
 
There is an ethnic club at Athens High. Karen will make contact with the teacher liaison. 
First African-American was hired as a substitute teacher at Athens High. 

  
Board asks our student reps to bring us more info from their fellow students about 
harmony in the schools and comments about diversity.  Helen feels students are very 
harmonious at Troy High. They will bring updates.  

 
b. 2008 Projects and Assignments. 

 
Troy School District – Continue to be involved and form a solid relationship and 
friendship. Continue to offer them information we’ve gathered related to diversity 
training and inclusion.  

 
Community Kaleidoscope – Jan. 27, 2008 from 12-4 pm. Should the EIA Board have a 
table at this event?  Motion by Michelle, seconded by Tony to have a table at 
Kaleidoscope.  Approved unanimously.  This board has been promoted in the Troy 
Today.  
 
MLK Celebration – Karen encourages the board to attend MLK Celebration of freedom 
on Jan. 21, 2008. 
 
Additional Projects? – Any projects the board would like to focus on between Jan & 
Sept. besides IHR training?  Kelly suggests contacting other cities about what they do. 
Each member can outreach to other communities and find out what they offer. This will 
be discussed at the January Meeting.  
 
Noel Night – Michelle reminded everyone about Noel Night in Detroit on Sat. Dec. 1,  
5 - 9 pm 
 
Interfaith Group – Interfaith Group will take place on Sunday, Nov. 18 at 7 pm at St. 
Stephens Episcopal Church, Adams North of Long Lake, Thanksgiving Celebration. 
 
 
 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD FINAL MINUTES November 13, 2007  

 

 
 
VII. Staff Report 

a. Memo about recommendation for Cathy Francois to replace Anju Brodbine 
will be on Nov. 19 Council agenda. 
 

VIII. Adjournment 
 
Motion by Kelly, seconded by Karen to adjourn the meeting at 8:35 pm 
Meeting adjourned. 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Michelle Haight, EIAB Chair 
 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, EIAB Recording Secretary 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                      NOVEMBER 20, 2007 

1 
 

The Chairman, Mark Maxwell, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M., on Tuesday, November 20, 2007 in Council Chambers of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Michael W. Bartnik 
    Glenn Clark 

Kenneth Courtney 
Marcia Gies 
Matthew Kovacs 
Mark Maxwell 
Wayne Wright 

 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
    Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF OCTOBER 16, 2007 
 
Mr. Wright stated that the word “prohibited” be changed to “permit” in the motion for 
approval for Coy Construction on Page 4. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that he wanted the following added to the discussion on Item #6: 
 
“Mr. Bartnik asked if the owners and residents of the Somerset Park Apartments were 
notified of this variance request. 
 
Mr. Stimac replied that both owners and residents within 300’ of the subject property 
were notified.” 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of October 16, 2007 with the above 
amendments. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7  
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS AMENDED CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  JOHN BRODERICK OF THE HONEY BAKED 
HAM COMPANY, 1081 EAST LONG LAKE, for approval to place two temporary 
storage containers outside at the rear of 1081 E. Long Lake for the time period from 
November 21st through December 31, 2007 and November 21st through December 31, 
2008. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                      NOVEMBER 20, 2007 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting approval to place two temporary 
storage containers outside at the rear of 1081 E. Long Lake for the time period from 
November 21st through December 31, 2007 and November 21st through December 31, 
2008.  Section 43.80.00 of the Zoning Ordinance allows the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
permit temporary buildings for permitted uses for periods not to exceed two (2) years. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if the Building Department had received any complaints regarding 
these storage containers in the past. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that he was not aware of any complaints regarding this request. 
 
Mr. John Broderick was present and stated he hoped approval for these storage trailers 
would be granted.  These storage trailers are the same as the ones that they have used 
in the past.  They will not be any higher that the brick wall that is behind this business.  
The storage trailers are needed due to the seasonality of the business. 
 
Mr. Clark asked what types of locks were used to secure these trailers. 
 
Mr. Broderick stated that they are specifically designed commercial locks. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are nine (9) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant John Broderick of the Honey Baked Ham Company, 1081 East Long 
Lake, approval to place two temporary storage containers outside at the rear of 1081 E. 
Long Lake for the time period from November 21st through December 31, 2007 and 
November 21st through December 31, 2008. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT APPROVAL CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  KELLI BALOGH, 1336 WACON, for relief of the 
Ordinance to maintain a porch enclosure constructed without a Building Permit that 
result in a 33.1’ rear yard setback and 3.8’ away from a detached garage.  Section 
30.10.06 requires a 35’ minimum rear yard setback in the R-1E Zoning District and  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                      NOVEMBER 20, 2007 

3 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Section 40.45.02 requires a 10’ minimum setback from this addition to the existing 
detached garage. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to maintain 
a porch enclosure constructed without a Building Permit.  The site plan submitted 
indicates an enclosure constructed with a 33.1’ rear yard setback and 3.8’ away from a 
detached garage.  Section 30.10.06 requires a 35’ minimum rear yard setback in an R-
1E Zoning District and Section 40.56.02 requires a 10’ minimum setback from this 
addition to the existing detached garage. 
 
Mr. Stimac further explained that a search of Building Department records indicated that 
this structure was in place since the 1960’s and there is no record of a Building Permit 
issued at that time. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if Mr. Stimac was 100% sure that no permit had ever been issued. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that a search was done of both Building Department records as well as 
Assessing records and nothing was found indicating a permit was ever issued. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked what the difference would be if this structure was attached to the 
garage. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the 10’ rule would not apply, but then the garage would have 
to meet the 35’ minimum rear yard setback. 
 
Ms. Balogh was present and stated that she bought this home approximately three (3) 
years ago.  The porch enclosure was in place at that time.  The home has needed a 
number of repairs, which she has done. Ms. Balogh also said that she thought the 
original structure started out to be aluminum, all window enclosure.  When she tried to 
replace the windows and doors, she found out that they were no longer available.  Ms. 
Balogh brought in pictures showing how the house looked with the old structure and 
how it looks now with the newer structure.  Ms. Balogh stated that friends and family 
have done the construction of this new porch enclosure. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.   
 
Mr. Ryan Peters, 1337 Wacon was present and stated that Ms. Balogh has done a 
number of exceptional improvements to this home and feels that this enclosure will 
improve the look of the home.  Mr. Peters supports this variance request. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                      NOVEMBER 20, 2007 

4 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that the structure appears to be the same size as the original structure 
and is not visible as there is a white picket fence around the property. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if a contractor was doing the work. 
 
Ms. Balogh stated that the work was being done by friends and family. 
 
Mr. Clark then asked if that was why a Building Permit was not obtained. 
 
Ms. Balogh said that was correct. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that if this request was for the original structure, he would have been 
opposed to it.   
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Clark 
 
MOVED, to grant Kelli Balogh, 1336 Wacon, relief of the Ordinance to maintain a porch 
enclosure that results in a 33.1’ rear yard setback and 3.8’ away from a detached 
garage.  Section 30.10.06 requires a 35’ minimum rear yard setback in the R-1E Zoning 
District and Section 40.45.02 requires a 10’ minimum setback from this addition to the 
existing detached garage. 
 

• Variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use in a Zoning 
District. 

• Structure is shielded by a fence from surrounding property. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will add to the property value. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  GARY ABITHEIRA, 1110 BIRCHWOOD, 
EXISTING ADDRESS, TO 1106-1108 BIRCHWOOD, PROPOSED ADDRESS, for 
relief of the Ordinance to raze an existing single-family house and construct a two-family 
residence on a 9,600 square foot parcel of lance.  Section 30.10.09 requires a 10,000 
square foot minimum parcel size to construct a two-family residence in the R-1B Zoning 
District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a residential duplex.  The site plan submitted indicates razing a single-family house and 
constructing a two-family residence on a 9,600 square foot parcel of land.  Section  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                      NOVEMBER 20, 2007 

5 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
30.10.09 requires a 10,000 square foot minimum parcel size to construct a two-family 
residence in an R-1B Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if Mr. Stimac knew the history of the homes in this area.   
 
Mr. Stimac said that he had done a search of the area and there are nine (9) duplexes 
in the area.  Three are in compliance with the requirements of the Ordinance.  Four are 
on 9600 square foot lots, and there is no record of variances being granted.  Three of 
these duplexes were built in the 1970’s and one in the 1980’s.  Two duplexes were 
recently constructed on 9,600 square foot lots and were granted variances by this 
Board. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked Mr. Abitheira if he had been before this Board asking for a variance 
to build two homes rather than a duplex on a lot that did not meet area requirements. 
 
Mr. Abitheira stated that was true; however, this area is more conducive to duplexes 
rather than single-family homes.  Mr. Abitheira also stated that the existing home is in a 
state of disrepair and is an eyesore to the area. There is Industrial zoned property very 
near this site and this is one of the reasons that people do not want to purchase a 
single-family home.  The housing market is down and Mr. Abitheira does not believe he 
would be able to sell a single-family home.  Mr. Abitheira also stated that he uses these 
duplexes to allow people to live in while they wait for their homes to be constructed.  He 
is trying everything he can to bring people to this area. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that Mr. Abitheira could build a single-family home for people to live 
in while they wait for the construction of their homes. 
 
Mr. Abitheira stated that he is trying to get people to come into this City.  The duplexes 
in this area look very nice and being kept up by the people that live in them. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that basically it is not economical to build one home but is more 
economical to have people living in two units. 
 
Mr. Abitheira stated that after reading the goals of the City Manager, he is trying to 
increase new development in the City. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Jack Bertoia was present and stated that he owns property on this street and is a 
resident of Troy.  Mr. Bertoia said that he is trying to lease the new duplex across the 
street and has been unable to do so because of the appearance of the existing home on 
this site.  Mr. Bertoia said that they want to bring quality people into this area and he 
believes this construction will help in doing so.  Other variances have been granted and 
he is in support of this request. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                      NOVEMBER 20, 2007 

6 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Michael Agnetti, 1120 Vermont, was present and stated that he is in favor of this 
request.  People are taking care of the homes in this area and he believes this duplex 
will be an asset to the area. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There is one (1) written objection on file. 
 
Mr. Clark asked what the setbacks were for a single-family home and a duplex in this 
area. 
 
Mr. Stimac that the setbacks for a single-family home in the R-1E Zoning District were 
25’ front setback, 35’ rear setback and because it is on a corner there would be a 10’ 
setback from Lydia and 5’ along the east side of the property; the setbacks for a duplex 
are 25’ front setback, 35’ rear setback and a minimum of 10’ on the sides. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if this proposed construction met all the other setbacks. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that it did. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that he believes that the proposed construction also is less than the 
30% allowed by the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that 2,880 square feet is allowed and the proposed construction is 
2,829 square feet. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that this is still less than what is allowed. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that was correct it is less than the 30% allowed by 51 square feet. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that this area is very close to Industrially Zoned property and there is a 
duplex directly across the street.  Mr. Maxwell said that he believes this would be good 
for the area considering the location. 
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Gary Abitheira, 1110 Birchwood, existing address, 1106-1108 
Birchwood, proposed address, relief of the Ordinance to raze an existing single-family 
house and construct a two-family residence on a 9,600 square foot parcel of land.  
Section 30.10.09 requires a 10,000 square foot minimum parcel size to construct a two-
family residence in the R-2 Zoning District. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                      NOVEMBER 20, 2007 

7 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 

• Variance request is small. 
• Construction will comply within other requirements of the Ordinance. 
• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance would be unnecessarily burdensome. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance will not permit the establishment of a prohibited use in a Zoning District. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Bartnik, Clark, Gies 
Nays:  1 – Courtney 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:07 P.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Mark Maxwell, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL NOVEMBER 20, 2007 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Historic District Commission was not held Tuesday, 
November 20, 2007 at City Hall because there was no new business. 
 
 
The next regular meeting will be held Tuesday, December 18, 2007 at 7:30 p.m. at City 
Hall. 
 

 
 
 
 
                  

Barbara Chambers 
Chairman 
 
 
 

Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 11, 2007 
  

 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:32 p.m. on December 11, 2007, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz Mark J. Vleck 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-12-175 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Littman and Vleck are excused from attendance at this 
meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-12-176 
Moved by:  Wright 
Seconded by: Troshynski 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as printed. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 11, 2007 
  

 
 

2 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-12-177 
 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the December 4, 2007 Special/Study 
meeting as presented. 
 
Yes:  All present (6) 
Absent:  Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
SPECIAL USE REQUEST 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 354) – Proposed Somerset 

Pontiac Outdoor Storage of New Vehicles, North side of Maplelawn, West of Crooks 
Road (1728 Maplelawn), Section 29 – Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use request, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the application with two conditions:  (1) that any exterior 
lighting shall be designed so as to not negatively impact adjoining properties and (2) 
to replace the proposed 6-foot high wood screen fence with a 6-foot high screen 
wall. 
 
Jack Fowler and Charles LeFevre were present to represent the petitioner. 
 
Chair Schultz advised the petitioner that five (5) affirmative votes are required for a 
recommendation of approval of the special use approval, and the petitioner has the 
option to postpone the item at this time.   
 
Messrs. Fowler and LeFevre indicated they would like to go forward with the item.  
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 11, 2007 
  

 
 

3 
 

There was brief discussion on: 

 Required screen fence and screen wall. 

 Future use of the vacant building. 

 Effect of Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) variance. 

 Relationship of special use to site plan. 
 
Mr. LeFevre addressed ownership of the property and maintenance and potential 
future use of the vacant building.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-12-178 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 28.30.04 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the 
proposed Outdoor Storage of Vehicles, located on the north side of Maplelawn, 
west of Crooks in Section 29, within the M-1 zoning district, is hereby granted, 
subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Any exterior lighting shall be designed so as to not negatively impact adjoining 

properties. 
2. Replace the proposed 6-foot high wood screen fence with a 6-foot high screen 

wall. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (Z 677-B) – Existing Grace 

Christian Child Care and DTE Sub-Station, East side of John R Road (2051 E. Big 
Beaver and 3080 John R), North of Big Beaver, Section 24, From P-1 (Vehicular 
Parking) and R-1E (One Family Residential) to B-1 (Local Business) 
 
Mr. Tagle recused himself from discussion and vote on this item.  He said his 
company has had a contractual relationship with an organization associated to the 
matter.   
 
[Mr. Tagle exited the meeting.] 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
City-initiated rezoning request, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning request.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 11, 2007 
  

 
 

4 
 

Chair Schultz advised that five (5) affirmative votes are required for a recommendation 
of approval of the rezoning request, and asked Mr. Miller if the City would like to go 
forward with the request at this time. 
 
Mr. Miller, as the City’s representative, requested to go forward with the matter. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
There was brief discussion on: 

 Required wall on small section of property abutting P-1. 

 DTE’s responsibility to put up wall on northern portion of site at the time of future 
site plan revisions. 

 Effects of potential expansion of existing child care facility. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-12-179 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the R-1E and P-1 to B-1 rezoning request, located on the east side of John R, 
north of Big Beaver, within Section 24, being approximately 1.30 acres in size, be 
granted. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Schultz, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
Absent: Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

[Mr. Tagle returned to meeting.] 
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

7. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 11, 2007 
  

 
 

5 
 

8. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Ms. Lancaster addressed the rotation of attorney representation at Planning 
Commission meetings, and announced the assignment of Chris Forsythe to the 
Planning Commission for 2008. 
 

Mr. Miller reminded everyone the next meeting is on January 8, 2008.  He informed 
members they would receive a draft Master Plan in a binder in the very near future.   
 

Mr. Strat addressed the damaged wall at the John R and Maple Road service 
station. 
 

Mr. Wright brought to the attention of the members that the owner of the Livernois 
and Square Lake service station has repaired their wall several times. 
 

Ms. Troshynski addressed the Detroit Free Press article on “green” projects, in 
which Michigan was rated #3 in the United States.   
 

Mr. Tagle acknowledged his first year with the Planning Commission as challenging 
and said he is looking forward to another year. 
 

Mr. Hutson acknowledged his first year with the Planning Commission as a great 
learning experience.   
 

Members thanked Ms. Lancaster and agreed she would be dearly missed. 
 

Members exchanged greetings for a Happy Holiday and New Year. 
 

Chair Schultz thanked Ms. Lancaster for an outstanding job.  He thanked the new 
members, and returning members, for a very productive year.  Chair Schultz said he 
did see the “green” newspaper article and encouraged members to stop in and see 
Mr. Pratt’s “green” residential development.   
 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:03 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Draft\12-11-07 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL DECEMBER 11, 2007 
  

 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:32 p.m. on December 11, 2007, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz Mark J. Vleck 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-12-175 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Littman and Vleck are excused from attendance at this 
meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-12-176 
Moved by:  Wright 
Seconded by: Troshynski 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as printed. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL DECEMBER 11, 2007 
  

 
 

2 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-12-177 
 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the December 4, 2007 Special/Study 
meeting as presented. 
 
Yes:  All present (6) 
Absent:  Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
SPECIAL USE REQUEST 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 354) – Proposed Somerset 

Pontiac Outdoor Storage of New Vehicles, North side of Maplelawn, West of Crooks 
Road (1728 Maplelawn), Section 29 – Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use request, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the application with two conditions:  (1) that any exterior 
lighting shall be designed so as to not negatively impact adjoining properties and (2) 
to replace the proposed 6-foot high wood screen fence with a 6-foot high screen 
wall. 
 
Jack Fowler and Charles LeFevre were present to represent the petitioner. 
 
Chair Schultz advised the petitioner that five (5) affirmative votes are required for a 
recommendation of approval of the special use approval, and the petitioner has the 
option to postpone the item at this time.   
 
Messrs. Fowler and LeFevre indicated they would like to go forward with the item.  
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL DECEMBER 11, 2007 
  

 
 

3 
 

There was brief discussion on: 

 Required screen fence and screen wall. 

 Future use of the vacant building. 

 Effect of Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) variance. 

 Relationship of special use to site plan. 
 
Mr. LeFevre addressed ownership of the property and maintenance and potential 
future use of the vacant building.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-12-178 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 28.30.04 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the 
proposed Outdoor Storage of Vehicles, located on the north side of Maplelawn, 
west of Crooks in Section 29, within the M-1 zoning district, is hereby granted, 
subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Any exterior lighting shall be designed so as to not negatively impact adjoining 

properties. 
2. Replace the proposed 6-foot high wood screen fence with a 6-foot high screen 

wall. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (Z 677-B) – Existing Grace 

Christian Child Care and DTE Sub-Station, East side of John R Road (2051 E. Big 
Beaver and 3080 John R), North of Big Beaver, Section 24, From P-1 (Vehicular 
Parking) and R-1E (One Family Residential) to B-1 (Local Business) 
 
Mr. Tagle recused himself from discussion and vote on this item.  He said his 
company has had a contractual relationship with an organization associated to the 
matter.   
 
[Mr. Tagle exited the meeting.] 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
City-initiated rezoning request, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning request.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL DECEMBER 11, 2007 
  

 
 

4 
 

Chair Schultz advised that five (5) affirmative votes are required for a recommendation 
of approval of the rezoning request, and asked Mr. Miller if the City would like to go 
forward with the request at this time. 
 
Mr. Miller, as the City’s representative, requested to go forward with the matter. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
There was brief discussion on: 

 Required wall on small section of property abutting P-1. 

 DTE’s responsibility to put up wall on northern portion of site at the time of future 
site plan revisions. 

 Effects of potential expansion of existing child care facility. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-12-179 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the R-1E and P-1 to B-1 rezoning request, located on the east side of John R, 
north of Big Beaver, within Section 24, being approximately 1.30 acres in size, be 
granted. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Schultz, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
Absent: Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

[Mr. Tagle returned to meeting.] 
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

7. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 





campbellld
Text Box
J-01j







campbellld
Text Box
J-01k





 1 

LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD - FINAL December 13, 2007 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held on Thursday, December 13, 
2007 at the Office of the Library Director.  Kul Gauri, Chairman, called the meeting to 
order at 7:31 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Heather Eisenbacher 
   Kul B. Gauri 
        Lynne Gregory 

   Nancy Wheeler 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
   Arthi Krishna 

           
   Cathleen Russ, Library Director 
 
Guests: Jim Mumby, Fanning/Howey Associates, Inc; Julie Sigler, Friends of TPL 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given 
 
Resolution #LB-2007-12-01 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That Shruthi Subramanian be excused. 
 
Yes:  5—Eisenbacher, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #LB-2007-12-02 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Gauri 
 
RESOLVED, That Minutes of November 15, 2007 be approved. 
 
Yes: 5—Eisenbacher, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #LB-2007-12-03 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agenda be approved. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



 2 

Yes: 5—Eisenbacher, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS 
There were no Postponed items. 
 
NEW BUSINESS. 

A. Library Closed Dates for 2008 
B. Library Advisory Board meeting dates for 2008  

 
Resolution #LB-2007-12-04 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
RESOLVED, That the Library Closed Dates and the Library Advisory Board 
meeting dates be approved. 
 
Yes: 5—Eisenbacher, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
    
OLD BUSINESS. 

A. Library Needs Assessment/Feasibility Study—Jim Mumby updated the board 
members as to the progress on the Needs Assessment Study. The findings of 
the community focus groups were discussed, as well as some interesting 
statistics based on the library’s usage. The final report is due on February 1, 
2008, to Russ, and will be presented at a city council meeting in February.  

 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report. 
Bathroom renovations are complete. Staffing proposal has been approved by the city 
manager and will go into effect on December 29, 2007. An organizational chart will be 
given to the LAB members at next month’s meeting, to reflect the new organization. The 
café contract was renewed for one year at the recent city council meeting. Russ has 
received her permanent professional’s certificate from the Library of Michigan. 
 
Board Members’ Comments 
Zembrzuski brought up the controversy surrounding the book, “The Golden Compass.” 
The board agreed that it does not support censorship and that it is up to the individual, 
not the library, to determine what people read. Wheeler mentioned that the most recent 
Booked for Lunch meeting was disorganized and did not go well.  
 
Student Representatives’ Comments—Krishna attended a focus group meeting and 
appreciated having input.  
 



 3 

Suburban Library Cooperative--Gregory 
A finance committee has been formed, as there were questions about the most recent 
audit report. MelCat delivery is improving.  
 
Friends of the Troy Public Library 
Julie Sigler reported that Mary Kerwin has resigned from the board, but Jeanne Stine 
has agreed to join the board. Howard Adams is the new treasurer, but Julie Sigler will 
also remain on the board.  
 
Gifts. 
A $125 donation was received from a Clawson resident, thanking TPL for its excellent 
service.  
 
Informational Items. 
December TPL Calendar. 
 
Contacts and Correspondence.    
20 written comments from the public were reviewed.  
 
Public Participation.   
There was no public participation. 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 9:25 P.M. 
 
 

 
 
 

      _____________________________________ 
Kul Gauri 
Chairman 
 
 

Cathleen Russ 
Recording Secretary 



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL DECEMBER 18, 2007 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Historic District Commission was not held Tuesday, 
December 18, 2007 at City Hall because there was no new business. 
 
 
The next regular meeting will be held Tuesday, January 15, 2008 at 7:00 p.m. at the 
Troy Museum. 
 

 
 
 
 
                  

Barbara Chambers 
Chairman 
 
 
 

Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



  
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MINUTES FINAL December 19, 2007 

 
 
A meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Wednesday, 
December 19, 2007 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. 
Big Beaver Troy, Michigan.  Alan Kiriluk called the meeting to order at 7:30 a.m. 
 
 
 
PRESENT:  Al Aceves 
   Michael Culpepper 
   Stuart Frankel 

David Hay 
Michele Hodges 
William Kennis 
Alan Kiriluk 
Daniel MacLeish 
Ernest Reschke 
 
 

ABSENT:  Louise Schilling  
Douglas Schroeder 
G. Thomas York 
Harvey Weiss 
 

 
ALSO PRESENT: Phil Nelson 
   John M. Lamerato 

Brian Murphy   
   Lori Bluhm 
   Brent Savidant 
 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution:    DD-07-25 
Moved by:    Aceves 
Seconded by:  MacLeish 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the November 21, 2007 regular meeting be 
approved. 
 
Yeas:  All (9) 
Absent: Schilling, Schroeder, Weiss, York 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01n



OLD BUSINESS 
 
None 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
A. October 31, 2007 Monthly Financial Report was received and filed. 
 
 
B.   Audited Financial Statements 
 
Resolution:  DD-07-26 
Moved by:  Reschke 
Seconded by: Kennis 
 
Resolved, That the Board receive and file the annual financial report for the year 
ended June 30, 2007. 
   
Yeas:  All (9) 
Absent: Schilling, Schroeder, Weiss, York 
 
 
C.   Planning Department Update 
 
Brent Savidant gave an update on the Master Plan and Big Beaver Development 
Code. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None 
 
 
MEMBER COMMENT 
 
None 
 
 
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
 
Resolution:    DD-07-27 
Moved by:    Culpepper 
Seconded by:  MacLeish 
 
RESOLVED, That Schilling, Schroeder, Weiss and York be excused. 
 
 



Yeas:   All (9) 
Absent:  Schilling, Schroeder, Weiss, York 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:48 a.m. 
 
Next Meeting:  January 16, 2008 from 7:30 a.m. – 1:00 p.m. @ Columbia Center. 
 

 
         
________________________________________ 

Alan Kiriluk, Chair   
 
 

________________________________________ 
      John M. Lamerato, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
JL/ph 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                            JANUARY 2, 2008 

1 
 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M. on Wednesday, January 2, 2008 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Ted Dziurman 
    Rick Kessler 
    Keith Lenderman 
    Tim Richnak 
    Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Paul Evans, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
    Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF DECEMBER 12, 2007 
 
Mr. Richnak asked that the minutes be amended to indicate that Tom Rosewarne was 
at the meeting of December 12, 2007 in his place. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of December 12, 2007 with the 
attendance corrected.  
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS AMENDED CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MONDRIAN PROPERTIES/CHOICE GROUP, 
1233 W. WATTLES, for relief of Chapter 85 to maintain a temporary sign installed at 
1233 W. Wattles. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the Building Department had received a letter from this petitioner 
requesting that their request be withdrawn. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to accept the request of Mondrian Properties/Choice Group, 1233 W. Wattles, 
for relief of Chapter 85 to withdraw their request for a temporary sign installed at 1233 
W. Wattles. 
 

• Per the request of the petitioner. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01o



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                            JANUARY 2, 2008 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO ACCEPT WITHDRAWAL CARRIED.  NO FURTHER ACTION BY THE 
BOARD. 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  GREAT LAKES ELECTRIC SIGN COMPANY, 
1790 MAPLELAWN, for relief of Chapter 85 to erect three (3) additional wall signs on 
an existing building. 
 
The Chairman moved this item to the end of the agenda (Item #5) in order to allow the 
petitioner the opportunity to be present. 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  PAUL DETERS OF METRO DETROIT SIGNS, 888 
W. BIG BEAVER, for relief of Chapter 85 to install a 63.2 square foot tenant wall sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to install a 
63.2 square foot wall sign for Prlanta Jewelers, a tenant at 888 W. Big Beaver. Section 
85.02.05 3 (d) of the Sign Ordinance limits the size of tenant wall signs in the Office 
Zoning Districts to not more than 20 square feet in area. 
 
Pat Donnelly representing Metro Detroit Signs, and Masis Kayayan, the owner of 
Prlanta Jewelers were present.  Mr. Donnelly stated that they feel the fact that they are 
only allowed a 20 square foot sign is a hardship in itself.  Presently, they have a 20 
square foot banner up and customers are having difficulty in locating this business.  
This business is located between the Melting Pot which has a 64 square foot sign, and 
Morton’s Steak House, whose sign is considerably larger.  Visibility is limited due to the 
setback from Big Beaver and because of the tree line along Big Beaver. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that when the Melting Pot came before this Board for a variance, 
the owner of the building assured Board members that no other tenants would be in to 
request a variance and no additional signage would be needed. 
 
Mr. Donnelly stated that the tenant is in the building right now and is concerned that 
they will lose business because the sign is so small. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked how many other tenants were on the first floor of this building. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that he did not know. 
 
Mr. Donnelly stated that there are only the three (3) tenants facing Big Beaver. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the sign was considered a directional sign or identification sign. 
 
Mr. Donnelly stated that it was a little of both as it will offer some advertising and allow 
visibility to the customer. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                            JANUARY 2, 2008 

3 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Masis Kayayan, the owner of Prlanta Jewelers was present and stated that he has been 
in business for thirty-five years and even his long time customers are having a difficult 
time locating his business. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked how much frontage there was from this business to Big Beaver. Mr. 
Kayayan stated there is 57’ frontage on Big Beaver. 
 
Mr. Zuazo then asked if there was any way for the space to be subdivided.  Mr. 
Kayayan indicated that he had leased both spaces and made them into one.  Mr. Zuazo 
then asked if there was a chance that this space could once again be subdivided into 
two separate spaces.  The petitioner did not believe that would happen. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked how they came up a sign that is 60 square feet rather than something 
smaller. 
 
Mr. Donnelly stated that they wanted to maximize the size of the sign and had met with 
Redico, the property owners, who stated that they would allow them to put up a sign 
that is as large as the sign the Melting Pot has.  They are looking for the biggest impact 
for customers looking to find them.  Mr. Donnelly indicated that he had worked 
extensively with Mr. Evans to determine this size. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that the proposed sign has a picture of a Diamond as well as the 
words “fine jewelry and timepieces” on it.  In his opinion, this sign has a lot of 
information on it and is being used more as an advertisement than an identification sign.  
Mr. Kessler said that the proposed sign is over three times larger than what is allowed 
by the Ordinance and he feels that this is excessive. 
 
Mr. Donnelly stated that they have another design without the diamond but feels that 
having only the name of the sign, will not tell potential customers what the purpose of 
the business is.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked how large a sign would be allowed if this business was located in a 
shopping center. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that in a “B” zoned district they would be allowed 10% of the front of the 
tenant area, and based on the size of this tenant area the current request is under the 
10% allowed. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                            JANUARY 2, 2008 

4 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that this Board cannot regulate what is on a sign, but can regulate 
the size of the sign.  This building is considered an office building and the petitioner  
knew this at the time he signed the lease on this space.  20 square feet is allowed by 
Ordinance and in his opinion 63 square feet is excessive.   
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the request of Paul Deters of Metro Detroit Signs, 888 W. Big 
Beaver, for relief of Chapter 85 to install a tenant wall sign. 
 

• Size of sign is limited to 40 square feet. 
• No limitations on what is on the sign. 

 
Mr. Kayayan stated that this building is one-half empty.  They are planning to use the 
same electric connections so that they would not deface the front of the building.  Mr. 
Kayayan also stated that he did not lease this space as office space, but as a retail 
business. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Kessler, Dziurman, Richnak, Zuazo 
Abstain: 1 – Lenderman 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE REQUEST AS AMENDED CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – (ITEM #3) - VARIANCE REQUEST.  GREAT LAKES ELECTRIC SIGN 
COMPANY, 1790 MAPLELAWN, for relief of Chapter 85 to erect three (3) additional 
wall signs on an existing building. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to erect three 
(3) additional wall signs.  The petitioners are planning to keep an existing 24 square foot 
wall sign.  The plans submitted indicate the three new wall signs will measure 90.25 
square feet, 32.5 square feet and 31.875 square feet in area.  Section 85.02.05 (C) (5) 
allows a maximum of three wall signs.  One wall sign can measure up to 100 square 
feet in area, and the other two can measure up to 20 square feet each in area. 
 
Additionally, Section 85.01.05 (C) does not allow a wall sign to project more than 12” 
out from the building wall or above the roof or parapet line.  One of the signs (the 
largest) will project 4’-6” out from the building and extend 3’-1” above the parapet line. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of December 12, 2007 and 
was postponed to allow the petitioner the opportunity to be present. 
 
Mr. Tom Novak, representing Great Lakes Electric Sign Company was present and 
stated that they would agree to eliminate the proposed “Service” sign.  The additional  



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                            JANUARY 2, 2008 

5 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
signs are important as they tell people where to go in a busy dealership.  These 
proposed signs are part of a new national campaign for a new line of cars. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked why there was a necessity for new signs at an existing dealership. 
 
Mr. Novak stated that they are re-facing all existing buildings nationwide and want to 
upgrade the area.  The new signs will add to the appearance of the building. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that the car dealers located on Maplelawn keep coming to this 
Board requesting variances for more and more signs.  Mr. Dziurman stated that he does 
not see a hardship that would justify this request. 
 
The first request is regarding the large sign.  The proposed 90.25 square foot sign 
complies with the requirements of the Ordinance; however, the sign projects above the 
roof line of the building and projects out from the building.  To be considered a wall sign 
it has to be within 12” of the wall. 
 
Mr. Novak stated that he was not aware that this was part of the request and did not 
have a copy of the drawing that depicts this projection.   
 
A discussion began regarding the height of the roof line and the parapet and also the 
depth of the “sky box” which is 4 ½’ deep.  Mr. Stimac stated that the sign has to be 
placed below the roof line.  The “sky box” is just over 3’ above the roof. 
 
In response to a question from one of the Board members, Mr. Novak said that he was 
not sure but thought that the canopy extending over the parapet was probably an acrylic 
type of material. 
 
Mr. Stimac thought it was made of a siding material.  The arch becomes the parapet of 
the building. 
 
Mr. Lenderman asked if the sign would be allowed to be at the top of the parapet wall. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that they could take the sign and drop it to the top of the parapet and 
it would meet the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked why the depth of the sign box was 4 ½’.  
 
Mr. Novak stated that he did not know.  The sign was designed by Cummins Sign Co. 
and he would have to contact them. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                            JANUARY 2, 2008 

6 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Great Lakes Electric Sign Company, 1790 
Maplelawn, for relief of Chapter 85 to erect three (3) additional wall signs on an existing 
building until the meeting of February 6, 2008. 
 

• To allow a representative of the car dealership to be present and explain the 
hardship to the Board. 

• To allow a representative of Cummins Sign Company to be present to explain the 
size and depth of the sign. 

• To allow a representative of Cummins Sign Co. to explain and/or research 
alternate signs that could be placed below the parapet. 

• Not enough information has been provided for the Board to make a decision. 
 
Yeas:   All – 5 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF FEBRUARY 6, 
2008 CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:10 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES JANUARY 8, 2008  

 

 
TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD 

TUESDAY, JANUARY 8, 2008 
TROY CITY HALL - CONFERENCE ROOM C 

 
I. Call to Order 7:10 p.m. 
 
II. Roll Call: 

Present:  
Cathy Francois 
William Lawrence 
Kelly Jones 
Michelle Haight 
Mayada Fakhouri 
Karen Yelder 
Tony Haddad (7:30 pm) 
Grigore Buia (8:45 pm) 
Cindy Stewart, City Liaison 
 
Absent:  
Helen Yang, student rep 
Lulu Guo, student rep 
Reuben Ellis 
 
Guests: 
Sushma Shrestha 
Jennifer Hilzinger 
Sung Son 
Catherine June 
Faris Alami  
 

III. Approval of Minutes – November 13, 2007 
Motion by Kelly Jones to approve the November 13, 2007 minutes, seconded by Cathy 
Francois. 
 
Motion approved with corrections: 3rd Page First Noel = Noel Night 

  
IV. Introduction 

a. Two new board members – William Lawrence & Cathy Francois  
           William Lawrence – Resident for 15 years, married with two children in college. Both 
           were graduates of Troy Schools. He would like to contribute to the City of Troy. 
           Cathy Francois – Resident for 4 years and has been coming to meetings for more than 2 
           years. She is married with two kids in the Troy School District. 
 
           Guests – Jennifer Hilzinger & Sung Son – Co-chairing the Schroeder PTO Cultural 
           Community Committee. They want to connect families at school since they noticed some   
           segregation based on ethnicity and race. Also want to reach out to new families moving 
           in. They started Conversation English Coffee Hour twice a month as support group.  
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01p



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES JANUARY 8, 2008  

 

   
           Sung moved here 1 ½ years from Korea. It was a challenge finding grocery stores and 
           making friends. She wants to help her kids adjust to this country. 
 
           Catherine June from Det. News is trying to push a “diversity beat” as part of the paper. 
 
           Faris Alami works for Integration Systems Mgt. Background dealing with Cultural 
           Diversity. Speaking at schools and businesses. Presenting “I am your Neighbor” 
           Workshop in Troy. 
 
           Sushma Shrestha volunteers within Troy, helped with 2007 Ethnicity. 
 
V. Correspondence/Articles  
 
VI. Old Business 
 

a. Grant Information 
 
Mayada has recent info from Kresge Foundation. Group/organization must be a 
501(c)(3). Karen and Cindy will explore working together with Boys & Girls Club of Troy 
since they are a 501(c)(3). 
 
Michelle will also check Southern Poverty Law Center about available grants. 
 
b. Bridging the Racial Divide  
 
Nothing to report. Remove from the agenda for time being. 

 
VII. New Business  

a. Troy School District Update 
Karen has no updates since she & Michelle spoke with Joe Duda & Lara Dixon (new 
Athens High School Principal). Michelle and Karen will follow-up with additional meetings. 
 
Ron Keolian, Diversity Club Advisor (Athens), working with Michelle at Barnard to bring 
Athens teacher to perform at Barnard’s Diversity Fair. 
 
Cathy’s daughter has encountered some unfortunate issues related to intolerance of 
students related to diversity. The great strides we feel we’re making are undone. We 
must get to the students about sensitivity training. 
 
Idea for EIAB to host a day-long seminar for high school students to diversity and 
sensitivity training. Kelly said we should focus on the students who don’t get this 
opportunity for diversity training. 
 
Cathy works in Mt. Clemens Middle School. They had an anti-bullying program. Maybe 
this group has a diversity or sensitivity training session. She will check if this is available. 
Cathy said there is more diversity in Troy than Mt. Clemens but less cohesiveness here. 
 
Mix it Up program takes kids at school and switches things up at lunch, mixing up with 
who kids sit with to address diversity issues. 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES JANUARY 8, 2008  

 

 
Michelle and Karen will report back to board at March meeting. 
 
b. 2008 Projects and Assignments 

 
Booth at Community Kaleidoscope – Jan. 27, 2008 
 
EthniCity – Sept. 2008 
 
Idea to contact other communities (Dearborn, Farmington Hills, Sterling Heights, 
Southfield, Ann Arbor) who have committees related to Ethnicity. Kelly will compile list of 
questions. 
 
Kelly – Ann Arbor, Sterling Heights 
Michelle – Southfield 
Mayada – Farmington Hills 
Cindy – Dearborn 
Cathy – Mt. Clemens 
 
Come back in February with some ideas/suggestions for the board. 

 
c. Community Kaleidoscope – Jan. 27, 2008, noon-4 pm 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board Booth – need volunteers. 11:30 am – 1pm: Cathy; 1 – 2:30 
pm: Mayada & Kelly; 2:30 – 4 pm: Karen & Michelle. 
 
Need items from other countries that people could look at and touch. Dress in Ethnic 
clothing. 

 
VIII. Staff Report 

a. MLK Celebration of Freedom, Jan. 21 2008, 8:30 am – Athens High. 
 

IX. Public Comment 
 

           Jen and Sung’s programs could be modeled by other parents at all schools to help in 
diversity training. Targeted moms at home, no transportation with limited English 
language skills. Casual conversations – places to go, fun places to take kids, what’s for 
dinner, dealing with their children and teachers. PTO also pays for a babysitter if any 
moms have non-school aged kids. Average 8-12 Moms, open to all schools.  
 
Michelle suggested putting Conversational English program on her newsletter since it 
goes to all schools. 

 
X. Upcoming projects – Update Resource Guide 
 
XI. Member Comment 

 
a. In the minutes, change Arab Chaldean to Arabs and Chaldeans 
b. Suggestion to tape record our meetings. Council meetings and other board meetings 

are not transcribed verbatim. Board feels no need. 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES JANUARY 8, 2008  

 

c. Faris asked if this board has talked to Oakland County Employment Diversity Council, 
Oakland Intermediate School District Ethnic Committee, or Global Trade Mission 
(Automation Alley – automationalley.com, myglobeislocal.com) as resources. 

 
XII. Adjournment 
            
           Motion by Karen Yelder, seconded by William Lawrence to adjourn the meeting at 8:55 
           pm. Meeting adjourned. 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Michelle Haight, EIAB Chair 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, EIAB Recording Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 8, 2008 
  

 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:31 p.m. on January 8, 2008, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 

Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz Kathleen Troshynski 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Mark J. Vleck (arrived 7:38 p.m.) 
Wayne Wright 
 

Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

Chair Schultz announced that Mr. Vleck is expected to arrive shortly, and the 
Resolution to excuse absent members would be acted upon later in the meeting. 
 

 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

Resolution # PC-2008-01-001 
Moved by:  Wright 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as printed. 
 

Yes: Hutson, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Wright 
Absent: Littman, Troshynski, Vleck (arrived 7:38 p.m.) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. MINUTES 
 

Resolution # PC-2008-01-002 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Strat 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the December 11, 2007 Regular meeting 
as printed. 
 

Yes:  Hutson, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Wright 
Absent:  Littman, Troshynski, Vleck (arrived 7:38 p.m.) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01q



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 8, 2008 
  

 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUESTS 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 355) – Proposed A & M Auto 
and Truck Repair (and Outdoor Storage of Vehicles), West side of Austin, North of 
Maple (2075 Austin), Section 26 – Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Hutson asked to be recused.  He disclosed a business relationship with the 
petitioner.   
 
Mr. Forsyth recommended to table the item until Mr. Vleck is present so there would 
be a sufficient number of members present for discussion and a vote. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-01-003 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To table Agenda item #5 until Mark Vleck arrives. 
 
Yes:  Hutson, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Wright 
Absent:  Littman, Troshynski, Vleck (arrived 7:38 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
[See page 4.] 
 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 126-B) – Proposed Home 
Field Sports (Indoor Commercial Recreation and Retail), North side of Maple, West 
of John R (1785 E. Maple), Section 26 – Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Strat said he has no financial interest in the item, but declared he knows the 
project architect on a social and personal basis.   
 
Mr. Forsyth stated that would not constitute a true conflict of interest.   
 
[Mr. Vleck arrived at 7:38 p.m.] 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use.  Mr. Savidant specifically addressed the two letters provided 
by the petitioner as relates to parking spaces and dumpster screening.  It is the 
recommendation of City Management to approve the application with the condition 
that a parking and cross access agreement shall be prepared prior to Final Site 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 8, 2008 
  

 
 

3 
 

Plan approval.  Mr. Savidant said the Planning Commission has the authority to 
waive the dumpster screening requirement.   
 
There was general discussion of the recommended condition to provide a cross 
access agreement. 
 
Corey Silverstein, attorney, of 30150 Telegraph Road, Bingham Farms, was present 
to represent the petitioner.   
 
The petitioner, Vince Bazarewski of Home Field Sports, LLC, 2887 Chippewa, Troy, 
was present.   
 
Mr. Strat asked the petitioner to address the size and species of the trees that are 
proposed for the greenbelt, and if he would be willing to place an additional two 
trees on the greenbelt.  Mr. Strat said he is delighted to see the structure utilized. 
 
Mr. Silverstein said they want the site to be visually appealing to the residents.  He 
indicated willingness to discuss with the landscape architect the possibility of adding 
additional trees and the additional cost factor to the petitioner.   
 
Mr. Miller stated the Zoning Ordinance requires trees in a landscaped greenbelt to 
be at least 10 feet in height or a minimum of 2-inch caliber at the time of planting. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Lee Ricelli of 6416 Southpointe Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Ricelli spoke 
favorably of the proposed special use.  His daughter plays softball with the 
petitioner’s daughter, and they utilize indoor facilities in nearby communities to train 
teams.  Mr. Ricelli respectfully asked that no further impositions are placed on the 
petitioner and that the project go forward in a timely manner.   
 
Robert Allen of 4099 Morehead Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Allen spoke favorably 
of the proposed special use.  He addressed the excellent opportunity for the City to 
welcome a much-needed facility.   
 
John Zemmer of 1680 Three Lakes, Troy, was present.  Mr. Zemmer spoke 
favorably of the proposed special use.  He said the facility would allow a place to 
practice and train softball teams year round.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 8, 2008 
  

 
 

4 
 

Resolution # PC-2008-01-004 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the 
total number of required parking spaces to fifty (50) when a total of one hundred 
thirty three (133) spaces are required on the site based on the off-street parking 
space requirements for indoor commercial recreation uses, as per Article XL.  This 
reduction meets the standards of Article 40.20.12. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan 
Approval, pursuant to Section 28.30.09 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for 
the proposed indoor commercial recreation facility, located on the north side of 
Maple, west of John R, in Section 26, within the M-1 zoning district, is hereby 
granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. A shared parking and cross access agreement shall be prepared prior to 

Final Site Plan Approval. 
2. The Planning Commission has determined that the dumpster is obscured 

from view from any abutting public street and therefore waives the dumpster 
screening requirement, as per Section 39.70.09.  

 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Littman, Troshynski 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Miller clarified the reasoning for requiring a cross access agreement and not a 
cross access easement.  
 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 355) – Proposed A & M Auto 
and Truck Repair (and Outdoor Storage of Vehicles), West side of Austin, North of 
Maple (2075 Austin), Section 26 – Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Hutson asked to be recused.  He disclosed a business relationship with the 
petitioner.   
 
[Mr. Hutson exited the meeting.] 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the application with the conditions that 8 greenbelt trees are provided along 
I-75 and the dumpsters are screened per the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
The petitioner, Mario Valente of 999 Rochester Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. 
Valente said they would like to use the facility for the repair and storage of 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 8, 2008 
  

 
 

5 
 

commercial and recreational vehicles as well as some auto repair.  He indicated the 
facility would have standard operating hours from Monday through Saturday.  Mr. 
Valente addressed the screening from I-75 as relates to the grade difference and 
the layout of service bays.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
There was brief discussion on: 

 Parallel parking spaces on the east side of Austin. 

 Required screening of the dumpster visible from I-75. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-01-005 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Sections 28.30.07 and 28.30.04 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested 
for the proposed Truck Repair and Outdoor Storage Facility, located on the west 
side of Austin, north of Maple, in Section 26, within the M-1 zoning district, is hereby 
granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Provide eight (8) greenbelt trees along I-75, as required by Section 39.70.02.   
2. Dumpster screening shall not be required, as per Section 39.70.09. 
 
Yes: Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Vleck, Wright 
Absent: Littman, Troshynski 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
[Mr. Hutson returned to meeting.] 
 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN 
 

7. SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW – Brycewood Site Condominium, 9 
units/lots proposed, East side of Evanswood, North of Square Lake, Section 1, 
Zoned R-1D (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
site condominium revised submittal, and summarized the differences between the 
two proposed alternative plans.  Mr. Miller reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the preliminary site plan application version with a 60-foot 
wide right of way terminating at the southern property line to allow future 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 8, 2008 
  

 
 

6 
 

connectivity.  He noted it is the preference of the petitioner to go forward with the 
cul-de-sac version. 
 
Mr. Strat disclosed a business relationship with the civil engineer for this project, but 
indicated there is no financial interest in the project.  
 
Mr. Forsyth stated that would not constitute a true conflict of interest.  
 
Mr. Savidant announced that written communication and photographs received from 
Cathy Carolan of 6322 Evanswood, Troy, were distributed to Planning Commission 
members prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting.   
 
Mr. Miller indicated that all property owners adjacent to the subject site were notified 
of the Public Hearing.  Mr. Miller also noted that City Council has final authority to 
permit the private road. 
 
Carol Thurber of Fazal Khan & Associates, 43279 Schoenherr Road, Sterling 
Heights, was present to represent the petitioner.  Ms. Thurber said there was a 
meeting with residents and specifically the homeowner to the north to discuss the 
potential of moving the road to the south end of the property.  Mr. Carolan, the 
homeowner to the north, agreed to run the road on the north side of the property 
because it offers him the opportunity to divide his parcel in the future.  Ms. Thurber 
indicated that is why no alternate plan showing the road to the south was submitted, 
as requested.  She noted the plan indicates their intent to apply for a sidewalk 
waiver.  Ms. Thurber asked for a favorable recommendation on the layout with the 
cul-de-sac.   
 
There was discussion on: 

 Private road rights.  

 Communication from Cathy Carolan, homeowner to the north. 

 Dialogue/communication between developer and residents. 

 Stormwater control / impact. 

 Submittal plans showing alternate road layouts. 
 
Ms. Thurber addressed in detail the proposed retention pond.  She indicated that 
the site plans were provided to the developer with the understanding they would be 
given to the Carolan’s. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Mike Carolan of 6322 Evanswood, Troy, was present.  Mr. Carolan, the homeowner to 
the north of the proposed site condominium project, indicated he did not receive the 
plans from the developer, but visited City Hall to view the recent submittal.  He brought 
attention to the photographs of existing standing water.  Mr. Carolan addressed the 
potential to provide sewer leads, the utilization of the retention pond in the future, a 
change in the proposed landscaping, his desire to not have a sidewalk and the type of 
fencing. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 8, 2008 
  

 
 

7 
 

 
Discussion followed on: 

 Potential for sewer leads and receptiveness of developer to provide them. 

 Retention pond and its accommodation of future water. 

 Landscape revisions to replace arborvitae with junipers. 

 Creativity and/or enhancement of the retention pond.  
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-01-     [motion withdrawn] 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council, that the 
Preliminary Site Condominium Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family 
Residential Development), as requested for Brycewood Site Condominium, including 
9 units, including a 28-foot wide road located within a 60-foot wide public right-of-way, 
terminating into a stub at the southern property line, located on the east side of 
Evanswood, north of Square Lake Road, Section 1, within the R-1D zoning district, be 
granted. 
 
FURTHERMORE, the following design recommendations are provided to City 
Management:  
 
1. Sewer leads and retention access shall be given to potential developable lots to 

the north. 
2. A sidewalk waiver be granted abutting the property to the north. 
3. Negotiate with the property owner to the north for alternative screening with the 

possibility of including a screen fence. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Hutson said he is not in favor of the motion because (1) a cul-de-sac provides 
for a water feature and (2) a stub street would prohibit creativity for future 
development of the acreage to the south. 
 
Mr. Vleck requested to revise the motion on the floor to recommend the cul-de-sac 
version.  
 
Mr. Wright withdrew his second.   
 
Mr. Vleck withdrew the resolution on the floor. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 8, 2008 
  

 
 

8 
 

Resolution # PC-2008-01-006 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council, that the 
Preliminary Site Condominium Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family 
Residential Development), as requested for Brycewood Site Condominium, including 
9 units, including a 28-foot wide road within a 40-foot wide private street easement, 
terminating in a cul-de-sac, located on the east side of Evanswood, north of Square 
Lake Road, Section 1, within the R-1D zoning district, be granted.   
 
FURTHERMORE, the following design recommendations are provided to City 
Management:  
 
1. Sewer leads and retention access shall be given to potential developable lots to 

the north. 
2. A sidewalk waiver be granted abutting the property to the north. 
3. The petitioner shall negotiate with the property owner to the north for alternative 

screening with the possibility of including a screen fence. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Vleck 
No: Wright 
Absent: Littman, Troshynski 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

8. AMENDMENT OF PLANNING COMMISSION BY-LAWS 
 
There was discussion on amending the Planning Commission By-laws to include 
election guidelines.  Mr. Miller reviewed a format prepared by the City Clerk’s office 
that is similar to election guidelines followed by the City Council.  Of particular 
discussion was clarification on a “majority” vote. 
 
Upon review of Zoning Ordinance Section 02.10.03, Voting Requirements of the 
Planning Commission, Mr. Forsyth advised members that election of officers would 
require a majority vote of the whole body [five votes].   
 
It was further determined that any reference to Election of Officers shall include 
Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) Representatives. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 8, 2008 
  

 
 

9 
 

Resolution # PC-2008-01-007 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby amends the Planning 
Commission By-laws by inserting Section 4, as amended, pertaining to the Election 
of Officers and BZA Representatives, to Article III – Election of Officers and BZA 
Representatives, as printed in the Planning Department memo dated January 4, 
2008. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Littman, Troshynski 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

9. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 
Chair Schultz asked for nominations from the floor for positions of Chair, Vice Chair, 
BZA Representative and BZA Alternate. 
 
Mr. Strat nominated Mr. Schultz for Chair. 
 
Hearing no further nominations, Chair Schultz declared the nominations for the 
position of Chair closed.   
 
Mr. Wright nominated Mr. Vleck for Vice Chair. 
 
Hearing no further nominations, Chair Schultz declared the nominations for the 
position of Vice Chair closed. 
 
Mr. Hutson nominated Mr. Wright for BZA Representative. 
 
Hearing no further nominations, Chair Schultz declared the nominations for the 
position of BZA Representative closed. 
 
Mr. Tagle nominated Mr. Hutson for BZA Alternate. 
 
Mr. Hutson declined the position.  
 
Mr. Wright nominated Mr. Strat for BZA Alternate. 
 
Hearing no further nominations, Chair Schultz declared the nominations for the 
position of BZA Alternate closed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 8, 2008 
  

 
 

10 
 

Resolution # PC-2008-01-008 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, That Mr. Schultz and Mr. Vleck be nominated to serve as Chair and 
Vice Chair of the Planning Commission, respectively, for 2008, and 
 
RESOLVED, that nominations be closed and that these officers be elected, as 
indicated, and 
 
RESOLVED, That Mr. Wright and Mr. Strat be recommended to the City Council as 
the Planning Commission's Board of Zoning Appeals representative and alternate, 
respectively, for 2008, and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that nominations be closed and that these officers be 
recommended to serve, as indicated. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Littman, Troshynski 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
The Chair and members expressed a sincere welcome to Mr. Forsyth.   
 
Congratulations were extended to the newly elected officers. 
 
Mr. Vleck thanked members for their confidence and trust in him to serve as Vice 
Chair. 
 
Mr. Strat commended the Planning Department on the photographs and 
comprehensive reports provided for tonight’s agenda items.  
 
Mr. Wright thanked members for their renewed confidence in him to serve on the 
Board of Zoning Appeals.   
 
Mr. Hutson commended the Planning Department for the photographs and detailed 
reports provided for tonight’s agenda items. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 8, 2008 
  

 
 

11 
 

Mr. Miller addressed (1) the use of photographs in lieu of elevations for the reuse of 
industrial buildings; (2) the January 22nd study meeting to discuss the draft Master 
Plan; (3) the target date of February 25 for the Master Plan public workshop; and (4) 
the January 16th Downtown Development Association (DDA) workshop at the 
Columbia Center to discuss strategy for Big Beaver Road Corridor funds.   
 
There was general discussion on the public workshop for the Master Plan.   
 
Mr. Strat questioned the status of screening parking from the road.   
 
Mr. Miller said a Zoning Ordinance text amendment would be necessary.   
 
Mr. Forsyth thanked everyone for the nice reception.  He said he is looking forward 
to working with everyone, and that his predecessor, Sue Lancaster, left big shoes to 
fill. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-01-009 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Littman and Troshynski are excused from attendance 
at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All (6) 
Absent:  Littman, Troshynski 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Schultz said he hopes he was elected as Chair again because of the good job 
he has done and not because no one wanted the position.  He addressed the wider 
aspect of uses going into existing buildings along the Maple Road corridor.   
 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:57 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2008 PC Minutes\Draft\01-08-08 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JANUARY 14, 2008  

 Page 1 of 3 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, January 
14, 2008 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big 
Beaver Road.  Committee member Henry W. Allemon called the meeting to order 
at 6:55 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Henry W. Allemon 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Clark Yuan, Student Representative 
    Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Robert Cantlon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Ehlert 
 
Resolution #LC2008-01-001  
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Payne 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee member Ehlert at the Liquor Advisory 
Committee meeting of January 14, 2008 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 

 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of December 10, 2007 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2008-01-002 
Moved by Payne 
Seconded by Hall 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01r



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JANUARY 14, 2008  

 Page 2 of 3 

RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the December 10, 2007 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 

 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. Cameron Mitchell Restaurants, LLC (An Ohio Limited Liability Company) 

requests to transfer ownership of 2007 Class C licensed business with 
entertainment permit, located in escrow at 1686 John R, Troy, MI 48084, 
Oakland County, from Hooters of Troy, Inc. (A Georgia Corporation); 
transfer location to SW corner of Coolidge & Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, 
Oakland County; and requests a new SDM license to be held in 
conjunction, new Official Permit (Food), and new outdoor service area. 
{MLCC Req ID# 432854} 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Steve Singleton, general 
manager of Cameron’s Steakhouse, and John Carlin, attorney for Cameron 
Mitchell Restaurants. 
 
New construction is underway for an upscale seafood and steak restaurant at the 
southwest corner of Coolidge and Big Beaver.  The establishment will be called 
Mitchell’s Ocean Club and has the same ownership as Mitchell’s Fish Market and 
Cameron’s Steakhouse restaurants.  There will be seating for approximately 220 
patrons in the dining area, with additional seating on the patio.   There is a 
projected opening date of May 29, 2008, with lunch and dinner service.   
 
Resolution #LC2008-01-003 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that Cameron Mitchell restaurants, LLC (An Ohio Limited Liability 
Company) be allowed to transfer ownership of 2007 Class C licensed business 
with entertainment permit, located in escrow at 1686 John R, Troy, MI 48084, 
Oakland County, from Hooters of Troy, Inc. (A Georgia Corporation) to SW corner 
of Coolidge & Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County; and be granted a new 
SDM license to be held in conjunction, new Official Permit (Food), and new 
outdoor service area. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JANUARY 14, 2008  

 Page 3 of 3 

 

 
2. Hari Om Restaurants, Inc. requests to transfer ownership of 2007 Class C 

licensed business located at 2360 Rochester Ct., Troy, MI 48084, Oakland 
County from Paragon of Michigan, Inc. (a Wisconsin Corporation); and 
requests a new Official Permit (Food). [MLCC REF# 435416] 

  
The attorney for Hari Om Restaurants, Inc. requested that this item be removed 
from the agenda. 
 
There was a brief discussion of the 2007 liquor violations. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:20 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
                   Henry W. Allemon 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
               Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



TROY CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT JANUARY 16, 2008 

CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE AGENDA 
Wednesday, January 16, 2008 – 7 p.m. 
Conference Room C – Troy City Hall 

 
I.     Call to Order 7:09 pm 
 
II.     Roll Call 
 
 Kent Voigt    
 Bryan Wehrung 

Brian Wattles    
 Tom Belian    
 Lisa Martinico    
 Chi Song, Student Rep. 

Nancy Chen, Student Rep. 
Cindy Stewart, City Liaison 

 
Absent: Alan Manzon, Penny Marinos 

 
 
III. Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting of October 18, 2007 

Change attendance to reflect that Chi Song, student rep was in 
attendance. 
Motion by Kent Voigt to approve the October 18, 2007 minutes, seconded 
by Lisa Martinico.  Approved unanimously. 

 
  
IV.  Correspondence:  
 

A. Comcast – Comcast Local Dropped – Dec. 28, 2007 
Dropped from its current channel line up position based on customer 
evaluations.  Board members with this channel said it was nothing 
they’d miss. 

 
B. Comcast – Changing Hours at Royal Oak Service Center – Dec. 13, 

2007 
As of Jan. 7, 2008, Monday – Friday 9 am – 7 pm and Saturdays 9 am 
– 5 pm. Board’s concerns visiting the service center very poor 
customer service, long lines, lack of staff. 

 
C. Comcast – Digital PEG Channels on the Basic Service Tier – Dec. 7, 

2007 
President of MI NATOA sent list of questions on behalf of NATOA to 
Comcast.  Answers sent from Comcast. Some answers very vague. 
Digital boxes needed by Basic Service tier customers will be 1 free per 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01s



TROY CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT JANUARY 16, 2008 

household. Michigan is the only state with the new legislation (PA 480). 
Is that why they started with us? 

 
D. Comcast – Changes and additions in the channel lineup – Dec. 6, 

2007 
Channel Additions:  NHL Network, Discovery HD, TLC HD, Animal 
Planet HD, Sci-Fi HD, CNN HD 

 
E. Comcast – Scheduled price adjustment on video products – Dec. 6, 

2007 
Due to increased investments they are making in technology, 
programming and customer care, beginning Jan. 1, 2008, adjusting 
prices on video products.  
 
Example:  
 
Limited basic: $13.50 - $14.99 (11% increase) 
Standard Basic: $29.99 - $31.50 (5%) 
Preferred Basic: $46.49 - $49.49  
 
Digital Packages:  
Starter $48.49 - $51.48 
Preferred: $62.44 - $66.44 
 
No increases to high-speed Internet prices. 
 
Board members who are Comcast customers do not think they are 
getting any of these notifications. They will check future bills. 
 
Senior rates increasing 5 percent, 2.9 percent and 4.9 percent 
depending on the package. 

 
F. Comcast – Change in the channel lineup and pay-per-view pricing – 

Nov. 30 
Effective Dec. 31, 2007, NOGGIN and the N Networks will separate 
into two 24 hour services. The N will replace NICKGAS (games and 
sports). 
Video-On-Demand: Price for new releases increase from $3.99 to 
$4.99. Price for IFC in theaters Movie titles increase from $5.99 to 
$6.99. 

 
G.  WOW – Notification of price adjustment – Nov. 26, 2007 

 
Effective Jan. 1, 2008 basic service increases to $48.75. Limited Basic 
will be $15.99 a month. 
 



TROY CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT JANUARY 16, 2008 

H. WOW – Notification  of Programming Changes – Nov. 14, 2007 
Effective January 4, 2008, adding Fox Business Channel to digital tier. 
Also creating a new digital tier called Digital Variety Pack. Includes 
tennis channel and Fox college sports. 

 
I. Comcast – Comcast is resurrecting its late fees – Oct. 30, 2007 

Administrative fee up from $5 to $7. 
 
J. Comcast – Changes and additions in the channel lineup – Oct. 22, 

2007 
Channel Additions:  History HD, TBS HD, USA Network HD 
Leased access and C-SPAN 2 will be repositioned. 
Increased changes: Technical visits $19.95 (currently 0) 
Other changes:   
Reduced video installation 
High-Speed Internet Installation and Digital Voice Installation 

 
K. WOW – WOW! High-Speed Internet and Phone is offered at your 

service for a competitive price 
Bundle any two WOW! services for $59.99 a month or all three for 
$89.99 a month. Prices guaranteed to 2009. 

 
V. Articles 
 

A. Cable Boxes on way out, Comcast Says – Detroit News – Jan. 7, 2007 
 

This industry initiative, “tru2way,” could allow TVs and other devices to 
receive interactive services. This could encourage the development of 
new services and features that rely on two-way communication over 
the cable network. Comcast will roll out the platform in all of its markets 
by the end of 2008. The Panasonic Viera Plasma HDTV with “tru2way” 
will go on sale this year. The time-frame gives cable leverage over the 
competing standard proposed six year consumer electronics makers, 
whose devices might not make it to retail until 2009. 

 
 

B.  The brains behind the perfect ACT score – Detroit News, Jan. 5, 2007 
 
Great accomplishment achieved by Chi Song, Cable Rep. Only one in 
Michigan and one of the 22 in the US to score perfect 36 on ACT. Well 
rounded academically as well as other leadership skills, community 
service and writing ability.  CAC Members are very proud of Chi Song’s 
accomplishments and commend him for his work. 

 
C. Cable lineup switch cheats viewers, their communities – Oakland 

Press, Jan. 4, 2008 



TROY CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT JANUARY 16, 2008 

 
When cable was in its infancy, there was honest-to-goodness 
competition to secure a franchise. Local officials demanded a lot and 
the benefits were bountiful. In a complete 180, the cable companies 
now have the locals over the barrel. Changes are shoved down our 
throats. 

 
D. Public access TV to be a tough find; Comcast taking it digital, into 900s 

– Detroit Free Press, Dec. 25, 2007 
Hundreds of local access cable channels that broadcast municipal 
meetings, concerts, sports, parades and community events are moving 
to channels in the 900s.  Unclear what programming will be shown on 
the lower channels, but Comcast said the move is driven by uniform 
desire for digital service. All 1.3 million Michigan Comcast subscribers 
will be affected. Viewership is expected to plummet by 50-70 percent 
with this change. 

 
E. Local Government Organizations Ask FCC to Stay Second Video 

Franchise Order – Nation’s Cities Weekly, Dec. 24, 2007 
Last week, national local government organizations representing 
municipal and county officials, including NLC, asking the Federal 
Communications Commission (FCC) not to implement its Second 
Video Franchise Order (Second Order) pending reconsideration and 
clarification of the order. Without the agency’s action, the order will go 
fully into effect today. In documents filed with the FCC, the 
organizations assert that several aspects of the Second Order are 
unclear or were decided in error. In a 3-2 decision released last month, 
the FCC extended several aspects of an earlier video franchise order 
to incumbent cable operators. In the Second Order, the FCC 
concluded that the 5 percent cap on franchise fees established in its 
First Video Franchising Order applies to incumbents. 
 

F. Dedication nets teen a perfect ACT score – Oakland Press, Dec. 24, 
2007 
Chi Song’s accomplishment achieved by only 1 out of 6000.  His 
college choices are Harvard and Stanford. 
 

G. Channel change creates cable static – Observer & Eccentric, Dec. 20, 
2007 
Local public access producers and municipal cable channel 
representatives feels PEG channels are clearly being undermined. The 
fear is that at some point Comcast will say no one is watching the PEG 
channels and seek to stop providing access. 

 
H. Comcast, AT&T rivalry heats up – Detroit News, Dec 18, 2007 

 



TROY CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT JANUARY 16, 2008 

Companies bombard Metro Detroit consumers with ads touting deals 
on digital TV, high-speed Internet. Since May when AT&T launched U-
Verse, its bundled service package, the regions two longest carriers 
have been ratcheting up their sales pitches. Over the next six months 
to a year, a telecommunications consultant predicts it will get nastier. 
Comcast, the nation’s largest cable TV and second largest Internet 
provider, services over 1.3 million households in Michigan. AT&T has 
posed the biggest threat to Comcast. 
 

I. AT&T’s U-Verse expands - Detroit News, Dec. 13, 2007 
High-speed Internet and digital TV services will compete with Comcast 
for customers in Metro Detroit. AT&T won’t disclose how many of the 
roughly 350,000 serviceable households are taking advantage of the 
new U-Verse service. U-Verse blends feature-loaded home phone, 
digital TV and high-speed Internet access services into one package 
delivered through standard home telephone jacks and is designed to 
take on Comcast’s’ similar bundles, which have been on the market 
much longer.  

 
VI.  New Business 
 

A. Council Resolution requesting Preservation of Existing Channel 
Locations for PEG Channels. 
 
US District Court Eastern District of Michigan 
Honorable Victoria Roberts – Opinion and order (Jan. 14, 2008) 

 
B. Election of Chair 

Bryan, having served on the Cable Advisory Committee since July 
1991, has decided to step down. Lisa thanked Bryan for his 18 years of 
service. 
RESOLUTION #CAC-01-01 
Motion by Brian Wattles, seconded by Lisa Martinico, that the cable 
Advisory Committee commends Bryan Wehrung for his 18 years of 
service to the City of Troy.  Motion approved unanimously. 
 
RESOLUTION #CAC-01-02 
Motion by Lisa Martinico, seconded by Brian Wattles to recommend 
Kent Voigt as chairperson.  Motion approved unanimously. 

 
 

VII.  Old Business 
 

A. Report on Web Publications from members 
 
Sunspot activity might affect cell phones and cable in near future.  



TROY CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT JANUARY 16, 2008 

 
Use of technology is living green, with considerable savings. Online 
publications show excess of energy savings. 
 
In technology fields, employees aged 18-31 are most difficult to manage. 
Seventy percent of problems within a company are due to unrealistic 
expectations by the younger employees.  Ages 32-42 experience 17 
percent of problems and ages 43-65 have 10 percent of problems. 

 
VIII. Staff Report 
 

A. WTRY Cable Guide 
 

B. CAC Member Listing 
 
C. ICCA Meeting Notes – November 14, 2007. 

 
 D.  Next Meeting:  Thursday, April 17, 2008. 
 
 
IX.  Adjournment  
 
 RESOLUTION CAC #01-03 

Motion to adjourn at 9:15 pm by Tom Belian seconded by Bryan Wattles.  
Meeting adjourned. 
 
 
 

 
________________________________ 
Bryan Wehrung, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, City Liaison 



DATE:        January 2, 2008
TO:             Phil Nelson, City Manager
FROM:        Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued during the Month of December 2007

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 7 $1,189,143.00 $9,196.00
Repair 1 $73,000.00 $656.00
Sub Total 8 $1,262,143.00 $9,852.00
COMMERCIAL
New 1 $335,000.00 $2,490.00
Fnd./Shell New 1 $368,816.00 $2,728.00
Add/Alter 15 $1,868,354.00 $15,135.00
Sub Total 17 $2,572,170.00 $20,353.00
RESIDENTIAL
New 1 $175,000.00 $1,370.00
Add/Alter 18 $328,613.00 $4,628.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 1 $2,000.00 $55.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 1 $1,000.00 $35.00
Repair 1 $1,000.00 $70.00
Wreck 3 $0.00 $160.00
Sub Total 25 $507,613.00 $6,318.00
TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 1 $170,988.00 $1,342.00
Add/Alter 1 $3,000.00 $75.00
Repair 1 $2,800.00 $75.00

Sub Total 3 $176,788.00 $1,492.00
MULTIPLE
Garage/Acc. Structure 3 $53,500.00 $820.00
Sub Total 3 $53,500.00 $820.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 43 $0.00 $4,750.00
Fences 3 $0.00 $65.00
Sub Total 46 $0.00 $4,815.00

TOTAL 102 $4,572,214.00 $43,650.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF DECEMBER 2007
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 99 $990.00
Cert. of Occupancy 24 $1,572.30
Plan Review 65 $3,054.00
Microfilm 25 $248.00
Building Permits 102 $43,650.00
Electrical Permits 146 $7,438.00
Heating Permits 102 $6,485.00
Air Cond. Permits 21 $2,005.00
Refrigeration Permits 1 $40.00
Plumbing Permits 56 $3,184.00
Storm Sewer Permits 7 $433.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 9 $305.00
Sewer Taps 8 $1,488.00

TOTAL 665 $70,892.30
LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF DECEMBER 2007

NO. LICENSE FEE
Mech. Contr.-Reg. 33 $165.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 18 $270.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 10 $10.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 7 $70.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 4 $60.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 1 $10.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 6 $60.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 3 $45.00

TOTAL 82 $690.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2006 2006 2007 2007
JANUARY 116 $7,273,163.00 119 $7,595,008.00

FEBRUARY 94 $6,659,691.00 101 $8,056,092.00
MARCH 127 $5,629,425.00 135 $9,204,932.00
APRIL 174 $5,766,996.00 140 $4,844,929.00

MAY 216 $11,290,598.00 170 $11,201,261.00

JUNE 218 $10,681,352.00 183 $6,057,272.00

JULY 198 $11,269,902.00 134 $5,755,737.00

AUGUST 150 $14,170,725.00 149 $10,867,085.00

SEPTEMBER 161 $12,827,192.00 151 $15,498,043.00

OCTOBER 134 $10,733,680.00 194 $13,663,761.00

NOVEMBER 111 $6,690,950.00 136 $16,386,272.00

DECEMBER 94 $10,508,219.00 102 $4,572,214.00

TOTAL 1793 $113,501,893.00 1714 $113,702,606.00



2004 2004

6 5 9 6 7 5 720
30
40
50
60

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2007

6 5 3 9 6 7 4 5 3 7 2 1
0

10

Ja
nu

ary
Fe

br
ua

ry
Ma

rch Ap
ril

Ma
y

Ju
ne Ju
ly

Au
gu

st
Se

pte
m …

Oc
tob

er
No

ve
mb

er
De

ce
mb

er



Jan 2, 2008 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF DECEMBER 2007Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter KIRCO CONSTRUCTION LLC 101 W BIG BEAVER 505  500,000
Commercial, Add/Alter P C I INDUSTRIES 350 STEPHENSON  605,000
Commercial, Add/Alter EMMES REALTY SERVICES 700 TOWER 500  280,000

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  1,385,000

Commercial, Fnd/Shell New RONNISCH CONSTRUCTION GROUP 135 E MAPLE  368,816
Commercial, Fnd/Shell NewTotal  368,816

Commercial, New Building LLAMAS GROUP CONSTRUCTION 125 E MAPLE  335,000
Commercial, New BuildingTotal  335,000

Industrial, Add/Alter WING CONSTRUCTION 750 CHICAGO  1,000,000
Industrial, Add/AlterTotal  1,000,000

Total Valuation:  3,088,816Records  7



DATE:         January 2, 2008
TO:              Phil Nelson, City Manager
FROM:         Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:   Permits issued July through December 2007

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Fnd./Shell New 1 $3,500,000.00 $19,645.00
Add/Alter 29 $3,244,187.00 $26,359.00
Wreck 2 $0.00 $200.00
Repair 1 $73,000.00 $656.00
Sub Total 33 $6,817,187.00 $46,860.00
COMMERCIAL
New 7 $6,421,742.00 $41,370.00
Fnd. New 1 $1,500,000.00 $9,645.00
Fnd./Shell New 1 $368,816.00 $2,728.00
New Less Tenent 4 $382,000.00 $3,254.00
Completion Less Tenant 3 $335,000.00 $2,780.00
Tenant Completion 13 $835,245.00 $7,517.00
Add/Alter 137 $23,425,990.00 $169,388.00
Wreck 4 $0.00 $410.00
Kiosk 7 $0.00 $245.00
Sub Total 177 $33,268,793.00 $237,337.00
RESIDENTIAL
New 22 $4,749,515.00 $36,468.00
Add/Alter 165 $3,222,952.00 $39,708.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 48 $299,967.00 $5,694.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 17 $165,549.00 $2,355.00
Repair 9 $95,488.00 $1,467.00
Fire Repair 4 $153,926.00 $1,535.00
Wreck 9 $0.00 $480.00
Fnd./Slab/Rat Wall 2 $6,900.00 $170.00
Fnd./Slab/Footing 1 $2,500.00 $75.00
Sub Total 277 $8,696,797.00 $87,952.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 5 $590,840.00 $4,869.00
Add/Alter 14 $79,995.00 $1,662.00
Repair 2 $62,800.00 $640.00
Sub Total 21 $733,635.00 $7,171.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



MULTIPLE
Add/Alter 1 $1,200.00 $55.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 3 $53,500.00 $820.00
Sub Total 4 $54,700.00 $875.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
New 2 $14,000,000.00 $74,290.00
Add/Alter 3 $399,000.00 $3,228.00
Sub Total 5 $14,399,000.00 $77,518.00

RELIGIOUS
New 2 $2,658,000.00 $16,036.00
Add/Alter 2 $30,000.00 $510.00
Sub Total 4 $2,688,000.00 $16,546.00
MISCELLANEOUS
Satellite/Antennas 3 $85,000.00 $1,030.00
Signs 272 $0.00 $26,895.00
Fences 70 $0.00 $1,110.00

Sub Total 345 $85,000.00 $29,035.00
TOTAL 866 $66,743,112.00 $503,294.00

Page 2



PERMITS ISSUED JULY THROUGH DECEMBER 2007
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 1025 $10,250.00
Cert. of Occupancy 219 $20,681.00
Plan Review 489 $36,001.50
Microfilm 208 $2,310.00
Building Permits 866 $503,294.00
Electrical Permits 1127 $62,056.00
Heating Permits 783 $38,425.00
Air Cond. Permits 290 $14,755.00
Refrigeration Permits 5 $600.00
Plumbing Permits 596 $41,122.00
Storm Sewer Permits 62 $7,710.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 72 $2,414.00
Sewer Taps 56 $75,160.79
TOTAL 5798 $814,779.29

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED JULY THROUGH DECEMBER 2007
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 263 $1,315.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 143 $2,145.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 122 $122.00
Sewer Inst.-Reg. 0 $0.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 36 $360.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 12 $180.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 14 $140.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 103 $1,030.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 6 $90.00
TOTAL 699 $5,382.00

Page 3



DATE:         January 2, 2008
TO:              Phil Nelson, City Manager
FROM:         Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:   Permits issued during the Year 2007

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Fnd./Shell New 1 $3,500,000.00 $19,645.00
Add/Alter 71 $7,990,266.00 $64,745.00
Wreck 7 $0.00 $700.00
Parking Lot 1 $28,000.00 $341.00
Repair 1 $73,000.00 $656.00
Sub Total 81 $11,591,266.00 $86,087.00
COMMERCIAL
New 8 $6,541,742.00 $42,355.00
Fnd. New 1 $1,500,000.00 $9,645.00
Shell New 2 $105,000.00 $1,025.00
Fnd./Shell New 4 $2,126,816.00 $15,469.00
New Less Tenent 5 $3,478,000.00 $20,879.00
Completion (New) 2 $1,645,000.00 $11,805.00
Completion Less Tenant 3 $335,000.00 $2,780.00
Tenant Completion 16 $1,019,245.00 $9,240.00
Add/Alter 257 $37,516,324.00 $282,732.00
Temp. Office Trailer 1 $4,500.00 $115.00
Wreck 6 $0.00 $620.00
Repair 1 $3,075.00 $95.00
Fire Repair 1 $3,000.00 $75.00
Kiosk 8 $600.00 $280.00
Sub Total 315 $54,278,302.00 $397,115.00
RESIDENTIAL
New 58 $11,635,696.00 $89,932.00
Add/Alter 334 $6,710,143.00 $80,947.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 80 $429,722.00 $8,659.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 37 $363,373.00 $5,330.00
Repair 18 $266,301.00 $3,396.00
Fire Repair 10 $541,683.00 $5,135.00
Wreck 25 $20,000.00 $1,380.00
Fnd./Slab/Rat Wall 2 $6,900.00 $170.00
Fnd./Slab/Footing 5 $14,100.00 $375.00
Sub Total 569 $19,987,918.00 $195,324.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02c



TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 18 $2,580,524.00 $20,691.00
Add/Alter 32 $232,196.00 $4,285.00
Repair 5 $82,300.00 $1,105.00
Sub Total 55 $2,895,020.00 $26,081.00
MULTIPLE
Add/Alter 1 $1,200.00 $55.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 3 $53,500.00 $820.00

Sub Total 4 $54,700.00 $875.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Shell 3 $14,700,000.00 $79,335.00
Add/Alter 14 $7,234,500.00 $44,887.00
Sub Total 17 $21,934,500.00 $124,222.00

RELIGIOUS
New 2 $2,658,000.00 $16,036.00
Add/Alter 5 $126,000.00 $1,617.00
Sub Total 7 $2,784,000.00 $17,653.00
MISCELLANEOUS
Satellite/Antennas 10 $176,900.00 $2,611.00
Signs 496 $0.00 $50,895.00
Fences 160 $0.00 $2,530.00
Sub Total 666 $176,900.00 $56,036.00
TOTAL 1714 $113,702,606.00 $903,393.00

Page 2



PERMITS ISSUED DURING 2007
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 2027 $20,270.00
Cert. of Occupancy 438 $34,932.15
Plan Review 910 $59,622.50
Microfilm 412 $4,461.00
Building Permits 1714 $903,393.00
Electrical Permits 2097 $123,556.00
Heating Permits 1511 $74,505.00
Air Cond. Permits 611 $29,490.00
Refrigeration Permits 9 $990.00
Plumbing Permits 1163 $76,753.00
Storm Sewer Permits 153 $12,166.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 150 $5,272.00
Sewer Taps 115 $128,833.30
TOTAL 11310 $1,474,243.95
LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING 2007

NO. LICENSE FEE
Mech. Contr.-Reg. 421 $2,105.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 376 $5,640.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 246 $246.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 70 $700.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 33 $495.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 33 $330.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 204 $2,040.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 25 $375.00
TOTAL 1408 $11,931.00

Page 3



 

 
January 11, 2008 
 

TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

 

SUBJECT: Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction and Mid-Thumb Auctioneering 
Services – December 2007  

 

Background 
 

 Resolution #2004-02-075 established the auction fee of 5% and provided approval to use 
BidCorp with the provision that other on-line auction service options would be considered.  
BidNet moved forward and implemented the on-line surplus auction service for the MITN 
System (Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network), which can be accessed through the 
City of Troy home web page.  MITN is the official e-procurement website used by the City 
for posting bids, tabulations, quotations, and award information. It was a Purchasing goal 
that one e-procurement site would be operational for all functions. 

 

 Resolution #2007-03-089-E4b established the auction fee of 5% for on-site and 6% for off-
site auctions and provided approval to use Mid-Thumb Auctioneering Services, LLC for 
vehicles – cleaned, detailed, and prepped.  Included in the specifications for the auction 
contract is the ability of our auctioneer to take the City’s auction items to other auction 
locations. Mid-Thumb Auctioneering, LLC suggested using the St. Clair County Park in Port 
Huron, Michigan.  All transportation, reporting, and advertising are included in the auction 
fee. Chuck Cryderman & Associates, LLC was also approved for heavy equipment etc at 
rates of 5% on-site and 10% off-site.  

 

Financial Considerations 
 

 In compliance with Resolution #2004-02-075, final reporting is being presented for one (1) 
IBM 6400 Line Printer, two (2) 1930 books & 1893 to 1896 old Detroit newspapers, one 
(1) box of toys, one (1) box of sewing tools, one (1) box of printing tools, three (3) corsets, 
five (5) type cases, one (1) mangle, two (2) tins, two (2) enamel pots with lids, one (1) 
Dietz Monarch lantern, one (1) Brownie camera, one (1) 1930’s toaster, one (1) barrel with 
shot glasses, one (1) Mill on frame, one (1) picture frame, one (1) knitting bag, one (1) 
Olympia typewriter with case, one (1) box of toy cars, one (1) Food chopper, and two (2) 
Barrister 1920’s bookcases that were auctioned on-line through BidNet, the City’s e-
procurement website, on December 13, 2007 and closed on, December 27, 2007.   

 

 Final reporting is also being presented for one (1) Ford Crown Vic, two (2), GMC 
Cargovans, one (1) Dodge Ram Pick up, and one (1) Ford F-350 Crew Cab that were 
auctioned through Mid-Thumb Auctioneering Services, LLC on December 8, 2007.    

 
1 of 2 

              CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02d



January 10, 2008 
 
To: Phillip Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction and Mid-Thumb Auctioneering 

Services – December, 2007  
         
 
Financial Considerations - continued 
 
Final sale amounts and fees are listed below:     
DESCRIPTION PROCEEDS    SUB-TOTAL  NET INCOME 

(1) IBM Printer (2) Bookcases, Museum items & etc. $          475.90               

(1) Ford Vic, (1) Dodge Ram, (2) GMC Cargovans, & etc.   $     22,200.00   
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:     $22,675.90  

 FEES:   

5% Printer, bookcases, Museum items, & etc.   $         (23.80)   

6% on Vehicle   $    (1,332.00)   

    
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:     ($1,355.80)  

Sales Tax +6% (IBM printer, bookcases & Museum items-etc)   $           28.55   

Sales Tax (None on Vehicle):  Tax Exempt.           0.00   
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:         $  28.55  

      $ 21,348.65 

 
Legal Considerations 
 
 Farmington Hills, Michigan was the lead agency for the bid process for an on-line 

auction website.  Resolution #2004-02-075. 
 
 Troy, Michigan was the lead agency for the bid process for on and off site auctions.   

Resolution #2007-03-089-E4b. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in the 

surplus auction process. (Goal II).  
 
Options 
 
 To report final results of December 2007 auctions to City management. 
 
 No action required 
 
 
 
 
G:Agenda-Final Reporting-BidNet on line/Mid-Thumb Auctioneer – December 07  

2 of 2 



 VEHICLE AUCTION REPORT 

 NUMBER MAKE    MODEL    YEAR AUCTION FEE   AUCTION PRICE 
 224 FORD F-350 CREW CAB     01 $336.00 $5,600.00 
  
 257 GMC SAVANA\CARGO\VAN     99 $210.00 $3,500.00 

 259 GMC SAVANA\CARGO\VAN     99 $174.00 $2,900.00 

 265 DODGE 2500 RAM 4WD       01 $384.00 $6,400.00 
  
 970 FORD CROWN VICTORIA     03 $228.00 $3,800.00 
  

 TOTALS $1,332.00 $22,200.00 

 

 

Vehicles listed above were sold by Mid-Thumb Auctioneering Service on 
12/08/2007. 

FINANCE: PLEASE CREDIT ACCOUNT # 6610.4693.100 GAIN/SALE OF 
DEPRECIATED FIXED ASSETS. 
 

     TOTAL SALE: $22,200.00      

    AUCTION FEE (6%) $- 1,332.00 

                                                $20,868.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Samuel P. Lamerato, Superintendent of Fleet  

 Monday, January 07, 2008 Page 1 of 1 



MITN Auctions National Auctions   Auctions Main Menu     HELP/FAQ     Contact Support   MITN Admin Menu 

 
 

Report for the City of Troy, MI   

Detailed Report for Seller: ALL   

Reported on 1/10/2008 From: 12/1/2007  To: 12/31/2007 

 

Item ID Date 

Sale Amount Tax Collected Charge Type of Fee 

Auction Description Seller  

0 12/5/2007 0 0.00 126.32 Payment    Bockstanz   

2801 12/27/2007 20.50 1.23 1.03 Sale  Matchbox Cars Bockstanz   

2567 12/27/2007 205.50 12.33 10.28 Sale  IBM 6400-i10 Line Printer Bockstanz   

2806 12/27/2007 5.00 0.30 0.25 Sale  Brownie Reflex Camera Bockstanz   

2808 12/27/2007 9.38 0.56 0.47 Sale  Toaster Bockstanz   

2809 12/27/2007 20.52 1.23 1.03 Sale  Lantern Bockstanz   

2810 12/27/2007 5.00 0.30 0.25 Sale  Food Chopper Bockstanz   

2812 12/27/2007 76.00 4.56 3.80 Sale  Bookcases Bockstanz   

2813 12/27/2007 5.00 0.30 0.25 Sale  Enamel Pots and lids Bockstanz   

2818 12/27/2007 6.50 0.39 0.33 Sale  Sewing Tools Bockstanz   

2821 12/27/2007 1.00 0.06 0.05 Sale  Mangle Bockstanz   

2828 12/27/2007 15.50 0.93 0.78 Sale  Box of Toys Bockstanz   

2830 12/27/2007 1.00 0.06 0.05 Sale  Frame Bockstanz   

2803 12/27/2007 5.00 0.30 0.25 Sale  Olympia Typewriter with case Bockstanz   

2804 12/27/2007 31.75 1.91 1.59 Sale  Books and Old Newspapers Bockstanz   

2814 12/27/2007 2.50 0.15 0.13 Sale  Tins Bockstanz   

2815 12/27/2007 1.00 0.06 0.05 Sale  Mill Bockstanz   

2816 12/27/2007 2.00 0.12 0.10 Sale  Knitting Bag Bockstanz   

2817 12/27/2007 5.25 0.32 0.26 Sale  Barrel with shot glasses Bockstanz   

2819 12/27/2007 10.50 0.63 0.53 Sale  Type Cases Bockstanz   

2831 12/27/2007 12.50 0.75 0.63 Sale  Box of Misc. Items  Bockstanz   

2802 12/27/2007 10.50 0.63 0.53 Sale  Lot A - Corset, Gridle, Towels etc Bockstanz   

2820 12/27/2007 24.00 1.44 1.20 Sale  Printing Tools Bockstanz   

  

Total Sales 
Amount 

Total Tax 
Collected 

Total Amount 
Charged 

Total 
Payments 

Total Balance Due for the selected 
date range 

Total Balance 
Due 

$475.90 $28.55 $23.80 $126.32 ($102.52) $23.90 
 

 

https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/default.asp?pid=1
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/natauctions.asp?National=1
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea.asp?pid=3
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/faq.asp?pid=4
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/feedback.asp?pid=5
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/logoutagency.asp
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=ALL&beginmonth=12&beginyear=2007&endmonth=12&endyear=2007&sortby=id
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=ALL&beginmonth=12&beginyear=2007&endmonth=12&endyear=2007&sortby=Date
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=ALL&beginmonth=12&beginyear=2007&endmonth=12&endyear=2007&sortby=Type
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=ALL&beginmonth=12&beginyear=2007&endmonth=12&endyear=2007&sortby=Seller
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2801
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2567
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2806
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2808
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2809
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2810
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2812
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2813
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2818
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2821
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2828
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2830
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2803
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2804
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2814
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2815
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2816
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2817
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2819
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2831
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2802
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=2820


campbellld
Text Box
J-02e





































campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c



campbellld
Text Box
J-03d



campbellld
Text Box
J-03e



campbellld
Text Box
J-04a







campbellld
Text Box
J-05





Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting 
November 15, 2007 Draft Minutes 

6:00 p.m. 
 

Present: Nancy Piotrowski, Leonette Ciepielowski, Robin Lilly, George Zielinski, Ann Comiskey, Palak Vani, Alyssa 
Arnesen, Charlene Krupitzer, Dale Zygnowicz, Paul Scobie. 
 
Call to order: Nancy called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m. All rose for the Pledge of Allegiance.  
                         
Minutes:  George moved to approve the minutes of October 18, 2007. Leonette seconded; so moved.  
 
Treasurer’s Report: George Zielinski:  

• George presented Treasurers Report. Robin moved to approve report as presented. Ann seconded; so moved. 
Communications:  

 Paul distributed a thank you note sent by Leonette for her nomination to Leadership Troy as TYA’s Volunteer 
of the Year. 

 Paul shared feedback on Youth Dialogue day. Ann followed up with an explanation of what the day consisted 
of and what the students felt were important issues. 
 

Caseworker’s Report: 
 VOLUNTEER RECRUITMENT-At our Executive Committee Meeting this week, the importance of ongoing 

volunteer recruitment was discussed. It was agreed that this is a challenge that sometimes feels daunting, but 
which nonetheless requires the energies of each of us. TYA has purchased copies of an excellent Recruitment 
and Publicity Guide which we hope to use as a tool to assist us in this effort during the coming months. This 
information will be shared soon; lets commit toward making this a priority in 2008. 

 TROY WOMEN’S ASSOCIATION –I was privileged to have spoken to the Troy Women’s Association at 
their regular meeting on November 13. I felt warmly received, was able to spread the word about TYA’s 
efforts, and had two members express interest in following up about learning more. A monetary contribution 
was made to us by the TWA of $250.00. We are very grateful for this support and possible future 
collaboration. 

 YOUTH DIALOGUE DAY-Over one hundred students and adult leaders participated in this semi-yearly 
event earlier this week. Students came from middle school this year and were a great source of energy, spirit, 
and dialogue. The Troy Community Coalition will be generating feedback to the community regarding this 
event in the weeks to come. 

 CASEWORK- During October, thirteen new referrals came into TYA-seven from schools, four from police 
and two from parents. Our caseload as of October 31, 2007 stood at 57- 36 boys and 21 girls. 
 

Executive Committee Report: 
• Paul attended the Troy Woman’s Association meeting, and was presented with a cash donation to use as we 

see fit. 
• George spoke with National City Bank about sponsoring the New Beginnings Scholarship; he suggested 

sharing the name if they are able to support it. 
 

Committee Reports: 
  
       A.   Camp/Skill Building:  

• Paul reported. It is the off season; so not a lot going on at this time. Will be getting together with Brian 
Goul in January or February to start planning for 2008.  

 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-06



B.   Family Education:  
• Charlene reported: the October 22 Helping “Our Children” Cope with Stress event was a big success. 

There were over one hundred in attendance. Active Parenting of Teens will be starting in January and 
once again we will be running Time To Wait For Sex (April 10, 2008).  

 
       C. Fundraising- Vacant: 
 
       D. Mentors Plus-Paul Scobie reported. 

• Not a lot of activity right now; Bill Waggoner may be returning to assist in 2008. 
E. Membership- Vacant 

 
       F. Publicity- Amy Johnson:  

• Amy will be writing up an article on the New Beginnings Scholarship. 
E. Youth Involvement-  

• Leonette collected Halloween candy from three Troy Schools and it will be distributed to Lighthouse, 
Baldwin Center, Salvation Army and the Detroit Rescue Mission. 

       H. Youth Recognition-Vacant 
• Meeting is scheduled for November 20 to begin planning.  

School Reports:  
• Palak reports Athens held a blood drive in November which brought in one hundred twenty five pint’s. 
• Alyssa reports Troy High is in the planning stages of Prom, will be selling water bottles @ $5.00 each 

to raise money for expenses. Troy High Football Team is in the State Playoffs. The Leadership Club 
held a training.  

Old Business:  
• Executive Committee will be developing techniques to recruit new members. 
 

New Business: 
• Spring Break Troy Style will take place March 24-30 2008 
. 

Community Information From Organization/Agencies Liaisons: 
• Ann reports the Troy Community Coalition will be holding their Volunteer Recognition Dinner on 

December 6, 2007. The City of Troy and the Troy Coalition together will be sponsoring Turn Off The 
TV and Turn On Your Family.  

 
Adjourned:  7:50 p.m. 
                                        Next meeting will be January 17, 2008 @ 6:00 p.m. 
                                                   
Respectfully Submitted, 
Robin Lilly, Secretary   



 

  
 January 18, 2008 

 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Carol K. Anderson, Director of Parks & Recreation 
 
SUBJECT:   Michigan Turfgrass Environmental Stewardship Program 

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 
 
Background: 
 
• The Stewardship Program represents collaboration between government agencies, the turfgrass 

industry, Michigan State University, and environmental advocacy groups. It is designed to make 
fundamental advances toward environmental protection on golf courses. The program was 
developed at Michigan State University with the assistance from the Michigan Departments of 
Agriculture, Environmental Quality, Golf Association of Michigan and the Michigan Turfgrass 
Foundation.  

• The mission of the program is to: 
o Maximize the protection of natural resources 
o Engage the golf industry, regulatory agencies, MSU and environmental groups into 

productive communication. 
o Clearly identify environmental laws & regulations and advance compliance. 
o Enhance wildlife habitat, indigenous vegetation and protect water resources with buffer 

zones. 
o Recognize, promote and award environmental achievements. 

• From the beginning of the golf course development, emphasis has been placed on environmental 
stewardship of the property. Staff pursued certification for Sanctuary Lake to ensure that the 
practices in operation are appropriate and to recognize the stewardship practices in place. 

• A site visit was completed by representatives of the program which examined the natural 
resources on the property and identified aspects of the operations that may have an impact on 
resources. Twelve modules were given to evaluate the protection of groundwater, surface water 
and soils. Representatives examined the location and condition of pesticide, fertilizer and fuel 
storage areas, wash stations and pesticide mix and load areas, etc., and evaluated how the areas 
affected resources.  

• On January 9, 2008 the City of Troy was awarded certification in the Michigan Turfgrass 
Environmental Stewardship Program. 

• Sanctuary Lake Golf Course is one of only two landfill golf courses in the state to be certified. 
• Both Sanctuary Lake and Sylvan Glen Golf Courses are now certified. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-07



• To date only seventy one (71) out of eight hundred sixty five (865) courses in the state are 
certified. 
 
 

Financial Considerations: 
 
• There are no financial considerations. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
• There are no legal considerations. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
• Certification in the program solidifies the City’s commitment to the safety and well being of the 

public and the environment. (Goal #1) 
• Effective use of a landfill recognized by state organizations as a model for environmental 

stewardship enhances the livability of the community. (Goal #1) 
 





 
 
 
DATE: January 11, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Election of Planning Commission Officers and Appointment of BZA Representatives 
 - 2008 
 
 
At the January 8, 2008 Regular meeting, the Planning Commission held their annual election of 
officers, as required by the Planning Commission By-Laws.  Robert Schultz was elected Chairman 
and Mark Vleck was elected Vice Chairman.  Additionally, the Planning Commission recommended 
Wayne Wright as Board of Zoning Appeals Representative and Thomas Strat as Board of Zoning 
Appeals Alternate. 
 
 

 
 

 
 
Attachments: 
1. Minutes (draft) from the January 8, 2008 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 

 
cc: Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 File\Planning Commission 
  
 
G:\Planning Commission\CC Memo Appoint PC Officers 01 28 08.doc 

 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-08



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 8, 2008 
   

 
 

9. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 
Chair Schultz asked for nominations from the floor for positions of Chair, Vice Chair, 
BZA Representative and BZA Alternate. 
 

Mr. Strat nominated Mr. Schultz for Chair. 
 

Hearing no further nominations, Chair Schultz declared the nominations for the 
position of Chair closed.   
 

Mr. Wright nominated Mr. Vleck for Vice Chair. 
 

Hearing no further nominations, Chair Schultz declared the nominations for the 
position of Vice Chair closed. 
 

Mr. Hutson nominated Mr. Wright for BZA Representative. 
 

Hearing no further nominations, Chair Schultz declared the nominations for the 
position of BZA Representative closed. 
 

Mr. Tagle nominated Mr. Hutson for BZA Alternate. 
 

Mr. Hutson declined the position.  
 

Mr. Wright nominated Mr. Strat for BZA Alternate. 
 

Hearing no further nominations, Chair Schultz declared the nominations for the 
position of BZA Alternate closed. 
 

Resolution # PC-2008-01-008 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 

RESOLVED, That Mr. Schultz and Mr. Vleck be nominated to serve as Chair and Vice 
Chair of the Planning Commission, respectively, for 2008, and 
 

RESOLVED, that nominations be closed and that these officers be elected, as 
indicated, and 
 

RESOLVED, That Mr. Wright and Mr. Strat be recommended to the City Council as the 
Planning Commission's Board of Zoning Appeals representative and alternate, 
respectively, for 2008, and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that nominations be closed and that these officers be 
recommended to serve, as indicated. 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Littman, Troshynski 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 



campbellld
Text Box
J-09





campbellld
Text Box
J-10





 

 
January 22, 2008 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
 
SUBJECT:  Actuarial Valuation – Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 
 
Background: 
 

 The City of Troy has received the first actuarial valuation using the methods and requirements to 
determine our accrued liability for other postemployment benefits contained in Statements No. 43 and No. 
45 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  

 The City has pre-funded retiree healthcare for several years and has accumulated $43,982,534 in assets 
to apply towards the actuarial accrued liability (attributable to service accrued by plan members as of 
December 31, 2006) of $78,900,597.  

 The annual required contribution as a percentage of projected payrolls for all employee groups is   
11.42%. This rate compares to the rates contained in the 2007/08 budget of 8.18% for the general 
employee group and 5.32% for public safety employees.  Our funded ratio went from 85.4% to 55.7% after 
applying the new rules and cost methods of GASB Statements No. 43 and 45.   

 While this is quite a drop in our funded ratio, according to our actuaries who perform studies for most 
municipalities in the state, there are only two or three cities that are in a better funded position than we are. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 

 We implemented the contribution rate contained in the actuarial study for the current fiscal year and will 
budget accordingly for next fiscal year. The new contribution rate will cause departments to review their 
budgets to account for increase in cost for retirement benefits. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 

 By making the required contribution, we will be in compliance with GASB Statements No. 43 and 45. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

 Complying with GASB Statements No. 43 and 45 relates to Council Goal II, “Minimize the cost and 
increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City government”.  By pre-funding retiree healthcare the cost 
will be accounted for during the period of time that services are performed and so will not be a burden to 
future taxpayers.  

 
Options: 
 

 It is recommended that we implement the required contribution rate contained in the actuarial study. 
 
JML/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2008\01.28.08 – Actuarial Valuation - OPEB 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-11



 
 
 
 
 

City of Troy Other Postemployment Benefits 
Actuarial Valuation Report  

December 31, 2006 
 is included with Council’s agenda packets 

and available for public viewing at the 
City Clerk’s Office and the Troy Public Library 



 Date January 24, 2008 
 

TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

FROM: Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

SUBJECT: Proposed City of Troy No Reason Absent Voter Resolution 
  
Background: 
 

 
Pursuant to the request of Council Member Robin Beltramini at the January 7, 2008 City 
Council Regular meeting, the City Clerk’s Office has prepared the attached resolution for 
possible consideration by City Council. 
 

Financial Considerations: 
 

There are no known financial considerations. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

There are no known policy considerations. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

There are no known policy considerations. 
 
Options: 
 

Adopt the proposed resolution to encourage the State Legislature to encourage voter 
participation through alternate voting methods or receive the proposed resolution without 
action. 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  

campbellld
Text Box
J-12



CITY OF TROY 
OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

 
RESOLUTION 

No Reason Absentee Voting 
 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy believes that every opportunity should be 
provided to encourage voter participation; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy vigilantly advocates for the fundamental rights of voters; 
 
WHEREAS, Michigan Law in some cases forces its residents to chose between going to 
work or losing their Constitutional right to vote; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy is the home of a major hospital that employs several Troy 
registered voters who are required to work during the hours the polls are open for voting 
and are therefore disenfranchised from voting as there is no provision under law for them 
to vote an Absentee Ballot; 
 
WHEREAS, There are several other occupations that routinely require employees to work 
during the hours that the polls are open, these occupations can include police and fire 
personnel and other shift workers that work 12 hour days rendering them unavailable 
during the time the polls are open; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has many voters whose polling locations are located some 
distance from their homes and traveling to their precinct on Election Day could be a 
hardship; 
 
WHEREAS, The statutory reasons for acquiring an Absentee Ballot do not take into 
account voters without transportation and their inability to travel from their homes to their 
precincts; 
 
WHEREAS, The unfortunate option available for voters in these circumstances is to 
commit a misdemeanor crime by fraudulently applying for an Absentee Ballot as a means 
to execute one of their fundamental rights as a United States citizen; 
 
WHEREAS, Election Law has several safeguards against voter fraud including the 
comparison of the registered voter’s signature on Absentee Voter Ballot Applications 
against their signature on the registration record on file in the Clerk’s Office; and 
 
WHEREAS, Voters should have equal and unobstructed access to all possible voting 
opportunities. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby SUPPORTS 
No Reason Absent Voting and encourages our representatives to do the same; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City of Troy hereby PETITIONS the State of 
Michigan Legislature to adopt legislation providing for no reason absent voting, which is 
designed to promote voter participation, increase voter turn-out and assure that the 



fundamental rights of all voters are not diminished due to unwarranted restrictions in 
Election Law; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That HB 4048 or HB 4134 accomplish the objectives as set 
forth above and therefore the Troy City Council encourages our legislators to actively 
support the passage of this proposed legislation on behalf of the voters; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to forward a copy 
of this resolution to Governor Jennifer Granholm, Secretary of State Terri Lynn Land, 
Senator John Pappageorge, State Representative Marty Knollenberg and all surrounding 
communities. 









































      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

January 28, 2008 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 
STUDY ITEMS:  

K-1 No Study Items Submitted  

campbellld
Text Box
K-01



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

January 28, 2008 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 
CLOSED SESSION:  

L-1 No Closed Session Requested  

campbellld
Text Box
L-01


	AGENDA: January 28, 2008
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 No Presentations

	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Rezoning Application – East Side of John R, North of Big Beaver, Section 24 – From P-1 and R-1E to B-1 (File Number: Z-677 B)
	C-2 Request for Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – IACNA, International Automotive Components Group, North America, 750-800 Chicago
	C-3 Request to Consider Granting an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to IACNA, International Automotive Components Group, North America, 750-800 Chicago

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 No Postponed Items

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Planning Commission b) City Council Appointments: Board of Zoning Appeals; and Traffic Committee
	E-2  Rescind Bid Award/Re-Award Contract – Rough Mow Various Municipal Sites
	E-3 2008 Poverty Exemption Guidelines
	E-4 Approval of MDOT Loan Agreement – Contract No. 07-7734, Stephenson Highway, 14 Mile to I-75 – Project No. 02.201.5
	E-5 Approval of MDOT Advance Construction Contract – Contract No. 07-5734, Stephenson Highway, 14 Mile to I-75 – Project No. 02.201.5
	E-6 Traffic Committee Recommendations – January 16, 2008
	E-7 Milano Development v. City of Troy et. al.
	E-8 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Brycewood Site Condominium, 9 Units/Lots Proposed, East Side of Evanswood Road, North of Square Lake Road, Section 1 – R-1D

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	F-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public
	F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Submitted
	F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County CLEMIS Cooperative Purchasing Contract – Mobile Data Computers (MDC’s) Increase in CLEMIS MDC Participation Fees
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Community Center Carpet
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: MITN Purchasing Cooperative – Gasoline and Diesel Fuel
	d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 07-9 – Section 4 Weir Control Structure Project Re-Bid
	e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles

	F-5 Request for Acceptance of Three Permanent Easements for Water Main, Sanitary Sewer and Emergency Ingress/Egress – SAAAM-Troy, LLC, Section 26, Sidwell #88-20-26-200-069
	F-6 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Sidewalk, Public Utilities and Drainage – Rochester Professional Building, LLC, Section 3, Sidwell #88-20-03-226-104
	F-7 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement – John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #47 – Sidwell #88-20-02-228-037 – John and Nancy Lozenkovski/Milos and Vesa Miloshevski
	F-8 Contract Extension – Standard and Compound Water Meters
	F-9 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main – The Elizabeth G. Ford Revocable Living Trust and Barbara J. Sackner, Sidwell #88-20-20-476-047
	F-10 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement for John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #67 – Sidwell #88-20-01-151-048 – Mark and Elizabeth Abro
	F-11 Request from Congregation Shir Tikvah to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions – East Side of Northfield Parkway
	F-12 Request to Permit Fireworks at Mon Jin Lau
	F-13 Application for Transfer of Class C License – Cameron Mitchell Restaurants, LLC
	F-14 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Cathy Killian, President – Troy Foundation for Educational Excellence

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Michigan NextEnergy Exemptions – February 18, 2008

	G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for Placement on the Agenda
	H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Historic District Commission/Final – September 18, 2007
	Historic District Commission/Final – October 16, 2007
	Cable Advisory Committee/Final – October 18, 2007
	Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – November 1, 2007
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – November 13, 2007
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – November 20, 2007
	Historic District Commission/Final – November 20, 2007
	Planning Commission/Draft – December 11, 2007
	Planning Commission/Final – December 11, 2007
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – December 12, 2007
	Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Final – December 12, 2007
	Library Advisory Board Minutes/Final – December 13, 2007
	Historic District Commission/Final – December 18, 2007
	Downtown Development Authority/Final – December 19, 2007
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – January 2, 2008
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – January 8, 2008
	Planning Commission/Draft – January 8, 2008
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – January 14, 2008
	Cable Advisory Committee/Draft – January 16, 2008

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of December, 2007
	Building Department – Permits Issued July through December, 2007
	Building Department – Permits Issued During the Year 2007
	Purchasing Department – Final Reporting BidNet On-Line Auction and Mid-Thumb Auctioneering Services – December, 2007
	City of Troy Quarterly Financial Report – December 31, 2007

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Thanks to Troy Police Department from John Yoho, Arvin Meritor, in Appreciation of the Service Received from Officer Stacey and PSA Stark
	Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Sgt. David Smith, Sterling Heights Police Department, Regarding the Assistance with Arrest of Robbery Suspect Received from Lt. Houghton and Officers Livingston, Haddad, Kelly and Brandimore
	Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Macomb County Sheriff Mark Hackel Regarding the Assistance Received with an Arrest
	Letter to Sam Lamerato from Senator John Pappageorge Commending the City of Troy Fleet Maintenance Department on being named the Second Best Fleet in North America
	Letter of Thanks to Director of Building & Zoning Mark Stimac from Joy Powell, General Manager of Oakland Mall, Commending the Efforts of Gary Bowers and Mitch Grusnick

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:
	City of Madison Heights – Resolution Requesting Preservation of Existing Channel Locations for Public, Government and Educational Access Channels

	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting Draft Minutes – November 15, 2007
	J-7  Communication from Director of Parks and Recreation Carol Anderson Regarding Michigan Turfgrass Environmental Stewardship Program – Sanctuary Lake Golf Course
	J-8  Communication from Planning Director Mark Miller Regarding Election of Planning Commission Officers and Appointment of Board of Zoning Appeals Representatives - 2008
	J-9  Communication from City Engineer Steve Vandette Regarding Request for Federal Aid Funding – FY 2012 – Next Phase Projects
	J-10  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding Notice of Hearing for the Customers of Consumers Energy Company – Case No. U-15454
	J-11  Actuarial Valuation – Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)
	J-12  Communication from City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew Regarding Proposed Resolution for No Reason Absentee Voting

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested

	ADJOURNMENT



